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EBIT reached a new record high of £23_5 milllon, up 27.0% on the previous year. This was pnmarily due to
improved marging in the fuel business.

The Building Materials Segment banefited from the ongoing boom in construction activity. Revenues rose by
0.7% to€1,677.5 million in 2018, primarily due to volume factors. The segment’s EBIT rose more sharply
compared to revenues, by 3.3% to €31.1 million. Above ail thiz was due to expansion of digital sales channels
as well a5 positive sales development.

The Innovation & Digitalisation Segment increased its revenues in the reporting year to €107 million. As
planned, the seoment recorded negative EBIT of €12.3 milllon due to significant investment in the development
of digital farming solutions and the new BayWa Portal online platform.

BayWa Group
— 2 E% 1 — o+ OG-
Revenues - EBIT
in € lllian 18,0551 16,6257 in € millien ma m2A
2007 2018 2017 2018

The BayWa Group generated total revenues of €16.625.7 million In 2018, a 3.6% increase comparad to the
previous year. EBIT improved by 0.6% to €172.4 million. The consolidated net result for the year declined by
18.3% to €54 9 million due to an iIncreasa in tax on income and the rise in tax expenses caused by
improvements in operating earnings. The Board of Management and the Supervisory Boand will propose the
same dividend distribution as the previous year, 90 cents per share, to the Annual General Meeting of
Sharenolders,

BayWa contimsed to pursue its sirategic development in 2018; In the Agriculture Segment, the BAST business
unit continied to develop its speciality strategy to expand its range of products with the addition of special
types of grain and services by acquiring British company Premium Crops Limited and Dutch company Royal
Ingredients Group International B.V. Activities in the Agri Trede & Service business unit centred on
congolidating and optimising the location natwork. In addition, sales were geared towards integrated solutions,
and organic produce; among other things, was added to the product range. The focus of the Global Produce
business unit was on expanding the range of frult and vegetable speciaiities. In addition, the German frult
operations have been carbon-neutral since June 2018 The Agricultural Eguipment business unit incraased its
markat share in core regions thank= to targeted expancon of its prodoct range. it alko sapanied ite prespnces in
the Netherlands by taking over three Van Arendonk B.V. sites as at 1 January 2018

The Energy Segment continued to expand its renewable energies activities globally as one of Europe’s largest
providers, In Spain, BayWa r.e. constructed Don Rodrigo, its largest solar power plant to date wath a total output
of 174.4 megawatis (MW) and also the first to be constructed without any government subsidies at all, in 2018
Inthe Nethertands, BayWa r.e. acquired T0% of the shares in GroenLeven, the leading solar power plant project
developer, and bacame one of the world's ten largest solar project developers in early 2018, Further expansion
followed in Latin America in October with the acquisition of DMSolar, ihe ieading provider in the Mexican solar
industry. A range of new electromobility services were introduced in the conventional energy business. Electric
vehicle customers can now charge their vehicles at ower 8,000 charging stations in Germany and approximately
35,000 throughout Europe using the BayWa filling station card. BayWa launched a new digital lubricant
platform, Interiubes, in March 2018,

In the Building Materials Segment. BayWa acguired a2 20% stake in Saxony Anhalt-based Baike Tiefbaustoffe
fur Ver- und Entsorgung GmibH in July 20N8, strangthening its civil engineering portfolio. The range of online
services was expanded by linking together online and stationary sales channsls through the Click & Collact
function and the addition of the “Mr+Mrs Homes™ property configurator as part of efforts to position the
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company as an integrated muiti-speciabist. in addition, BayWa created a seal of approval for low-pollutant
busilding materials in 2018, the BauGeasund seal.

In the Innovation & Digitalisation Sagmant, BayWa created the Agro Innovation Lab (4IL) togather with RWA
Raiffeisen Ware Austria Aktiengeselischaft (RWA). Start-ups with innovative business ideas for agriculture had
the oppartunity to apply for the acceleration programme organised by Al BayWa Venture GmbH invested in
four start-ups in 2018 to help develop ideas inte fully fledged products ready to be marketed,

The BayWa Group has a well-balanced, forward-thinking business partfolio to underpin its success in the
future,
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Background to the Group

BayWa Group Business Model

Group structure and business activities

The BayWa Group

Revanues Employess
28 {m € million) {annual Frarage)
Agriculiune noss 10,428
Energy 38685 2407
Buildang Materiais 16175 421
innovation & Cigitadization 0.7 53
Other Activilies 12 TiB
Total 16,825.7 18,004

BayWa AG was established in 1923 and has its principal place of business in Munich, Through consistent
growth and the continual axpansion of its scope of sendces, BayWa has grown from ifs humbile beginnings in
agricultural cooperative trading into one of Europe’s leading trade, services and logistics companies and an
Intagratad saiuman provider. its businass facus 15 on Eurcpe, but BayWa nas aiso astablizhad an International
trade and procurement network by maintaining important activities in the US and New Zealand and business
relations from Asia to South America. The BayWa Group's business activities — divided into the three operating
segments Agricuiture, Energy and Building Materials, as well as the innovation & Digitalisation Segment
fociead on developmant = encompass wholasale, retail and logistics, as well as axtensive supporting services
and consultancy. The BayWa Group has registered places of business in 41 countries, either through Itsell or
through Group companies.

BayWa AG conducts its business in the three operating segments and the Innovation & Digitalisation
development segment both directiy and through its subsidiaries, which are included in the group of
consolidated companies. Besides the parent company BayWa AG, the BayWa Group comprises 313 fully
consolidated Group companies. Furthermore, 28 companies were included at equity in the financial statements
of BayWa.

Agriculture Segment

The Agriculture Segment traditionally accounts for the largest share of revenues at the BayWa Group, In 2018,
it accounted for approximately 66% of revenues. The segment is divided into four business units: BayWa Agri
Supply & Trade (BAST), Agri Trade & Sarvice, Global Produce and Agricultural Equipment, covering the entire
value chain from field to produce marketing. Effective 1 January 2018, the domestic marketing activities for the
BAST Dusiness unil were transferned Lo e former BayWa Agricultural Sales (BAY) busivess uil, so that
national produce trading can be managed in one place from recording through to marketing. in the course of
these efforts, the BAV business unit was renamed the Agri Trade & Service business unit. The BAST business
unit confinues to include the international grain and oilseed trading activities. These changes resulted Ina
corresponding shift of revenues and earnings from BAST to the Agri Trade & Service business unit. in addition,
the Fruit business unit was renamead Global Produce effective 1 January 2018

The Agricutture Segment is stronaly influenced by natural phanomena, such as the weather. and the effect
these phenomena have on harvests Thesa factors have a dirgct impact on the offering and pricing in the
markets for agricultural commodities and produce. Globalisation means that international developments, such
as record or falled harvests in other parts of the world or changes In exchange rates and transport prices,
increasingly affect price development in reglonal markets. The extent towhich the prices of indivedual
agricultural commaodities Influence one another has increased significantty in recent years and prices have
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become more volatile. The price trend for agricultural produce is expacted to remain stable or point slightly
upwards over [he medium o long term due to the growing global population and rising expectations regarding
food, while land under cultivation per capita declines simultaneously. Supply and demand and prices for
agricultural inputs such as fertilisers and crop protection products are also increasingly Influenced by global
and regulatory factors. What is more, changes in the legal conditions can frigger considerable adaptive
reactions in the markets trading agricuttural products. Finally, regutations - for instance, those issoed by the
European Union (EU) — exert a major influence on pricing and structures in & number of relevant markets.

BAST

BayWa assumes a leading position in grasn and oilseed trade in Europe and has global reach. In the BayWa Agri
Supply & Trade {BAST) business unit, BayWa acts as a supply chain manager, coving the entire valus chain
from procurement and logistics to sales and continuing to expand its internationsal grain trading activities. It
pools activithes that are not tled to a soecific location, particularly internationai grain trading, and i= geared
primarily towanrds grain or oil mills, producers of starch and feedstuffs, mait houses, breweries and bicfuel
manufacturers as its main customers. When it comes to the procurement and marketing of produce, BayWa
possesses a global network comprising both inland and deep water ports. In February 2018, BayWa acguired
grain trader Premium Crops Limited through its British subsidiary Cefetra Limited as part of its speciality
strateqy in trade with agricultural produce (see also Corporate Goals and Strategy section), Premium Crops is a
majar UK specialist crop contracting and supply business whose focus is on sustainable, traceable, and fully
risk-managed supply chains for niche odlseads and speciality grains. In December 2018, BayWa acquired
=subject to approval by antitrust authosities — 0% of the shares in the spacialist ratailer Royal Ingredients
Group International B.V. {(Royal Ingredients) through its Dutch subsidiary BayWa Agri Supply & Trade BV. Roval
Ingredients is a leading provider of starch products, plant proteins, grain and seed cultivated using both
conventional and crganic methods for the giobal food and animal feed industry. The acquisitions are part of the
BAST busincss unit's speciality strategy of further diversifying its portfolio to include special grains and
senvices.

Agri Trade & Service

The Agri Trade & Service business unit covers all stages of farms® value chains: recording, sales and service. It
supplies farmers with agricultural inputs such as seed, fertilisers, crop protection and feedstuffs throughout the
entire agricultural year and takes responsibility for collecting and marketing the harvest regionally. For its
recording activities, BayWa maintains a dense network of high-performance locations in its core regions with
significant transport, processing and storage capacities This guarantees seamiess goods delivery, quality
inspection, processing, coarmect storage and handling of agricultural produce. BayWa sells products to local,
regional, national and intarnaticnal companies in the foodstuff, wholesale and retall industries throughiits In-
house trade departments.

BayWa's agribusncss is cmbodded in the agricultural coopcratives trading structurc, In Gormany., this busincss
is focused on specific regions ¢n account of historical structures. BayWa has 201 sites in its traditions] core
regions, particularly in Bavaria, Baden-Wirttemberg, Meckienburg-West Pomerania, Thuringia. Saxony,
Saxony-Anhall and socutharn Brandenburg, which form part of an extensive and dense network. The focal point
when |t comes to developing agribusiness in Germany is on site modermisation, process optimisation in the
logistics chain, the expansion of e-commerce activities and employee development. Just-in-time detiveries and
direct supply to farmes is becoming increasingly important, raising the requirements when it comes to gites’
capacity for goods acceptance. The trend is moving towards fewer but larger sites with increased capacities,
and preferred locations are gradually moving away from the centres of towns and cities and out towards
peripheral locations with batter transport infrastructure. Digitalisation is also opening the door to additionsl
opportunities to improve the logistics chain for both sides in close collaboration with customers. Thanks to
BayWa's amni-channel sales concept, customers can decide for themsalves whether they prefer to do
business in person at a BayWa site or online. By expanding its digital activities, BayWa it also acquirnng new
customers beyond its traditional regions. Relaying the necessary competences for new challenges in the digital
world is at the forefront of BayWa's employea development activities. Through its Austrian subsidiary RWA
Raifteisen Ware Austra Aktiengeselizchait (RWA), which mantains close business relations across the whole
of Austria with 469 cooperative warehouses, BayWa is represented throughout the country, Numerous
privately owned medium-sized trading enterprises, mainly cperating locally. make up the competitive
environment for agricultural produce. In contrast, there are also a number of wholesalars operating nationwide
that offer agricultural inputs. All in all, BayWa has establiched a leading market position for iteeif in the
agricultural trage in Germany and Austria,

BayWa AG Consolldated Financial Statements 2018 5



e D ocket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

Global Produce

The Global Preduce business unit is one of the BayWa Group's business units with the greatest international
focus. In 2072, BayWa took over New Zealand company T&G Global Limited (T&G), which in turn acquired
Apollo Apples Limited in 2014, Togathar with its subsidiary Apollo Apples, TEG is tha leading provider of apples
in New Zeatand, with international trade links to the Americas, Asia, Ausiralia and Europe. Through the
reciprocal marketing of dessert pome fruit between the northern and southern hemisphenss, BayWais in the
position to provide trade partners in Europe with fresh produce all year round. expand its product range and
selze sales opportunities for German fruit on the international growth markets, which makes BayWa one of the
moast impartant pome fruit iraders worldwide, The existing sales structures of T&G and its affilistes offer the
potential to open up additional sales markets, particutarly in Asia. In Germany. BayWa is the leading single
seller of desser pome fruit to wholesalers and retaters in the food industry and the largest supplier of organic
pome fruit. BayWa also records, sorts, stores, packages and trades fruit for customers in Germany and abroad
as a marketer under contract at its six sites in the Lake Constance, Neckar and Rhinaland-Palatinate reglons.
BayWa expanded its portfolio in the growth market for exotic speciality fruits in the “ready-to-eat™ sector in
2016 through the majority interest in the Dutch supplier TEC Holland B.V. (TFC), significantly strengthening its
position as a ieading international supplier of fruit and pome fruit. TFC has long-standing international trade
relations in 2ll procurement markets for tropical fruits — mainly for avocado, mangoe and citrus fruits —as well as
with the European food retail industry. By taking this step, BayWa systematically continued its specialisation in
the national and international fruit business. Uising an attractive diversified product portfolio featuring
specialities 1o set yourself apart from the competition is also playing an increasingly significant rode in the
Garman markel, which ls marked by a high concentration on the damand side.

Az part of its speciality strategy. BayWa and Al Dahra Holding LCC, Abu Dhabi, a leading agricuttural company
in the Arab world, founded a joint venture in the United Arab Emirates (LIAE) in March 2017 to seif-sufficiently
provide the region with premium vegetable fruits inan cfficicnt manner that conscrves resources. Total
investment volume for the construction of state-of-the art cimate-controlled greenhouses on a 10-hectare
property totalled approximately €40 million at the end 2018. The facility has been operating in lest mode since
the second hatlf of 2018, Once fully operational, up to 8,000 tonnes of premium tomatoes will be able to be
produced per year in these gresnhouses and marketed to the local food retail industry, The greenhouse’s
controtled climate makes it possible to harvest produce all year long. s innovative systemn cuts water
consumption by around B0% comparad to conventional greenhouses.

Agricultural Equipment

The Agricultural Equipment business unit offers a full line of machinery, equipment and systems for all areas of
agricufture. The most Important customer groups include thosa in agriculture and forestry, local government
and Industry. Aside from tractors and combine harvesters, the range of machinery also includes versatile
municipal vehicles, road-sweeping vehicles, mobile systems for wood shredding and forklift trucks for
municipal services and commercial opcrations. The range on offer for forcstny cxctendsa from large machincry
and equipment such as forestry tractors, wood splitting and chipping machinery, forest milling cutters and
mulchers, cable winches, road and path construction machinery right through to small appliances such as
chainsaws and brush cutters and the necessary protective ciothing. In addition, an extensive network of 284
workshops and 671 mobile service vehicies provide maintenance and repair services for machinery and
equipment. In January 2007, the Agricultural Equipment business unit was recrganisad by dividing it into the
Agricultural Eguipment, CLAAS Affiliated Companies and Special Agricultursl Equipment businece divisions so
as to better mest the varying needs of different customer groups and seize growth potential. The Agricultural
Equipment business division comprises product management for new machinery, especiatly AGCO-brand
machinery. as well as international activities. CLAAS sales and service through the joint affliated companies are
equally positioned form an organisational perspective. The Special Agricultural Equipment business division is
divided into the product categories municipal services, forestry, indoor eguipment and frrigation technologies.

BayWa is the world's largest sales partner for products made by AGCD — with its brands Fendt. Massey
Ferguson, Challenger and Valtra = and CLAAS. It maintains a closely linked network of in-house workshops in
southern and eastern Germany, as well as the Netheriands, that are tailored o manutacturer brands. In
Germany, BayWa has also significantly expanded sales structures for Massey Ferguson-branded products in
recent years to increase their market enare, This range is complemented by the sale of spare parls and the
provision of mobile service vehicies for maintenance and repair senvices. BayWa also sells ussd machinery via
online platforms.
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Tha market for renewable energies is a largely regulated market where energy is produced and fad into the grid
at prices set by the government. Developments in the marke! are therafors largely determined by changes In
the structure and size of state subsidies. In terms of wind and solar energy, BayWa r.e. operates in Australia,
Austria, Croatia, Denmark, France, Germany, Greace, Hungary, Indonasia, italy, Japan, Luxembourg, Malaysia,
Mexico, the Nethertands, Poland, the Republic of Singapore, Romania, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Thailand,
the UK, the US and Zambia. This ensures that BayWa r.e_ is highly diversifiad both in terms of its range of
energy carmiers and its geographic distribution, By consolidating various Group companies m the umbrella
brand BayWa r e renawable energy and setting up a clear businass structure in the areas of wind energy, solar
power and bioenergy, as well as in the Project Development/Realisation, Services, Photovoltaic Trade, and
Energy Trading functional sections, the foundations hawve been laid to avoid overiapping activities, take
advantage of synergies and thus participate in the expected market growth. Generally, investment incentives
through guaranteed feed-in tariffs or tax breaks affect demand. In Germany, the structuring of subsidies in the
German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) iz a major factor influencing demand for wind, solar and
bioenergy plants, as the profitability of these turbines and plants is determined by the statutory feed-in tariffs.
Similar subsidy mechanisms usually exist in foreign markets. Furthermore, reguilatory intervention in free trade
also influences prices for systems components. Changes to relevant legislation can therefore have significant
effects on investments in renewable energies. That being said, investments in renewable energies are
becoming incraasingly attractive and less reliant on government subsidies as a result of falling componarnt
prices,

Conventional Energy

In its conventional energy business, BayWa predominantly sells heating odl, fuels, lubricants and wood pellets in
Bavaria, Baden-Wirttembearg, Hesse, Saxony and Awstria. In the heating business, heating materials ara
primarily sold through in-house offices. Diesel and Otto fuels. as well as AdBlue, are sold through a total of
247 Group filling stations and partner stations in Germany. In addition, BayWa supplics fucts to rescllers and
wholesalers. In Austria, more filling stafions are managed by subsidiaries. The Group company GENOL
Geszellschaft m.b.H. & Co KG acts as 3 wholesale fuel supplier to cooperative filling stations. In sddition to its
filling station operations, BayWa also offers a fleet filling station card that has also been accepted by filling
station operator ALLGUTH in and around Munich since October 2018. This means that users of the BayWa
filling station card can now take advantage of some 2.500 filling stations ail over Germany. Electric vehicle
customers can now charge their vehicles at over 8,000 charging stations in Germany and approximately 35,000
throughout Europe using the BayWsa filling station card. BayWa sells lubricants to commercial and industrial
customers, as well as to farmers and operators of combined heat and power plants, BayWa has also positioned
itself as a market leader in lubricants for blogas CHP units and with regard to multifunctional oils. in March
2018, BayWa launched the new interlubes digital platform. The platform is used for selling lubricants and
operating resources online to B2B customers. It also offers B2B users in the areas of commerce, industry,
municipal services. transportation, agriculture and forestry a wide range of lubricants encompassing multiple
manufacturcrs and brands. The product range includes products and brands from all key manufacturcrsand
retailers. The subsidiary BayWs Energie Dienstleistungs GmbH offers extensive and individual solutions for
energy provision to residential properties, municipsl and commercial buildings and the healthcare and
industrial sectors.

Besides the large mineral oll trading companies, the competitive environment s shaped mainty by medium-
sized fuel traders. Having developed over time, there i now a close connecbion with agribusiness, as farmers
are among the largest customer groups. In the Energy Segment, conventionsl energy business is mainly
shaped by volatile price trends in the crude ofl markets. The prices of fossil-based fuels are subject to
considerable fluctuations,. which affect the demand for these products. From a structural perspective, demand
for heating oil has been falling for years due to the increasingly widespread use of renewable energy sources
and gas. as well as the improvement in energy efficiency in buildings.

Building Materials Segment

Just under 10% of consolidated revenues are generated in the Bullding Materials Segment. The segment
primarily compnses bullding materials trading activities in southern and eastern Germany and Austna. In
addition, BayWa serves a number of franchise partners in the building matasials and retail business in Austria
through its Austrian subsidiary AFS Franchise-Systeme GmbH, The BayWa Group is one of Germany’s market
leaders in the bullding materials trace with a total of 125 locations and also ranks among the leading suppliers
in Austria with 31 sites, The number of franchise locations currently totals BEG,
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In the bullding materials trade, BayWa mainly caters to the needs of small and medium-sized construction
companies, tradesmen, commercial enterprises and municipalities. Private developers and homeowners are
atso important customers. The key success factors in this business are physical proodmity to the customer, the
product mix, advisory sarvices and close relations with commarcial customers. BayWa takes these factors into
account with a targeted focus on its customer groups when it comes to sales and customer consulting
services. One exampie of this is the BayWa Building Materials Online portal, lsunched in January 2017, which
enables business customers 1o place orders 24,7, Customears al50 have the option to schedule delivery dates
anline as well. If customers choose to collect the goods themsalves, they can create their own delivery note
after completing their order, This enables them to pick up the materials straightaway without any wait. The
onling range was also expanded by adding a room designer and tha “Mr+Mrs Homes" property configuratar.
The property configurator allows private developers and construction firmes to plan and calculate homes online
in various configurations and realise them right through to the turnkey handover of the finished house by
drawing on a connected network of partners. Further areas of focus in the Buliding Materials Segment include
healthy construction and energy efficiency. BayWa offers a wide range of emissions-tested building materials
plus solutions for energy-efficient construction or renovation. It has also created a quality seal for bullding
materials that are not hazardous to health in the shape of the BauGesund seal. This is based on a database
containing anound 6.000 certified low-emission products from a variety of different manufacturers covering all
trades. Products bearing the BauGesund seal are distinguished by the fact that thay undergo a strict multiple-
stage control process 1o prove that they are low in emissions and comply with the reference values for
pollutants and compounds as recommendad by the German Environment Agency (UBA), The BauGesund
partnership programme i aimed at commercial customers and encompasses training courses and
consultation on the topic of healthy construction and modernization as well as support In marketing and sales.
Thanks to its private brand lines casafino for construction components and landscaping; Formel Pro for
structural and chemical products, as well as insulation materiats; Formel Pro Green for healthy-living building
matcrials and clcaning agents; and Vialut for roofing accessorics, BayWa is increasingly beocoming an initiator of
new products. in the case of comrentional construction materials, being close to the customer is a significant
competitive advantage. At the same time, the cost of transporting heavy or bulky construction materials with
relatively low added value necessitates excellent location structures and optimum logistics.

The building matenals market is strongly fragmented both in Germany and in Austria, In Germany, there are
approximately 800 companies in total with around 2,300 locations specialised in the building materials trade,
The majority of these are small or medium-sized enterprises, which often join forces in the form of
procurament groups and simiar orgardsations.

Changes in the economic and political environment in particular may have a positive or negative effect on the
Building Materials Segment, especially in the case of subsidy programimeas concerming energy-efficient
renovation and residential construction. The development of the building materials trade generatly follows
ovcrall buitding activity. Civil cngincering and road construction depond greatly on public scctor spending. In
the area of private construction, incentives such as government subsidies for renovation or refurbishment
measures and favourable interest rates for financing play 2 major role in investment decisions. In addition,
manifold reguiations influence general investmenl propensity levels and the gemand for certain products,
Construction laws and directives. such as the German Enesgy Saving Ordinance (EnEV) or the introduction of
energy certification for bulldings, construction parmits, public procurement law, as wall as directives on fire
and noise ingulation are of particular eignificance. Finally, the building materiats busineee depends on weather
conditions. In particular, heavy precipitation and periods of frost can significantly limit construction activities.

Innovation & Digitalisation Segment

Digitalisation is changing agriculture 2s we know it. Nowadays, potentisl for increasing income and efficiency at
farms is more about oplimising whole processes instead of implementing individual measures. The market for
digital applications in the farming industry (digital farming) largely comprises the businass areas of precision
farming and smart farming. Precision farming focuses on the automation of processes and the optimisation of
the use of agricultural inputs, Information is processad digitally and made avaitable from farm managemeant
systems, weather apps and online platiorms to help larmers make decisions. Building on this, smart farming
makes it possible to connect all areaz of operations, from logistics to getting in contact with the customer via
online interfaces for the slectronic ordering of spare parts or agricultural inputs. Here, machines and systems
process information independently and make decisions with at least some degree of autonomy. Examplas of
thie include autonomous soil cultivation and harvesting machines, real-time soil analysie and site-specific farm
management. This process optimisation not only results in cost savings. but aiso improves efficiency in the usa
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of agricultural inputs. Machinery and system maintenance costs can also be reduced throwgh the rapid
collection, transmission and assessment of technical data. The best possible use of agricultural inputs
ultimately boosts yields, The digital integration of supply chain partners, customers and suppliers also creates
tha possibility for new services and data-based business modeis. Interconnectivity batwean online storas and
applications enables agriculturai inputs and spare parts to be provided as and when needed or allows electronic
troubleshooting to be carried out in the case of machine failure, with the resulis sent directly to the responsible
service technician.

BayWa has plotted a clear course into the digital future through the independent Innovation & Digitalisation
Segrnent, which iz responsible for developing and marketing digital preducts and services for enhancing
productivity in agriculture. It also pools the BayWa Group’s e-commernce activities in the BayWa Portal. With its
software product NEXT Farming OFFICE, the Group company FarmFacts GmbH offers farmers a future-
oriented and interoperable farm management system. A number of modular tools and solutions are also
avallable. The next innovative step is the networking of entire areas of farms and processes with upstream and
downstream stages. To this end. FarmFacts offers an overall concept for medium-sized and small farms with
tihe NEXT Farming LIVE product family. In eddition. FarmFacts has teamed up with the agricuttural equipment
manufacturers AGCO, Krone, Kuhn, Lemken, Pottinger and Rauch as part of the Agriculture Application Group
{aag) partnership to develop the web-based, open NEXT Machine Managemant machine data management
software as a new module for NEXT Farming LIVE that makes it possible o process all data generated by
machinery and equipment regardiess of tha manufacturer, This anables farmers 1o seize the opportunities of
smart farming across all types of machinery and agricultural inpuls, irrespactive of the type of farm or farm
size. BayWa is striving to secure a leading market rote in this field across Europe.

BayWa is also driving forward the assessment of satellite data in the farming industry in its partnership with the
Europcan Space agency (ESA). The goal is to optimally incorporate satcilifc data into agriculturc proccsscs in
order to create positive effects regarding the use of resources and water, as well as for harvest yields, For
example, the Sentinel-2 satellite will provide images for monitoring plant growth and is capabie of
differentiating between various agricultural crops in the process. In addition, the BayWa Group obtained
valuable expertise for the further development of digital solutions in 2017 by acquiring 51% of the shares in
VISTA GmbH based in Munich. Using satellite data, VISTA develops digital solutions for agriculture, water
management and the environment.

To accelerate the development of innovative ideas for agriculture, BayWa and RWA Raiffetsen Ware Austria
have created the Agro Innovation Lab (AIL). Start-ups with innovative business ideas for agriculture had the
opportunity to apply for the acceleration programme ooganised by AlL. The third application process took place
in 2018, and saw fledgling companies participate in similar numbers to 2077, A total of 252 start-ups from 53
submitted proposals. with the best six being selected to develop their concepts with the support of Bay\Wa and
RWA's intcrnational nobwork.

Other Activities
Other activities enoompass the Group™s central management and agdminstrative functions as well as paripheral
activities,

Management, Monitoring and Compliance

BayWa is an Aktiengeselischaft (stock corporation) under German law with & dual management structure
consisting of a Board of Management and a Supervisory Board.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board of Management consisted of six members: Prof. Klaus Josef Lutz
(Chairman, responsible for the BayWa Agri Supply & Trade and Global Produce business units), Andreas Helbar
(responsible for Finance), Roland Schuler (responsible for the Agricultural Equipment business unit and the
Innovation & Digitalisation Segment), Marcus Pollinger {responsibie for the Building Materials Segment and the
Agri Trade & Service business unit), Matthias Taft (responsible for the Energy Segment) and Remhard Wolf
{responsible for RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Aktiengesalischalt),
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Effective 1 January 2018, Marcus Péllinger took over respansibility for the Building Matertals Segment and,
effective to the start of the agricultural yvear 201818 on 1 July 2018, for the Agri Trade & Service business unit
as Senior Executive Vice President. Marcus Pollinger joined the Bay\Wa AG Board of Management on
1Novambar 2018, as Board of Managamant mamber Roland Schuler entered retirement at the end of 2048,
From 1 January 2079, Marcus Pallinger also assumed responsibility for the Agricultural Equipment business
unit and the Digital Farming business unit. alongside the Building Materials Ssgment and the Agri Trade &
Service business unit. Prof. Klaus Josaf Lutz took over responsibility for innovation,

The Board of Management s solely responsible for managing the Aktiengeselischaft with the primary aim of
increasing its value over the long term.

The BayWa AG Supervisory Board consists of 16 members. it monitors and consults the Board of Management
in its managament activities and regularty discusees business developmant, planning, strategy and risks
together with the Board of Management. in accordance with the German Codetermination Act (MitbestG),
shareholder and empioyee representatives also sit on the Supervisory Board of BayWa AG to ensure
codetermination on the basis of parity. The Supervisory Board has formed six committees in order to boost its
efficiency.

Details on cooperation between the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board and on corporate
governance at BayWa AG are presented in the Supervisory Board report and the corporate governanoe
declaration. Thesa are available at wwe baywa com/en/imvestor_relations/financial_reports/consolidated_
financial_ statements,.

Thie main task of the Corporate Compliance organisational section is to perform preventive duties. Corporate
Compliance particularty drows on training courscs and an cxtensive range of consultancy and information
senvices o prevent breaches of the law. its aclivities are focused an corruption prevention, antitrust law and
combating money Llaundering. Comprehensive frameworks have been developed and implemented across the
Group on thesa issues. Since 2077, Corporate Compliance has also been responsible for issues such as
customs./export control. IT security and data protection and has implemented appropriate management
systems.

A Group-wide code of conduct was introduced in 2015, creating a uniform set of values which apply to the
entire BayWa Group. Employees who wish to report potential breaches of compliance regulations are now able
to register their suspicions through an anonymous tip-off system in addition to existing possibilities, such as the
ombudsman. Reported information is assessed and followed up in coanjunction with Corporate Audit. Corporate
Comipliance and Corporate Audit work togethar closely in internal investigations of an antitrust or criminal
nature. There is also an extensive range of compliance controls to review and guarantee adherence to
compliance principics. Corporatc Compliance s managed by the Chicf Compliance Officer, who reports
directly to the Chief Executive Officer. Compliance Officers and Data Protection Officers are also appointed in
BayWa's business units, as well as at all significant affilisted companies. They are avallable to employees as
additional conlact partners and act as conduits.

Corporate Goals and Strategy

The environment and the markets in which BayWa operates are subject to constant and increasingly serious
changes. New technologies and advancing digitalisation in all areas of business and society are resulting in the
appearance of new competitors on the market who are having a disruptive impact on a number of existing
business models. At the sama time, new data-driven business models are developing, which are promipting
companies to transform their sctivities. Globalisation ks increasing competitive pressure, on the one hand, while
opening up access tointernational markets on the other. The independence of both producers and customers
iz on the rise, due in particular to the opportunities provided by digttalisation. Despite the existing framework of
complex business structures, the pace of change in business is constantly acceierating. More and more
frequently, young. flexible start-ups are developing new business ideas into fully fledged products ready o be
marketed. As a result, company lifespan ks dropping. as many new business forms are ousting established
companies. Sustsinability ae regards climate protection and the congervation of natural resources ie growing in
social importance virtually all across the wortd. BayWa has set iteell the target of taking on a pioneering role
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when it comes to sustainability and the development of green solutions across all of its business units, Since
the start of the financial year 2018, BayWa r.e.'s business operations have been completely carbon-neutral. The
carbon footprint of the entire BayWa r.e. Group was analysed, and measures to reduce carbon emissions were
than identified and implemented. Certificates from high-guality carbon offsat projects wera then used to
compensate for the remaining emissions. German sites in the Global Produce business unit have also been
operating carbon-neutrally since June 2018 and there are plans to ensure that international sites follow suit in
future.

BayWa remains true to its reots while continuing to evolve. The fundamentat changes in the value chain call for
adjustments or even antirely new business models. in keeping with the guiding principle “We meeat basic neads
through leading solutions for food, energy and shelter”, BayWa is becoming a trusted partner to its customers
when it comes to integrated solutions. The aim is to ensure the success of BayWa customers by combining
products with advisory and other senvices and to make thelr work easier. Az a strong partner 1o its customers,
BayWa sesks to ensure that the company remains independent and competitive. True to the current motto,
“United for success ., BayWa's corporate conduct has always had a long-term focus and been shaped by the
company’s responsibility towards customers, employees. other stakeholders and sociely as a whole.

BayWa is taking two markel-driven approaches with regard 1o its further strategic development: ensuring
business continuity by enhancing competitive strength and consequently maintaining its leading position in
core business endeavours, as well as growth in new business areas by devetoping innovative, customer-
focused business models.

The strategic pursuits at a functional level are fourfold: Within business models and the organisation, the
objective is to press ahead with digitalisation. In operating business, the plan is to optimise management and
cxpand the points of customer contact to strengthen Group brands. Particular focus is being placed at Group
level on strengthening the BayWa umbrelia brand across sil segments and business units. Achieving an
excellent organisational set-up marked by close collaboration across divisions and high-performing employees
and managers will improve corporate performance. Finally, BayWa plans to continuously analyse its business
portfolio for future growth and earmings potential with the sim of ensuring and sustainably increasing the
profitability of the BayWa Group's business operations.

In the agricultural division, the Group is affirming its aim of becoming Europe’s leading agricultural trade,
distribution and logistics provider with global reach. BayWa aims to deapen existing customer ties and attract
new customerns by seizing opportunities to export to international markets, expanding the range through the
addition of speciality produce such as malting bartey, hops and legumes, and presenting new service offerings.
By taking these steps, BayWa will be further developing its core business on a functional and cost-efficiant
basis. Ancther comerstone of the speciality strategy i the expansion of the range of agricultural goods
produccd organically and regionally. BayWa AG has been a member of Biokreis ¢V, the fourth largest organic
agriculture association in Germany, since October 2018, In future, it will record grain from 1,300 Biokreis
farmers all over the country and has also been included in the “Bayerische Bio-Siegel” quality scheme. The
Bayerische Bio-Siegel is a seal of approval for high-guality organic protuce with full documentation of its origin.
BayWa is also looking to diversify its portfolio through intemational partnerships. In the recording and
agricultural input business, the location structure s undergoing consolidation and optimisation, and digital
services are being added to the business model. Sales are being geared towards integrated solutions and the
range of e-commerce activities expanded, Targeted diversification of the product portfolio and the expansion of
the private brand business are helping to stabilise profitability,

In the Global Produce business unit. BayWa's objective is to offer retailers in Europe a diverse and attractive
range of produce throughout the year by systematically expanding its procurement base in the southermn
hemisphera. The focus is on expanding the range of fruit and vegetable specialities, In addition, New Zealand
Group company TEG Global Limited is being used as a platform for expanding exports to countries in Asla and
tapping into new national markets. International marketing of the full range of produce in the Global Produce
business umit through centralised, customer-centric responsibilities leverages synergies and attracts new
customers. in Germany, activities are focused on expanding the range of organic produce and club apples such
85 a7z and Kangi.

12 BayWa AG Consolicsted Financial Statements 2018



Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0



e D ocket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

start-ups to help develop AlL s ideas into fully Redged products ready to be marketed. avia develops digital
madels to forecast plant growth and pest and disease damage, while evologic technologies ressarches growth-
and yield-boosting seed additives. Bartsparts is creating a digital platform for the sale of replacement parts with
a low turnover rate and FarmHedge is establishing an ontine platform for trade betwean farmers and
agricultural retailers.

BayWa's eBusiness includes the BayWa Portal platform for onling trade and plays a cross-cutting role when it
comes to digitalising interfaces and processes between BayWa and its customers, The focus here is on an
emni-channel approach and further development into a smart digital customers platform and the digitalisation
of customer-centric processes.

The development of the BayWa Group is accompanied by a solid and proactive financing strategy. it is shaped
by the caution traditionally exercised by companies in the cooperative and agricultural sectors, but aleo takes
into account the changing requirements of an established international group. With its corporate financing.,
BayWa puts its faith in tried-and-tested, reliable partners in the cooperative federation. Furthermore, it makes
sure that there is sufficient diversification in terms of financing sources. 50 as 1o guarantee its independence
and limit risks. Efficient management of working capital is vital at the BayWa Group as it represents g net figure
for currant assets less current (abilties. BayWa aims 1o maintain a balanced capital structura.

Control System

Strategic controlling of the corporate divisions is based on value-oriented corporate governance and integrated
risk management. Opcrational managemcnt of the corporate divisions is conductcd bascd on targets; the key
earmings figures EBITDA, EBIT and EBT are primarily used as the most significant financial performance
indicators, The development of financial performance indicators in the finsncial year 2018 5 described in the
Financial Report in the section “Financial Performance indicators™. BayWa reports on its non-financial
performance indicators in its separate Sustainability Report.

The value-driven management approach supparts the medium- and long-term streamlining of the portfolio ana
the strategic orientation of capitsl aliocation within the Group. This approsch shows whether the ratio between
the operating profit achieved and the risk-adjusted cost of capital is appropriate, i.e, whether the business units
and the segments have earned their cost of capital. Interest on average capital invested in the business units is
charged by applying the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) model The return on imvested capital (ROIC)
of the business units is then measured against the respective cost of capital. There is economic profit if the
return on imvested capital is higher than the cost of capital specific to each business unit (see also "Economic
profit™ scction). The further development of an cfficicent risk managemaent system is particularty important in
safeguarding long-term economic success, especially in international business. The risk management system
iz monitored and managed by 2 Risk Board established in 20008 and headed up by the Chiaf Executive Officer. In
addition, the Giobal Book System (GBS) has been in place 10 coordinate rade management in grain, ollseed
and co-proguct trade since 2014, The GBS reconciles and optimises trage and rick positions of individual
preduct lines across the board flor national and Intermational divisions.

Research and development in the Innovation & Digitalisation Segment

018 ow
Hon-capitalised retearch and developrmend expenses (in €) 400,000 255,000
Nurniber of smgloyses (£ )
Own work capetalised (in €} 2,006,000 1,655,000
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The BayWa Group’s research and development activities relate primarily to the formation and further
developmeant of the new Innovation & Digitalisation Segment and take piace a1 the subsidiaries FarmFacts
GmbH and VISTA Geowlssenschafiliche Fernerkundung GmbH.

Research focuses primarily on pilot projects on the topics of site-specific sowing and fertilisation, as well as
satellite-based remote sensing senvices and applications for agriculture, water management and the
environment. Developrment pertains mainly to software and digital applications for digital farming.

FarmFacts GmbH focuses first and foremost on software modules for controlling agricultural processes, as
well as lelemnatic applications and management software for the automated steering of agricultural machinery.
In the reporting year, FarmFacts continued to develop the web-based, open NEXT Machine Management
maching data management software as a new module for NEXT Farming LIVE in collaboration with agricultural
equipment manufacturers AGCO, Krone, Kuhn, Lemken, Pottinger and Rauch. This softwars makes it possible
to process all data generated by machinery and equipment regardiess of the manufacturer, This interface is
also open to other agricultural equipment manufacturers to atlow farmers to digitally connect thelr machinary
in future despite a growing number of manufacturers. The module is likely fo be ready to market in the second
guarter of 2019, VISTA Geowissenschafiliche Fernerkundung GmbH implements the latest scientific methods
in oparational services and applications and develops digital solutions on the basis of satallite data, including
hydrology. agriculture and environmenta! applications such as accurate local forecasts of nutriant and waler
requirements or harvest forecasts for research and commearcial applications. To do so, optical and radar
satellite images in various resolutions, as well as additional geodata, are combinsd.

As at 31 Dacember 208, 72 employeas worked in research and davelopment. The BayWa Group's research
and development expenses totatled €4200,000 in the financial year 2018. Own work capitalised with regard to
ncw digital farming products amounted to €2.0 million.

BayWa AG Consolidated Financial Statements 2018 15



Consolidated Management Report - Financial Report

Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

Financial Report

Operative Business Development

Agriculture Segment
Market and industry development 201812

Development af grain and cilsaad

Global balance of grain

{exciuding rice) Grain year Change

i millions of tonhes 2016547 2078 Fonas1e 28,15 compated to 2017418

Production

Wrld 2m.a 200 2068 B2 0.6%
tharsol. winsst T558.5 B3z 7347 - 285 « 3 T%
thereol: coarse gran 14137 13568 a2 153 1.T%

Consumption

World 2185 2155 21524 369 17%
thereof: wheal T38.8 443 T4T2 30 0.4%
thansnd: CoMrse grain 1LITAT L3N.a 1,405.2 a3e 25%

Inventory changes

Waorld 51.8 ah 456
thereof: wheat 18.8 19.0 - 125
Ihereol: coarse grain 35.0 -14.5 =341

Europaan balancs of grain I

{excluding rice) Grain year Change

in millions of bonnes 201617 2097718 201818 201815 compared to 2017718

Production

Eu 288.2 3038 284.5 m3 G.4%
tharand: Garmany 454 456 38.0 ~T6 - 167

Consumption

EU 288.8 2831 2908 -23 05%
thered: Germmany R4 2 43.5 <35 o0 0.0%

Inventory changes

EuU a4 0.7 -53
thirraod: Germany 12 1 -85

Sources; USQA, Grmn Worid Markots and Trace. 2019, po. 7. 2% BLE. Bericnd qur barkd- und Versorgungsiage Cetreice 2018, p. 35 DEV, Situationabericht
207879, p. 188

Global grain harvest yields were around 2% down on the high levels recorded in the previous year in grain year
M7 418, However, harvest volumes were marginally higher than expected at the start of 2048. The current
harvest season was able to cover worldwide consumption in full and inventories increased marginally, with
wheal inventories rising while imventories of coarse grain fell. in the European Union, the 2018 grain harvest was
some 6% down on the previous year due to the hot and dry summer. The seif-sufficiency rate fell below 100%
(LSDA, Grain: World Markets and Trade, 2019, pp. 77, 23). The grain harvest in Germany declined by 179% year
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margin due to the attractive prices offered thera in the first hall of 2018 on account of the pocr previous-year
harvast (USDA, GAIN Report Number NZ1831, 2018, pp. 4, 8). Based on the current status of fruit development,
the World Apple and Pear Association (WAPA) forecasts that the apple harvest in the southern hemisphere will
increasa by just under 2% to approximately 5.3 million tonnas in 2019 (WAPA_ foracast apple production,
2019). In New Zealand, apple production is expected o rise by nearly 3% to reach a new record harvest of
583,000 tonnes due to new plantations entering production and good weather conditions. Exporis are
anticipated to rise to 390,000 tonnes and therefore grow faster than the volume of production (USDA, GAIN
Report, Number NZ1831, 2018, pp. 4, B). Exports to China are expected to rise in particular in 2012, as the apple
harvest there was impacted by severe frost in 2018, This opens up the possibility of the price of New Zealand
apples rising (Fruchthandel, China: Rickgana der Apfelproduktion, 2018).

Development of agricultural equipment

The revanue and income situation of German farmers improved further in the harvest year 2077 /18. Farming
income improved by some 19% on average across all sizes and forms of farms. The development of different
types of farms was extremely varied: Dwairy cattle and beef farms continued their economic recovery, whereas
crop farms and meat processing operations came under pressure (DBV, Situstionsbericht 2018715, p. 145 et
seq.). Against this backdrop, sentiment in the agricultural sector remained in moderate territory and trended
sideways with few fluctuations in 2018 (DBV, Konjunkturbarometer Agrar, 2018, p. 1 et seq. ). According to
estimates from the VDMA (Garman Mechanical Engineering Industry), revenues in the agricultural equipment
sactor rose by around 10% to €86 billion in 2018, as compared 1o the expactation at the baginnirg of 2018 that
they would increase by only 4%. Growth was recorded across all product categorias, from culthvation
equipment to hanwest machines (VDMA, Landtechnikindustrie erreicht neues Alizeithoch, 2019). Adequate
producer prices, particularly for milk and forage crops, resulted in strong demand for harvest machines,
especially for herbage and hay (Agrarzeitung, Futtertechnik profitiert von Milchpreis, 2018). New tractor
registrations declined by just under 18% year on year to 27,670 machines in Germany in 2018 This fall was
primarily due to the fact that a large number of iractors had To be registered in the previous year as stricter
regulations governing machines were introduced at a Eurcpean level and these tractors would not have been
able to be registered in 2018 (VDMA, Traktoren-Zulassungen in Deutschiand, 2019). At 34%. the propensity of
farmers to make investments in the first half of 2019 is up slightly on the previous-year figure of 32%. The
planned investment volume has risen significantly from €4.0 billion in the previous year to €4.3 billion, The
strongest growth was attributable to farm and animal equipment, followed by machinery and equipment. By
contrast, investrnent in farm buildings and renewsbie energies are likely to be down on the previous year (DBV,
Konjunkturbarormeter Agrar, 20718, p. 5 ot seq.). Against this backdrop, the VDMA expacts further growth in
2018 fueited primarily by the export business. That being said, high inventories among agriculturat equipment
dealers may hamper development (VDMA, Landtechnikindustrie ermeicht neves Allzeithoch, 2018).
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Business performance

BAST business unit

The BAST business unit comprises international grain and oilseed trading activities, Trading volumes with grain
and oliseed fail by 6.8 million tonnas to 26 6 million tonnes in the financial year 2018, The anticipatad decline in
handling volume was attributable to two factors: First, domestic marketing activities, as well as those managed
by the Austrian Group company FWA, were reclassified to the Agri Trade & Service business unit with effect
from 1 January 2018. Second, the decline was attributabie 1o the adjusted location structure and trading
stralegy as a result of last year's rearganisation. Adjusted for these influsnces, the handling volume of grain and
cilseed was down 5.4% year on year in total. Trading volume with oilseed and additional products increased.
The shortage in staple fead caused by the drought [ed 1o a considerable rise in demand in the fead industry,
which was increasingly served by the Dutch Group company Cefetra. By contrast, the quantity of grain traded
fell significantly due to harvest-redated reasons. Overall. the revenues of the BAST business unit decreased by
9.1% to €5,288 8 millian in the reporting year due to volumea factors and were therafore in line with
expectations. The structural optimisation and the increased volatility of agricultural commedity prices had a
positive impact on eamings, since the company seized the resulting trading opportunities. Among other things,
the shift in the global flow of goods from the US to Brazil a5 a result of Chinese import duties on US soya
benefited the existing treding positions. With regard to wheat, the Group —with its existing trade contracts and
stocks - benafited from the strang price rally in July and August due to the expected decline in harvests. All
told. the BAST business unit genersted a significant increase in eamnings before interest and tax (EBIT) of
€24,7 million in 2078, bringing EBIT up 1o €31.1 million and allowing the business unit to confirm the forecast.

Agri Trade & Service business unit

The Agri Trade & Service business unit (formeriy: BayWa Agriculturai Sales [BAV]) comprises the agricultural
input business and the recording of agricultural produce. With effect from 1 January 2018, it was expanded to
include the BAST busincss unit’s domestic grain and oisced trading activitics, a3 well as those managed by the
Austrian Group company RWA. Due to this expansion, grain and cilseed trading volume rose in the Agri Trade &
Service business unit by 22.7% year on year to just under 6.5 milllon tonnes, thereby exceeding the volume
expacted at the start of 2018, This volume effect would have been even stronger had the harvest volumes
matched the average values seen in recent years, Adjusted for the activities reclassified from the BAST
business unit, recording volumes fell compared to 2077 on account of very low grain harvests due to the
drought. Furthermore, rivers” low water levels so severely restricted and incraased the expanse associated
with marketing that the execution of some existing sales contracts was postponed from the final gquarter of 2018
to 20719, By contrast, the drought-related scarcity of staple feed lad to strong demand for feadstuffz, Including a
reclassification effect resulting from a change in product group classification, which led to the reclassification
of around 0.8 million tonnes in sales volume from oflseed to feedstuffs, ssies here increased by roughly 29% in
2018. A drop in fertiliser sales had been forecast for 2018 in the agricultural input business. At 25%. that decline
was sharper than expected, bringing fertiliser sales down to around 1.8 million tonnes. The decline was due to
the frost reloted significant shortoning of the application period in spring. The long period of drymessin the
second half of the year also prevented many applications of fertiliser. Crop protection sales were also down
year on year and fell short of expectations due to the weather-relsted lower incidence of disease. Seed sales
declined by a good 5% in tha reporting year, thereby falling short of the forecast of Stable sales volumas, The
main reason for this decline was the limited ability to sow winter grains in many regions gus to the dry soil.
Owerall, revenues increased by 17.3% to €3.298.8 million in the reporting year, as expectad. The rise was due
solely to the newly added marketing bucinece of the BAST business unit. At €5 2 million, eamings before
interest and tax (EBIT) for the Agri Trade & Service business unit were €205 million [ower year on year in 2018
and fell significantly short of expectations. This decline in eamings was due in particular to the substantial drop
in volume in agricultural inputs_ Adjusted for the activities added from the BAST business unit. lower volume
was also s2en in the produce business, Furthermore, a significant rise in logistics costs due to low-water
surcharges and a lack of drying income weighed down eamings.

Global Produce business unit

The Global Produce business unit (formerly: Fruit) saw inconsistent development in 2018, While sales
increased in infernational frui trading. domestic dessert pome fruit trading volume tell significantly. Overall, the
BayWa Group’'s fruit sales increased by just under 1% year on year to 351,843 tonnes in 2018. The primary
raason for the slight increase was the roughly 15% rize in apple and pear marketing volume attributable to the
New Zealand Group company T&G Global. Sales of soft fruil, stone fruit and tropical frult, which primarily
benefited from a riee in volume at the Dutch eubsidiary TFC, increased in 2018, By contrast, dessert pome fruit
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volume was down more than 53% year on year in Germany due to the poor harvest in 2017, Consegquently,
BayWa's domestic fruit operations were forced to introduce short time from January to July 2018, Al told,
because internaticnal business growth more than compensated for the drop in domestic volume, the Global
Produca business unit's ravenues increased slightly by 0.3% 1o €807.9 million in 2078, as forecast Earnings
before interest and tax (EBIT) were down by €2.2 million year on year to €27 2 million in 2018 and were
therefore lower than expected. One reason for the decline was the negative impact of the trade conflict
between the US and China on the positive development of T&G Global's international activities. As a result of
the Chinese impaort duties on US appies, the fruil earmarked for export remained in the American market,
which was correspendingly oversupplied and characterised by low prices. Moreover, the eamings contribution
from the German fruit business was lower in 2018 due toa lack of marketing volume in the first haif of the vear.

Agricultural Equipment business unit

BayWa's agricultural equipment business, with the core Fendt and CLAAS brands, benafited in 2018 from an
increased willingness to invest, particutarly in the dairy industry (due to adeguate milk prices) and among
winegrowers and fruit farmers (due to good harvests). A targeted expansion of the product range also
contributed to this development. For example, the product portfolio was expanded to include Holder system
vehicles, Fendt forage harvesters and Caterpillar skid steer loaders, helping fuel an increase in market share in
the domestic sales regions. The introduction of a new John Deere series also resulted in significantly increased
demand in Austria. As expected, BayWa saw particularty strong growth in the tractor business. Whereas the
used aquipmant business fell by 6.0% in 2018 to 1.760 tractors, BayWa sold 31.6% more new machines than in
the previous year. At 4,815 new tractors, the Group fall just short of the previous record sat in 2013, A portlon of
these sales was due to tha very mild weather untlt the end of 2018, which led many customers to take receipt of
the new machinery they had ordered ahead of schedule. The increase in new machinery sales also lad to
cormesponding rises in revenues in the service business and in spare parts sales. In the international business,
the Dutch Group company Agrimec in particular recordcd very positive development. The Agricultural
Equipment business unit generated total revenues of €1,622.4 million in 2018, which equates to a year-on-year
increase of 15.9%. Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) saw disproportionate growth in relation to revenues
of 83.9% to €35.6 million, setting a new record high and significantly exceeding expectations.

Owerall, the Agriculture Segment’s grain and oilseed handling volume was down just under 1% year on year
1o 33,1 miltien tonnes in the financial year 2018, The segmeant’s revenues increased slightly by 1.7% to
€11,015.8 million. Earings before interest and tax {EBIT) improved significantly by €18.1 million to

€100.1 million. As a result, revenues and earnings developed as forecast on the whole despite some
developments to the contrary in the individual business umts.

Energy Segment

Market and industry development 2018719

Development of renewable energies

In 2018, global investments in renswabie energies stood at USD332.1 billion, a decline of 8% year on year,
investments in solar energy fell by 24% to USOA30.8 billion, prnimarily due to the decreasing cost of investing in
solar systems and the reversal of Chinese solar policy mid-year, By contrast. global investments inwind energy
increasad by 3% to USDI128.6 billion, USDI00.B billlon of which was attributable to onshore wind projects
{(BNEF, Clean Energy Investment Trends 2018},

Given a further increase in installed capacity, global investments in renewable enargies are expected to ba on
par with the previous year or slightly Iower in 2012 due to the constant decline in the cost of investment (BENEF,
Predictions for 2019).

Approximately 48.5 GW of onshore wind power was installed in 2018, corresponding to an increase of 2.5%. As
in the previous year, more than half of these capacities were added In the Asia-Pacific region. North and Central
Amarica accounted for 26%. while Evrope, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA) together accounted for 23%.

By country, China leads the pack. accounting for 20 GW and 40% of total expansion, followed by the US with

B GW and a share of T79%. As a resull, investments were stagnant in the US following a significant decline in the
previous year on account of the political situation. With an increasa of 3 GW, Garmany accounted for roughly
7% of global growth, whereas France accounted for roughly 1GW, or 3%. Compared to the previous year

(5 GW), expanzion was therefore significantly lower in Germany (BNEF, Global Wind Market Outtook, 04 2018).
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Business performance

The Renewabile Energies business unit once again saw highly positive development In 2078 and fully executed
the project developments and sales planned for the year as a whole. Completed systems with an instailed
capacity of 453.0 MW in total (2077: 474.5 MW) were sold, theraby setting a new record. Eleven free-standing
solar power plants with a total cutput of 324.0 MW were soid. In Spain. Don Rodrigo was built and sold in 2018,
With an cutput of 174 4 MW, the project is BayWa r.e.'s largest solar power piant to date, and the first one that
is not dependent on any government subsidies. The other national marksts in which plants were sold in the
reporting year were the US (48.0 MW), France (41.2 MW), the Netherlands (30.7 MW} and the United Kingdom
(29,7 MW). In addition, BayWa r.e. installed a total of 14 roof solar systems on industrial bulldings in various
Eurapean countries. Six wind power plants with a total output of 116.7 MW were sold: of those, 18.5 MW was
accounted for by the United Kingdom, 16.2 MW by Germany and 10.3 MW by France. Furthermore, project
rights for wind farms with an cutput of 8.3 MW were soid in Austria; and a wind farm with an cutput of

23.4 MW was built and handed over to the owner in Sweden. Sales also included a blogas plant with 7.4 MW of
electrical output in Germany and a piant with 4.9 MW in the United Kingdom. BayWa r.e. will also assume
rezponsibility for the commercial and technical management and maintenance of most of thesa plants going
forward. The service business was further expanded by opening a new control centre for solar and wind power
plants in Bangkok, Thailand. Worldwide, the total piant capacity under the management of BayWa r.e. grew to
over 5.7 GW in 2018, tharaby nearly doubling compared to the previous year's figure of 3.0 GW. In the
photovoltaic module trade, sales in the reparting year increased Dy just over 28% {0 544,71 megawatl peak
powar output (MWR) due, in particutar, 10 newly added locations in Europe, South America and the Asia-Pacific
region. The collaboration agreements with German public utilities companies on the marketing of PV storage
systems and components also contributed to the increase in sales. In the reporting year, the increasa in the
Renewable Energies business unit’s revenues resuited largely from the acguisition of Clean Enengy Sourcing
(CLENS) in December 2017, which pushed green electricily direct marketing volume up to 2,135 MW. All told.
revenucs increased by 12.0% in 2018 to €1.530.2 million. Following €56.6 million in the previous year, carnings
before interest and tax (EBIT) reached a new high of £72.5 million in the reporting year, This incresse was
primarily due to a rise in project sales and the growth in the service business,

In 2018. the conventional energy business was influenced by the almost consistently higher price of oil com-
pered to 2077. Due primarily to this factor, the business unit's revenues increased by 9.4% to €2.438.3 million
in the reporting year. Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) set a record of £23.5 million in 2018 and were up
27.0% year on year, The main reason behind this rise was improved margins in the fuel business. Rivers' low
water levels and the stoppage at the Bayernoil refinery in Vohburg, Garmany, in the second half of the year lad
to a tense supply situation and markad price increases in Germany. In this emvironment, the BayWa Group was
able to benefit from long-term supply contracts and its own logistics fleet. Overall, Group fusl sales Increased
by 12.8% year on year, remaining within the forecast range. increased diese sales played the main role in this
growth due to supply activities for construction sites, commercial enterprises and farmers. The acceptance of
additional filling stotion cards ot BayWa filling stations also had a positive cffect on the flcet business with
freight forwarders. Sales of heating oil fell as expected by 8.7% as a result of price-related reluctance to buy
among consumers and for structurally related reasons. As forecast, ssles volumes of wood pellets increased
further and rose by 1.4%; volume growth was already well above the market average (n tha presious yaar,
BayWa was also able 10 acguire new properties in the heat contracting business in 2018; as part of a public
tender, for example, the Group succeeded in winning a 20-year contract to provide local haating to an Industrial
ectate in Krailling, Germany. Lubricant sales fell by 2.3% due to the initial slowdown in economic growth,
thereby disappointing expectations of a slight increase.

At €3,968 4 million, the Energy Segment’s total revenues for the financial year 2018 were up year on year by

£373.7 million. Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) incressed by 12.9% to €95.0 million, thereby setting a
new record,
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Assets, Financial Position and Earnings Position of the BayWa Group

Asset position

Composition of assets

o= —
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The risa in non-current assets from €2.396.9 million to €2.476.9 million in the financial year 2018 was primarily
due to the addition of intangible assets in the Renawable Energies business unit, which acquired the
GroenLeven Group, the leading project develaper for solar power plants in the Netherlands, in the first haif of
2018. Foliowing preliminary purchase price allocation, this acquisition led to the capitalisation of the acquired
companies’ brand name in the amount of €21.3 million and to the sddition of goodwill in the amount of

€55.7 million.

The modernisation and expansion of the Group's network of locations led to investments in land and buildings
in the ameunt of €31.9 million, which were offset by the sale of orchards for the cultivation of kiwi fruits in New
Zealand and the sale of locations no longer required m the amount of €257 million. Taking into sccount the
depreciation of butldings in the amount of €35.0 million, the Dook value of Land and bulldings at the Group fall
by €27.4 million to €827.2 million. The reduction in technical facilities and machinery was attributable to the
sale of production sites in New Zealand for the processing of fruit, among other factors, along with investments
for tha purpose of repair and maintenance in the amount of €233 million 2nd depreciation in the amount of
€35.1 million. By contrast, prepayments and assets under construction increased as part of the construction of
a greenhouse for tomato cultivation in the Uinited Arab Cmirates. Investments in the modernisation of the
vehicle fleet additionally led to an increase in dures and office equipment. Overall, additions to property, plant
and equipment associated with investment activities in the amount of €155 4 million was offset by depreciation
in the amount of €300.2 million. Disposals of property, plant and equipment stood at €62.0 million in tha
financial year. Together with the reciassification of lang and buildings o assets held for sale. as well as
exchange rate differences, property, plant and equipment fiell year on year by €3.0 million, from

€1,408.9 million to €1,399.9 million.

The €28.1 million decling in financial assets was attributable in particular 1o credit batances with cooperatives,
which were down €30.8 million year on year due primarily to the lower market value of the shares in Raiffeizen
Bank International AG, Vienna, Austria, compared to the financial year 2017, At £214.6 million, shares in
companies recognised at equity were on par with the previous year.

Investment property was down €2.7 million vear on year due to the reclassification of land and buildings to
assets held for sale and stood at €38.2 million. Non-current liabilities and other assets declined by €57 million,
whereas deferred tax assels were up by €18.1 milllon.

Current assets fell by €953.0 million year on year, or 23.4%, totalling €5,030.4 milllon at the end of the
reporting period. Along with a significant €586 8 million rise in invantories, the Group also recorded a

28 BayWa AG Consolidsted Financial Staternenis 2018



Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0 Management Report - Financial Report

€191.0 million increase in trade recenables and a €174 8 million increase in other curment assats. The main
reason for the increase in unfinished goods lies in the business aclivities in the Renewabiles Energies busingss
unit, where projects that had yet to be completed had to be disclosed as inventories at the end of the year. As a
result, the valua of unfinizhed goods and sarvices - almast antiraly project-driven - stood at €844 9 milllon,
corresponding to a3 €366.8 million year-on-year Increase. By contrast, the €221.4 million rise in finished
services and merchandise was attributsbie to a variety of segments. In particular, the Agri Trade & Service,
BAST and Agricultural Eguipment business units reported a year-on-year increase of inventories at the end of
the year. Barring slight positive and/or negative deviations, finished goods and services in the Global Produce,
Conventional Energy, Renewable Energies and Bullding Materials business units were on par with the prior
vear. The rise in trade receivables was due to the business parformance in the final quarter. In particular, the
project sales in the Renewable Energies business unit at the end of the year, 25 well as the agricultural
equipment and comeentional energy business, contributed to an increase in said receivables. The increasein
othar current assets was due to the heghar positive market values from derbeatives in the BAST group year on
year, a3 well as the year-on-year rise In other assets, especially in the Renewable Energies business unit.

By contrast. receivables from income taxes decreased by €19.9 million to €54.2 million, with non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale slso declining by €2.5 millicn to €4.2 million. As at the reporting date,
this item predominantly contained real estate inventories, which are intendead to be sold in the subsaquent year,

BayWa places an amphasks on ensuring matching maturities in the financing of assets. Current Labitities of
€4,047.7 million — consisting of current financial debt, trade payables, financial liabilities, tax, other Gabilities
along with current provisions and liabilities from disposal groups - were offset by current assets and assets
heid for sale/disposal groups of €5,030.4 million. By the same foken, thare is roughly 140% coverage for non-
current assets amounting to €2.476.% mitlion through eguity and long-term borrowing of €3, 463.8 million.
Ensuring matched maturitics in financing is an important gquality criterion for the financing partners of BayWa in
the context of raising short-term funds.

Financial position

Financial management

The aim of financial management within the BayWa Group is to provide the cash and cash equivalants required
for the purpose of conducting regular business at all times. This task includes hedging against interest rate risk,
currency risk and merchandise-related market risks by using suitable dervative instruments.

Forward exchange transactions and swaps are used selectively to hedge receivables and liabilities denominat-
ed in a foreign currency, These forward exchange transactions and swaps serve exclusively to hedge existing
and future recedvables and liabilities from underlyings in the purchase and sale of merchandise within the scope
of customnary business operations. Hedging transactions in the BayWa Group are designed to reduce the risks
asseciated with fluctuating exchange rates, The volume of open pesitions arising from the respective under-
Ilyings and the resulting cash flows form the basis for currency hedges. Terms reflect thoze of the underlyings,

Within the BayWa Group, financial management has been set up as a service centre for the operating units and
not as a profit centre in its own right. In accordance with this conservative approach to providing services, the
use of fungible financial products to generate original profit contribution in Ainancial operations has been
wahved, In particular, there ara no speculative risk positions in our financial oparations.

Day-to-day financial management ks facused on liquidity management through cash pooling within the whole
Group and the same-day provision of liguidity. Corporate Treasury uses suitable IT systemns and sppropriate
traasury managemant software for this purpose.

The procurement of funds is organsed centrally, with the excaption of the activities in New Zeatand, the
Metherlands and Eastern Europe. Corporate Treasury is respensible for the centratised monitoring of Group-
wide financial exposures.

Financisl management is subject to the most stringent reguirements imposed by an intermal control system,
which includes the documentation of transactions, a hierarchy of approval and resolution procedures,
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comprahensive application of the principle of dual control as well as the segregation of Treasury front, middie
and back offices.

The mast impartant financing principle of the BayWa Group consists in observing the principla of matching
maturities. Short-term debt is used to finance the working capital. Investments in property, plant and
equipment. as well a5 acgquisitions, are funded from eguity, bonded loans and other long-term loans. This
includes issued bonded loans, long-term [oans from banks and associated companies as well as the hybrid
bond issued in October 20717, Capital market measures replace financing from short-term credit lines, but
without clearing or terminating them, and therefore diversify the refinancing portfolio,

In addition, the project companies in the Renewable Energies business unit have access to separate non-
recourse financing (without the lenders having access to the BayWa Group’s assets and cash flows).

The management of working capital is a focal point at BayWa and comprises the optimisation of working capital
as a net figure for current assets less current liabilities. For years, BayWa has placed great importance on the
best possible working capital performance. Furthemmore, a Group-wide project 1o further oplimise working
capital management began in 20M3. The aim of the project is to continue to drive forward the ongoing reduction
of the current assets deployed within the company and the resulling relsase of lguidity without jeopardising the
company's profitability, Consistent process management along the entire turnover chain is the key to success.
To this end, working capital responsibilities have besn redefinad, the systematic inclusion of relevant
parameters has bean anchored in internal reporting systems, specific training and coaching programmes have
been-carried out and existing guicelines and process descriptions have been adaptad.

Interest rate risks inherent in short-term debt are covered by BayWa in the context of its risk management
through the usc of simple derivative nstruments. Long torm interest rates were hodgod naturally by i5suing
bonded loans in 2018, 2015 and 2014, as both fixed-interest and variable-interest rate tranches were issued and
the Interest rate risk was reduced as a result, The fived coupon of the hybrid bond that was issued led to an
increase in the hedge ratio by means of natural hedging.

Around 50% of the total borrowmng portfolio is to be secured against interest rate risk through the respective
hedging instruments. This partial hedging takes account of the strong, seasonally induced fluctuations in
financing requirements.

BayiWa evolved from the cooperatives sactor, with which it remains closely connectad through its shareholder
structure, as well as through the congruent regional interests of the cooperative banking sector and
commerce. These historical ties form the bagis for a special kind of mutual trust. Particularly in the face of the
great uncerkainty still prevailing in the financial markets. both sides benefit from this partnership. The
coopcrative banks boast a particutary strong primany customcr and deposit portfolio, which i madc availablc
for the preferential financing of stable business models.

Along with its integration into the cooparative financial association, the broad transnational diversification of tha
bank portfolio @nd the financial instruments, in particular, lower the financing risk within the BayWa Group.

Capital structure
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Cach flow from investing activities decreased year on year by €182.5 million following cash outflow of

€243.0 million in the reporting year. Paymants for company acquisitions came to €144.8 million (2077:

€21.5 million} and can mainly be attributed to the acquisition of the GroenLewen Group in the Renswable
Enargies business unil. In the financial year 2018, investments of €212 4 million were mada in intangible assats,
property, plant and equipment, and financial assets (2017: €248 8 million), which were offset by incoming
payments from the disposal of intangible assets, property. plant and equipment, and financial assets of

€104.3 million {2077: £198.5 million). Furthermore, the dividend received, other income assumed and interest
received lad to cash inflows of €4.4 million (2017 £9.2 million),

Cash flow from financing activities in the financial year 2018 stood at €710.8 million and was attributable in
particular to the issuing of 3 BayWa bonded loan in the amount of €203.0 million and the assumption of further
borrowing to finance project business in the Renewable Energies business unit. This was offset by cash
outflows from dividend payments at BayWa AG and its subsidaries totalling €58 2 million, as well as interest
payments of €20.9 millicn.

In an overall anatysis of the cash flow from operating activities, investment and financing activities. and in
consideration of changes to the group of consolidated companies and changes in foreign exchange rates; cash
outflow from operating activities and investment activities was fully compensatad by the incoming cash flow
from financing activities. As a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period came to
€120.8 million, which was €157 million higher than in the previous year,

Financial base and capital requirements

The BayWa Group's financial base is replenishad by funds from the short-term dabt for working capital and by
furds from operating activities. Investment financing and the ongoing financing of operations hawe a consider-
able impact on the capital requirements of BayWa &G, os do the repayment of financiol liabilitics and ongoing
interest payments. The ovarall view of Biguidity and debt is determined through the calculation of adjusted net
liquidity or net debt and used for intermal financial management as well as for external communication with
financial investors and analysts. Net Gguidity and net debt is calculated from the sum total of cash and cash
equivalents less bank debt and cutstanding loans. as reported in the batance sheet.

Along with short-term borrowing, the Group finances itself by way of a mulfi-currency Commercial Paper
Programme, which received its most recent top up of €500.0 mitlion in 2077, taking it to a total volume of
€1.000.0 million. As at the balance sheat date, securities ware issued in various currencies in the amount of
€625.0 million {20717: €318.5 million) with an average weighted residual tarm of 58 days (2017- 45 days). At the
end of the reporting period, €£154.9 million (2017: €111.8 million) in receivables had been financed at their
nominat value from the ongoing Asset-Backed Securitisation Programme.

Investments

In the financial year 2018, the BayWsa Group invested a total of €202.0 million in intangible assets (€43.5 mil-
lion) and property. plant and equipment (€158.5 million) in addition to its acgquisitions (2017: €179.5 million),
The investments made in the financial year 2078 were primarily for the purposa of repair and maintenance of
buildings. facilittes {in construction) and office fixtures and fittings, as modem locations and seamiessly
operating facilities ane a precondition for efficlent logistics processas,

BayWa will continue to invest in modern site infrastructure in future, This includes investrments in land and
buildings, wherever such Investments are expedient and prudent. By contrast, real estate no longer used for
operations is consistently sold off. The proceeds accruing from these transactions are used to reduce debt or
to finance the Group's growth.

Including company acquisitions, roughly 43.3% of 1otal investments in non-current assets at the BayWa Group
were accounted for by the Energy Segmant, where the lion’s share was attributable to the Renewable Energies
businass unit. The acquisition of the Groenl even Group had a particular impact in this regard. Aside from the
atorementioned sagment, 28 3% of imestments were atirbutable to the Agriculture Segment. with B.3% going
o the Building Materials Segment, and 2. 3% earmarked for the Innovation & Degitalisation Segment. The
remaining 16.8% are accounted for by investments in Other Activities,
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Earnings position
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The revenues of the BayWa Group rose by 3. 6%, or €570.6 miltion, to €16 625.7 million in the financial year
2018. The sharpest rise in revenues was recorded in the Energy Segment. with the Renewable Energies
business unit growing by €163.5 million to €1,530.2 million and the Conventional Energies business unit by
€210.2 million to €2 438.3 million. The Agriculture Segment also delivered a rise in revenues. This increase was
due to two opposing developments: while revenues were up €485.9 mallicn to €3,298.8 million in the Agri
Trade & Service business unit and were up €222.1 mallion to €1,622 4 million in the Agricultural Equipment
business unit, revanues in the BAST business unit were down €531.0 million and stood at €5,286.8 million in
the financial year 2018, At €807.9 million, revenues in the Global Produce business unit were on par with the
previous year. Revenues weare up slightly in the Buillding Materials Segment and stood at €1,677.5 million,
equating toa €11.4 million increase year on year, A slight increase in revenues was 8iso achisved in the
innovation & Digitalisation Segment (€38 million) and in Other Activities (€2 2 million).

Other operating income increased by a total of €4.4 million in the reporting year to €211.3 million. Along with
higher income from the release of provisions in the amount of £25.8 million (2017; €14.2 miilion). the main
drivers of this development were write-ups in the amount of €7.0 million attributable to two wind farms in the
Renewable Energies business unil and increased price gains in the amount of €14.2 million (2077: €9.7 million).
By contrast. gains from the dispossl of assets decreased by €18.7 million to €43 4 mitlion in the financial year
2018, In the previous year, the Group benafited in this regard from one-off incoma related to the sale of the
BayWa high-rise. At €6 6 million, the reversal of value adjustmeants on receivables and receivables written down
was also down year on year (2017: €13.0 million).

The €217.0 million increase in inventories recorded in the financial year can be attributed in particular to the
wind and solar cnergy projects in the ficlds of rencwablc cnergics not yet compicted in the finencial yoar 2018.

Along with the increase In revenues. the cost of materials also increased. rising by €79 4 million, or 5.5%.
Gross profit reconded an improvement of €£104.2 million, or 5.8%. to €1,883.1 million,

Personnel expenses climbed year on year by 5.8%. or €54.4 millien, to €920.6 million. This was largely a result
of the business activities of the companies acquired the previous year, which were [ncluded in full for the first
time In the reporting year, but alsoe the company acquisitions In the financial year 2018 itself as well as the
further expansion of business activities in the Renewable Energles business unit

At €599 .0 million, other operating expenses were up by €28.9 miltion, or 5.7%, on the previous year's figure of
€570.1 million in the financial year 2018. Other operating expenses primarily consisted of vehicle fleet costs in
the amount of €845 (2017; €79.5 million); rental and leasing costs of £66.3 million (2017 £56.5 million);
malntenance expenses of €55.8 million (2077; €54.6 million); advertising expenses of €51.2 million

{2017: €46.2 miltion); consultancy, auditing and legal fees of €47.4 miilion (2017: €49.8 million); and other
expenses of €68.4 million (2047: £€70.3 miilion),

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amartisation (EBITDA) fell by €3.1 million. or 1.0%. to
£315.3 millicn in the financial year 2018 (2017: €318.4 million).
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Scheduled depreciation and amortisation at the BayWa Group cecreased by €4.3 million, or 9%, to
€142.9 million in the reporting year. This decrease was caused by unscheduled value adjustments that were
primarily attributable to intangible assets in the previous year.

All in all, the BayWa Group's earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) rose by €1.7 million, or 0.6%. to
€172 .4 million in the financial year 20718.

The financial resull comprises income from participating interests, which is allocated to EBITDA and EBIT,
and-nel interest. At €15.8 million, income fram participating interests was significantly lower in the reporting
vear than the €399 milllon seen in the previous yvear. Whereas the equity resull increased by €85 million to
€9.0 million — due primarily o the positive effect attributable to the development of earnings at AHG-
Autohandelsgeselischaft mbH and AUSTRIA JUICE GmibH - other income from participating interests fiell by
€306 miliion to €5.8 miilion, In the previous year, other income from participating intarests incliuded income
from the sale of shares in Raiffeisen Bank international AG. Vienna, Austria. Due to high net interest resulting
fram an increase in financial liabilites, net interest deteriorated by €10.9 million, totalling a batance of minus
€79.8 million (2077 minus €68.9 million).

The BayWa Group's earnings bafore tax (EBT) decreased by €9.8 million, or 8.6%, to €926 million. The
increases of €15.4 million in the Agriculture Segment, €62 million in the Energy Segment and €1.0 millionin
tha Buitding Materials Segment stood in contrast to a deciine in the Innovation & Digitalisation Segment (minus
€1.8 million). The Other Activities Sepment, together wath the consolidation effects presented in the transition,
had a negative impact on the development of earnings before tax (EBT). These came to minus €55.4 million in
the reporting year, down by €30.6 millicn on the previous year's figure of minus €24 8 million.

income tax cxpensc for the BayWa Group amounted to €37.7 million in the financial ycar 20138, which
cormasponds 1o a year-on-year increase of €2.6 million. The tax rate therefore amounted 1o 40.7% in the
reporting year (2017: 34.3%),

Taking income tax inte account, the BayWa Group genersted net income of €54.9 million in the financial year
2018, a year-on-year decrease of 18.4% (2017: €£67.2 million). The share in profit due to shareholders of the
parent company decreased by 17.8% from €39.3 million in the previous year to €32.3 million in the reporting
year

Earnings per share (EPS), which is calculated from the portion of the result attributable to the shareholders of
the parent comgpany in relation to the average number of shares outstanding of 35,012 808 (dividend-bearing
shares ess treasury shares), fedl from €1.13 in the previous year to 82 cents for the financial year 2018

Comparison of forecast business development with actual business development

& noticeable overall rise in revenies and a stable or slightly positive development in earnings in the financial
year 2018 were forecast for the BayWa Group in the Outlook section of the 2017 Group Management Report. On
account of the outlined developments in the business units, revenues at Group level rose by 3.6% and
therefore fall somewhat short of expectations. Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) increased by 0.6%,
therefore developing within the scope of the forecast.

Agriculture Segment

A significant increase in revenues ant a substantial improvemeant in earmings were forecast for the BAST
businass unit in 2018. The business unit’s revenues fell by 9.1%. and earnings before interest and tax (EBIT)
improved by €24.1 million to €311 million. Both figures therefore confirm the forecast.

The Agri Trade & Service business unit was expected o see a substantial rise in revenues and a significant
improvement in earnings in 2018, The business unit's revenues rose by 17.3%. of just under £485 million,
therefore living up to the forecast. By contrast, eamnings before interest and tax (EBIT) fell sharply. contrary 1o
expectations. At €5.2 million, the business unit’s EBIT was down €20.5 million year on year.
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the processes. IS0 certifications for the standardisation of workflows and for risk avoidance, as well as the
conclusion of insurance policies, supplement the Group’s management of risk.

Moreover, BayWa Group has establizhed binding goals and a code of conduct in its corporate policy and ethical
principles as well as the Code of Conduct which have been implemented throughout the Group. They regulate
individual employee actions when applying the corporale values as well 35 their fair and responsible conduct
towards suppliers. customers and colisagues,

Structure of opportunity and risk management within BayWa Group

GROUP BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

ANNUAL CORPORATE CONTROLLING RISK REPORT

Consolidation and verification of risks
identity entiy ety ity iganitify
SSLEES assekt FEieEs assens FLSETE
classiy clag sy chassify classity ciassily
report report report repart report
Risk officers Risk officers Risk officers Risi officers Risk officers
AGRICULTURE ENERGY BUILDING INNOVATION & ADMINISTRATION
MATERIALS DIGITALISATION
BayWa Group

At the BayWa Group, opportunity and risk management is an integral component of the planning and manage-
ment and control processes. A comprehensive risk management system based on the Garman Control and
Transparency in Business Act (KonTraG) records and monitors both the developrment of the Growp and any
existing weak points on an angoing basis. The rsk management system covers all segments and is included as
a key component of reporting. A particularly iImportant task of risk managemant is to guarantee that risks to the
Grodp as a going concern ane identified and kept to a minimum, This enables the management of Group
companies to react swiftly and effectively. All units have risk officers and risk reporting officers who are
responsible for implementing the reporting process.

A key component of the opportunity and risk management set-up is the Risk Board, which has been in place
sinca the financial year 2009, Presided over by the Chief Executive Officer, the Risk Board, which consists of
operations managers and support staff, meets regularly to discuss and assess operating opportunities and
rigks. Minuted meetings are used to develop an understanding of the opportunities and risks and form the basis
of the measure of risk applied to operational decisions.
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Rizks Dpportunities
Rigk Opportunity
ciassification ¥/y change classification ¥/y change
Market risks & apporiunities
Sales markst significant reducad material ncreassd
Procursmant significant increased Imermaterial constant
Competition considarable increased mimaterial constant
Image noticeabis Increased irmarrustess ol constant
Prica suibstantiad Increased rraterial conciant
Loss of customers i Increased # /
Operating risks & opportunitiss
Sales noticeabibe increased miskerial moreased
Environmental impact sighificant refuced marmaaberind constart
Priochsstion nodticmabls incraanm Immnateriad ennstant
Inaniory nodicess reducad materia CONETANL
Product guality considerable increased malerial mcreasad
Case of damage fticeabls reducad 4 r
Project considerabis reduced mmatriad constant
Rislcs periaining to orgenisstionsl struciure B workdiow
T sigrificant increased irmirveated |l constant
Ouzadity sipnificant reduced imarTaateriad constant
Personnel considerable reduced mmaberial constant
Organisation considersbie reducad momateriad constant
Financisl risks & opportunithes
Financisd market considarsbis reducad lmrmugteiak constant
Group companies low reduced it lal constani
Default on recelvables congiderabie reduced 4 F
Interest o constant irmunuaterial constant
Licpsicity naticeabls increaced rmwrraborial coanelant
Currency nliceable incroased vt lal constant
Taxes naticashie incraased 4 i
Strategic rizks & opporiunities
‘Corporate stratogy considerable reduced mmaberial constant
Irnestrments lind feducad arrarTatet il conttant
Acquisitions & disposats low Increased imirnatediad constant
Market developmant notlceable recuced lmimatesial constant
Innovation & technology noficeabls reduced matesial recuceqd
Legal Fisks K oPportLnities
Contracis naticeabis reduced &
Changes in legislation significant increased Imrmaterial constant
Liabiiity & insurance low increasad ¥,
Violations of the Law snibes b sl incredsed F
Compliance risks & opportunities
Cow T gl Tiaud raiceabie Iendaced r
Product safstly /slandards low reduced '
Data protection low reduced '
Compliance with laws & guidelines significant increasod ’ )

Risk classfication (polential mpiications on parmings | aocording 1o axpected value of damages

Assessment of the cpportunities

low = # L0 emilllion Craalitative classfication / Calegorisation into “maferial”
noticeshis = 3 £2.5 rdlion #nd “irmmaterial”
Consites ahie = 3 €50 milllicn

significant = £ {100 rmallfiion

subsiantal = = 100 rraltliion
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Legalrisks

Group companies are and will continue to be facad with legal disputes and proceadings in retation to thalr
operating business activities. These can, for examptle, relate to the assertion of claims based on services
and deliveries that are not up to standard or to payment disputes. This may tead to individual Group
companies having to pay compensation or financial penaities or being imposed with other civil or criminal
sanctions. The Group's business activities in more than 40 countries means that its companies can also be
exposed to political and legal risks to a small extent. Accordingly, legally existing claims of the Group could
ultimately not be enforceable due to weak state structures of underdeveloped legal systems. These risks
are continuoustly monitored by comesponding speciziist areas of the Group.

BayWa formes provisions for legal and litigation risks if the occurrence of an obligation is probable and the
amount can be adequately estimated. In individual cases, actual utilization may exceed the amount of the
provisions. Tha Board of Managemant balieves that suitable provisions have been accounted fior.

Changes to the regulatory emvironment can influence Group development. in particutar, this includes
government intervention in the general framework conditions for the agricultural industry and the renewable
energies business. Negative impacts emanate from the adjustment, redection or abolition of funding measures.
Conversely, new regulatory and legeslative developments influencing bicenergy can also resull in opportunities.
In the construction sector, changes to building or fiscal regulations may also have an impact on the
development of business.

Piant efficiency in terms of enargy generation using renswable energy carmiers is strongly reliant on regulatory
frameworks and government subsidies. Politically motivated changes to subsidy parameters, in particular the
retroactive cuts to or abolition of feed-in tariffs, can significantly impact the value of such facilities: either in the
form of lower future disposal griccs or lower cash inflows from the operation of the facilitics. BayWa combats
the potential implications of such risks on earnings by pursuing a threefolo diversification strategy inits
Renewable Energies business unit. The portfolio is diversified in terms of countries, energy carriers and
business units (projects and service on the one hand, and trading on the olher).

As a result of the financial crisis in 2008, a whole senes of new laws were introduced to increase regulation of
the financial market. Derivative markets were a particular focal point of these measures. In addition, efforts
were taken st 2 European level to limit speculative trading in the raw materials and, in particular, agricultural
sectors. Of thés significant number of new regulations, the European Market Infrastructure Regutation (EMIR)
and the revision of the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MIFID 1l) are particularty relevant to BayWa's
business activities. Trading on the Chicago Board of Trade (CBoT) is subject to the US regulations of the Com-
modity Exchange Act (CEA), which are monitored by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC).
Besides additional costs, these new regulations also increase the risk of violating new rules. Compliance with
all financial regulatory measurcs is guarantced in a cost cfficicnt manncr by the opcration of a Group widc risk
management software program on every trading day.

Strategic risks and opportunities

Through its strategical development into a provider of integrated solutions. the Bay\Wa Group is expanding its
role in the value chain and entaring the project business more strongly. The resources necessary for the design
and development of such solutions vary gignificantty in type and ecope depending on the segment. in the Global
Produce business unit, for example, there is a risk that the investments reqguired within the context of vegetable
cultivation in climate-controlled greenhouses could exceed their planned imeestment volume. BayWa also
operates as a project developer within the scope of the Renewable Energies business unit. This business
activity also harbours certain risks, for instance, that the planning and building of solar power plants, wind farms
8nd biogas plants are delayed and that they may be connected to the grid later than originaily planned. In such
cases, |f the deadline for the further rediuction in feed-in tariffs is not adhered to, thers is a risk that the low
feed-In and etectricity income could result in the profitability of the projects being lower than planned,

Risks and opportunities of the organisational structure and workflow

Inthe area of organisational structure and workflow, the BayWa Group differentiates between a number of
different risk types that are described separately in the following.
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Agricultural Equipment business unit are expected to deciine significantty in 2018, The decline in sales will
likely have a negative impact on earmings. In addition, considerable cost increases are (o be expected, in
particular as a result of higher standard wages. International activities and the service business are also unlikely
to fully reach the axceptionally high earnings level of 2018. Considering thesa conditions, tha Agricultural
Equipment business unit’s eamings before interest and tax (EBIT) in 2019 are expected to fall significantly short
of the record level set in 2018.

On the whole, BayWa anticipates a slight revenue growth and a significant rise in the earmnings before interest
and tax (EBIT) in the Agriculture Segment in financial year 2019 on the basis of anticipated developments in the
individual business units.

Outlook for the Energy Segment

The Renewable Energies business unit will continue on ite growth in 2019, Overall, the commissioning and
turbine/plant sales project pipeting in the areas of wind energy, solar enargy and bioenergy currently totals
approximately 660 MW for 2015, OF this amount, approcmatety 409 MW is aitributable to solar plants,
approximately 250 MW to wind turbines and approximately 1 MW to bicenergy projects. The focus of solar
activities will b on new projects in the US, Malaysia, the Netherlands and Germany. In the Netherlands, growth
will primarily be driven by GroenLeven, the project development company for solar plants acguired in March
2018, with a project pipeline for solar parks of more than 2 GW, Activities retating to wind turbines are mainly
centrad on the US, laly, the UK. France, Austria, Australia, Croatia and Germany. In terms of bioenergy, three
plants in Germany are up for sale in 2019, The focus here is on the repowering of existing plants. consultancy
and services as well as the management of raw materiats. In service, the opening of a new control cantre for
the operation of solar and wind ptants in autumn 2018 in Bangkok, Thailand, will contribute to sales and
earnings throughout 2018 and to the further expansion of business in the Asia-Pacific region. Trading in
photovoltaic components should benefit from rising demand for new system solutions and falling prices for
photovoltsic modules. In addition, the market entry in Mexico in September 2018 and the expansion of activities
in Spain with a new location in Madrid are having a positive effect, In energy trading, strong growth is expected
in the direct marketing of green siectricity. Direct marketing agreements with a total capacity of 3.270 MW nag
already been signed at the beginning of 2019, representing an increase of more than 50% compared with 2018,
In view of the as yet unknown conseguences of the UK's departure from the EU, the insignificant volume of
business in this unit means that no significant effects on this business unit are 1o be expectad. The Renewable
Energies business unit’s revenues are expected to significantly increase, primarily due to growth in the direct
marketing of green electricity, the expansion in trading with photovoltaic components and the solid project
pipeline. Eamings before interest and tax (EBIT) in 2012 are likely to be significantly higher than the level
recorded in 2018. The sale of BayWa r.e.'s biomethane trading business in February 2019 will also contribute to
this.

Inthe Conventional Energy business unit. the low leved of inventories in heating oil in the previous year could
animate a renewal in demand. In additicn, BayWa's own vehicla fleat offers new opportunities in terms of
delivery |logistics for third parties due to the increase in boltienecks in the forwarding industry. Sales of wood
pellets are lkely to rise due to the increased number of instalied pellat heaters and the year-round availability
of the marketing guantities of the new WUN Energie GmibH pellet plant. The sales volume of fusis is expected
to continue to grow as a result of the increasing acceptance of the BayWa fuel card and the expansion of diesel
delivery logistics. The most important target groups for BayWa in this regard are the agricultural and construc-
tion industriss, meaning that any potential driving bans on older diagel vehicles in German city cantras are likely
to only have a minor impact on sates. Sales of lubricants are forecast to increase slightly in 2019 thriough the
Interiubes oniing portal as well 3= an expected increase in AdBlue volume due to the discussion surrounding
particulate matter. However, due to the predicted decline in oil prices, revenues in the trade of heating fuels,
fuels and lubricants in 2019 are expected to be slightly below the level of 2018 despite the expected salas
increase. Earnings before Interest and tax (EBIT) in the Conventional Energy business are expected to decline
significantly as the exceptionally positive margin development in the fuel business in 2018 is not reflected in the

budget,
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Consolidated Income Statement

Continued operations
in € millkon Hote 2ma 07
Reévenues 1) WEE2ET 16,0651
Irvantory changes 210 oo
DOthor own work capitalised W08 B2
Other operating moome Dz} 3 20639
Cosl of materiais {03y -15.1757 - WL 3B4 R
Gross profit LEES 1LTB4D
Peraoans arpermey {o4) -0 5 - 5352
Depraciation. amartisation -3429 T2
Other operaling sapenses D5} - 5590 B
Resuit of operating activities 156,86 3a
Income from participating interests recogrised al equily mad .0 25
Qiher income from sharenoldings {DuE) 6.8 Ir4
Intesest Incoms {7} o TH
Inlerist expenses o) -Sn.8 a5
Financial resuit - 540 - 280
Eamings before tax (EAT) e wWra
Income tex (D8} -3FT -352
Consolidated net resuit for the year 549 67.2
thereal: proft shene of minorily nlerest {n9) 25 e
thereol. due to shareholders of the parent comgany 23 323
EBIT A ma3
EBITDA 53 8.4
Basic earnings per ghare (in €} ok ich ) 092 13
Diluted earnings per share {in €) (o) oo2 13
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income — Transition

In o rmillicn 8 200
Consplicated nel rasull for e year 54.9 67.2
Aumount taken fram other income at the beginning of the pericd dwe to (FRS S transition (rectassification measuremont
efiects of OCI in revenue resenmes — without future recyciing) -0.8 -
Nal gaen /iots recopnised in the reporting period from finencisl sssete aftributed 1o the faEr vibus Meough olfes
comprehensive income category H0CI option — without recyciing) RBI - 233 -
Actusrisl gains loeses from persion obligations and provisions fof Severance pay recognesed in the reporting period 38 1.6
Sum of items not subsequently reclassified in the income statement - 205 1.5
Het gadntoss from the revatuation of Bnancial asseis in the “avallable for sale™ calegony recognised in the reporting
period and other Incoma from sariicipating Interesis inchesed undar tha equily method - 360
Rectassifications (o the incoms sistemant due to the depossi of financial assats in the “available for sale™ category and
participating inl=ness included under the equity method during the reporting period - =03
Met gain.loss from hedging instruments with a clear hedging relstionship recognises in the reporting periog -81 3.0
Reciassifications of net gain./loss from hedging instruments with & claar hedging relationship in the income ststement
in e reporting period 4.1 T
Differences from currency transiation in the neporting period -2.8 243
Reciassificstiong of miferences rom currency iransiation o the income sixtement in the reporiing period =05 =
Cash fioe hedges =18 14
Sum of items subsequantly reclassified in the income statement =74 75
Gains and lostes recognised directly in equity -27.6 |
Ereraal, dus to manority intensst -13.8 114
thereod dus to shareholters of thea parant oompay -13.8 T
Consclidsted total result for the year 73 86.3
Ehereol, due 1o minaity inbenest Ba 393
thereof. due to sharehoiders of the parent company 18.5 a0
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes (E.1.)
in € millsn b1 g 207
Consolidated net resull for the year 549 [ 7]
Incoma tex expenses 3T 351
Financial resett 4.0 =0
Write-downs. arise-ups of non-current assels
Intangible sssats 329 357
Proparty, plast and eqguipmaent b e Y oEe
QEnes Enancisl assels 18 11
Investment property g L6
Other non-cash related sxpenses. income
Expenses retating 1o share-basad paymnent theough profil snd oss 15 15
DIttt - 6.8 -83
Increase. Gocrosss in non-current provisions -I75 -2T3
Cash sffective expenses.income from special ilems
Gain, |oss fram the dmpossl of inancial sty ~2.4 - 337
Ircama T i e -62.4
Interest recohmed - ad
Interest paid - W4 -418
Other financial resalt 15 na
2387 1345
Increase. decresse in current and meduem - tarm provisions aa HHa
Gainloss rom assets disposals -325 558
Incrense./decrasses in inventories, rade recehables and oifer masts pot sllocable (o Mesting of financing sclivities - 5361 MLE
Increase. decraase in (rade payables snd other lablllties nol ablocabls 1o invesling of inancing sctivities e - 478
Cash flow from operating activities -452.2 -3
Outpoing payments for company acquisitions (Mote B.1.) -H48 -5
Incoming payrments from the divestiture of companies 85 2
Incoming payments from the disposal of nangible assety, property. pland and equipment and mvestment property S0.0 BO.T
Oultpoing payments for investiments in infangible atsels, property, pland snd equipment and Evsestmend propery -M35 -T73
Incoming payments from the disposal of other financial assets W3 woas
Dutpoing payments for mvestiment in other Gnancial assels -1 -TLE
Inteqest recesed - o8
Intesest paid -3.0 -
Dividends recaieed and other Income assumed 44 a3
Hweresd. divinie s froen g cipatmyg sissests njoint vemberes s assaociafend Coenpemsess reoogirsed al ety a4 (2.1
thereod: cther income from holdings - 7
Cash flow from investment activities -243.0 - G605
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I o it 208 2007
Incoming peyments from equity contribitions T8 240
Dividend paymenis - 582 a0.8
Hybrid capital contributions = 2852
Incoming paymeants from bormossdng of (financing) koanc B28.0 15T
Outpoing paymenis from redemption of {financing) loans - 270 < WLe
Irkarag? pasd - 40.9 -6
Cash flew from financing activities TIO8 - 2358
Paymeni-reistpd changes in cash and cash equivaients 15.5 53
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period W58 10648
Infliow."outfiow of Funds due to changes in the group of consolidated companies and in axchange rates =05 4.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1206 105.6

Outgoing payments for company acquisitions included in the cash Now from investing activities are 2= follows:

Purchass price of cormpony Scquisitinn -166.6 -34.0
Purchase prices paid in the financial yeas

(Inchasng coniingent MErchase price componants from company acquisiions in presisus yoars) - 1558.0 - 25,8
Cash ared cih Equivalants sisumsd froem Compan actiiliss 102 43
Net cash fiow from the acquisition of companies: =144.8 7ns

Please see Note B.). of the Consoligated Financisl Statemeants for details on the sssets and lisbiities of the subsidiaries and of operating units cwer which
controd i oltained or [0S, Summarsed by esch magor category, AS ons of the primary business purposes in the Renewalte Energias Dusinsss und is tha
disposal of project companies ohoe 3 project has besn completed, incoming payments from the disposal of project companiss from the group of consolidated
companies ane allocated to cash fiow from operating activities and not cash flow from investing activities.
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Oener Equty net of
Myt Capilsl Wal st et FEnaras FEErL | ELaryeh Db rEbErERs Frmncr ity inlerasl Rlerct 1y Il eal Eguity
- 132 E23l 85,8 B04.3 2540 1.098.3
- 36 or 28 62 9.0
B - - 36 =02 3.5
= 48 - - 4.8 5.6 30.4
- - nsy - nyv -2 1.5
-17.0 -17.8 -17.0
- 296 296 -1.3 -40.8
- 202 0.2 4.1 2343
- 1.4 - 1.4 - 148
2963 - - 2863 786.3
- 5.8 58 -
z 383 9.3 ] T
226.2 04 517.8 53.0 1.107.6 ar8.0 1435.5
20 20 -0.8 2.8
286.3 8.4 5258 53.0 1.¥05.6 3274 14329
oo 5 32 -3 b M6
54 g1 a5 128
- 132 -0.7 -13.89 13.2 ri ]
3.3 33 0.3 28
- 325 - 326 <12.9 -d5.5
- - - 23 21 11 3.z
18 14 18
-12.B 128 128
- - =81 %1 oG 0.0 0.0
- 223 323 o268 54.8
286.3 .4 5220 a4 1.0B6.8 3023 1.389.1
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IFRS & measurament categories

appiicable from 1 January 2018
Book valua
pursuant ko Fauir value Bough
AS 30 on Amortised cost profit o loss
in € million N 20T (aC) [FvPL)
1AS 20 messurement categories
applicable untit 31/ 122017 Reclassdication” Hemeasuremant Reciassification' Remessuramant
Avallabis-for-saia fARSncIal 50808 (AFS)
MNan-current markelable securities 58 - 58
Qther firancial assets 1782 0.2 - 60.2 -
Loans and receivables

Loans 485 48.5 -

Diher non-Curen] receivables snd ofher 3soets 329 32.9 - = =
Trade receivables B.T ar - - -
Orinesr pssets 242 242 -

Other current recshables and ofher Bosis 13690 1,368.0 -25 - -
Trade recefvables and roceivabies from
Inter-group business rolalionships STLE 975 28 - -
Cllhar asdaty 3968 5 F965

Financial assets meld for trading (FAHIT)

Mon-current markelabls socuritiss 19 19

Curront financial assets 1397 - - 1387 -

Hedzing a7 = a.7 -

Financial liabilities measured at amartised cost (FLAC)

Non-current financisl labilities B2 4 BE44 - = .

Trade payabiss and abiitles from

imer-group business relationships 3.1 31 - - -

Other non-curnent liabilites =384 -38.4 - - =

Current Al lbilities -1,4389 -1.438.9 - =

Current irade payasbles and lsbaltes

from inter-group business rolationships «B15T - B15.7 - - -

Oiher current Rabifes - 197.5 - 105 - -

Financial labifities held for trading

Non-current fnancisl iabiities 38 - - -39 -

Current francd (shilltles -N3da - = -130 -

Hedging 23 = 23 --

L " Ehee g PUTEUANE 15 LAS. 30 spptautile unlil 71 Decermus 20T aned (s il cabegores puriiant To FES S sppiicable fnam T lamasry 200

are thown s meciEfication. For axampia. xade recembios Mributatie to The "I0aNt ani receimabies” Category under |AS 39 are reciatzified nlo (Pe RS S maasuramant catisgery

"I lumes cout®, Tha i aticans i thds Eubie i relation 16 the introsuction ol IFRS 9 vary from T stanclard worting Sthermtss used i FRS 0,

lcategory) of 8 fnencial ingtmindng i deplneed Csing & feclaeificstion
2 0.5 million in deferred tanes ptiributable te Fstial adusimaent effects Sue to the inbroducton of IFRS 3.
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IFRS B measurament calegories

spplicable from 1 January 3008
Falr value through Fair value througn
ol COMDNEhentieg Rcodms ot comgh el ndie Rcorme aption Bt walus purgiiant o FRS S
(PO (FVTOCT option) on 0101208 Effects on revenue ressnes
Feclassification’ Remaasuramenl Reciassification' Remaasuromant

- - nv.g - L1 5 -

0|

b3

Blelalals

=

240t

1)

2.8

1

E : 14389

= - - - oIS =
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Impairment

The introduction of IFRS 9 saw the expacted credit loss model replaca the previous incurred loss model, As a result, expected impairment
{osses are now recognised at an earlier stage — at addition — through profit or loss, The BayWa Group applies the simpiified impairment
modei to trade recenables, under which risk provisions are recognised in tha amount of the expected (ossas over tha remaining term
imespactive of the credit rating of the counterparty. Expected losses for trade receivables are calculated on the basis of historical default
ratios and, if necessary, adjusted for estimates on the part of the managemant (risk provisions for stage 2 expected credit losses). If there
are specific indications of the irmecoverability of a receivable, such as the insolvency of a debior, a separate risk provision for stage 3
axpected credit loss is formed.

Calculations found that, due to materiality considerations at the level of the individual companies and at Group level, all other financial
assats do not have to be recognised on the balance sheeat at the current time.

The following table shows the transition of value adjustments from 1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018 in the context of the first-time
application of IFRS 9 at the beginning of the financial year 2018

I million

Status of value adjustments on 01012007
Carrrency transiation aifferznoes

Changes in specific vales ifieimants 28
Changes in specific wslve adstmants calcuslstad on a flat rate basis -T4
Status of value adjustments on 311272007 24.4
Reversal of specifle value sdiUistments calodsted on o flat rate bk -4
Initial tranafer of risk proviions for stage T expectsd cradit lossss =1
Status of value adjustments on 01,00 2018 Frf]

Value adjustments as at 31 December 2017 exclusively relate to the former IAS 39 category "loans and receivables™. Pursuant to IFRS 9,
thase valus adjustments o rather risk provisions for expected credit loss are attributable to the “at amortised cost™ category. On 1 January
2018, €21.4 million of the total value adjustments are attributable to risk provisions for stage 3 expected credit loss and €5.6 million to risk
provisions for stage 2 expectad credit loss.

Hedge accounting and disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

IFRS 9 = 7.2.16 includes an ophion 1o continue to recognise hedge accounting pursuant to the regulations of LAS 39 instead of the regulations
defined in Section & IFRS 9 at the point of first-time application. BayWa exercises this option and wall likely only apply IFRS 9 to hedge
accounting from e fingncial year 2009, No changes wilh & material mpscton the BayWa Groug are expecied jn relation o this Uarsilion,

Extensive new disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements resulting from the application of IFRS 9 in conjunction with
IFRS 7, which particularly concern credit risk and expected loss and its development, were implemeanted by the BayWa Group in an adeguate
manner in thase consolidated fnancisl statements.

Methods of first-time application and effects on revenue reserves

IFRS 9 was applied in the BayWa Group for the first time as at 1 January 2018 using the modified retrospective method. This method does
not Involve the adjustment of previous-year figures, which continue to be presented in these consolidated financial statements pursuant to
the regulations of IAS 39.

As part of the transition to IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018, an amount of €3.1 million was added to revenue resenves as a result of the
reclassification and remeasurermnent of financial assets and financial liabilithes. This effect was the result of the reciassification of non-current
marketable securities (€0.2 million) and also the initial formation of risk prowvisions for stage 2 expected credit losses for trade recevables of
€5.6 million, sithough this amount was offset by the reversal through other comprehensive income of the specific value adjustment
calculated on a flat rate basis recognised up to 31 December 2017 in the amount of €27 million. Owverall, the initial formation of rsk
provisions for stage 2 expected credit losses and the reversal of specific value adjustment calculated on a flat rate basis resulted in an effect
on ravenua resarves of €2 9 million.
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First-time application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as at 1 January 2018

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers was published by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), London, UK, on 28
May 2014 and is mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2018. The standard was endaorsed by the European Union in
September 2016,

IFRS 15 was applied in the BayWa Group for the first time as at 1 Janusry 2018 using the modified retrospective method. This method does
not imvalve the adjustment of previous-year figures, which continue to be presented in these consolidated financial statements pursuant to
the reguiations of 145 11 and 18. The application of IFRS 15 did not result in any adjustment to revenue resenves.

Under IFRS 15, revenus is realised when the customer recedves control over the agreed goods and services and ks able to benefit from them.
IFRS 15 introduces a single, principles-based five-step model 10 be applied to all contracts with customers. The steps are as follows:

=  Step 1: identify the contract with the customer

» Step 2: identify the performancs obligations in the contract

= Step 3: Determine the total consideration

= Step 4: Allocate the total consideration to the performance obiligations in the contracts

* Step 5 Recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied

Controd can be transferred at a particular point in tirme or over time. For the most part, performance obligations resulting from contracts with
BayWa customers are performed at o particuiar point in time. In such cases, revenue is recognise when control of the goods is passed on o
the custormer; usually this is case when the goods or services are provided to the customer, In some cases revenle is recognised over time,
particularly in the Agricultural Equipment business unit {a.g. newly canstructed animal equipment), the Building Materials business unit

{e.g. turnkey house construction) as well as in the Renewable Energies business unit (e.g. construction of wind and solar parks). Pursuant to
IFRS 15, revanue recognition over time in accordance with the percentage of completion i= mandatory fior thesa kinds of projects and similar
projects, with percentage of complietion defined according to costs incurred {cost-to-cost method). For the BayWa Group, this input-based
mecthod constitutes an appropriate measures of percentage of complction of performance obligations pursuant to IFRS 15. As pormitted
under IFRS 15, no information is provided regarding remaining performance obligations as at 31 December 2018 that have an expected
original term of one year or [ess.

In this context, the Group is entitled to invoice the customer for instalments if 3 series of performance-relsted milestones in the
construction process have been reached. Once a particular milestone has been reached, the customer receives a cormesponding invoice for
the associated milestone payment. A contract assel is capitalised for all services performed up to a milestone being reached. These
capitalised amounts are reclassified into trade receivabies on the date on which they are invoiced to the customer, If the milestone payment
i greater than the revenue recognised to date under the cost-to-cost method, the Group recognises a contract liability in the amount of this
differance. The contracts in guestion do not contain any materiat financing components as the pariod of time bebwean revenue recognition
under the cost-to-cost method and the respective milestone payment is customarily less than one year.

The introduction of IFRS 15 did not have any material impact on the batance sheet and income statement of the BayWa Group. First-time
application only resulted in the introeduction of two now balance sheet items: contract asscts and contract liabilitics. Contract Gabilitics arc
equal to liabilities to customers to transfer goods or services for which the consideration has already been paid. Contract assets are to be
recognised if goods or senvices have been transferred o or rendered for the customer but the considerstion for said goods or services has
not yet baen pald and the right 1o consideration is conditional on something other than thes passage of time,

Payments received on orders of €88.2 million were reclassified to contract labilities as at 1 January 2018. These were recognisead as revenus
in full in the financial yaar 2018, Contract liabilities a= at 31 December 2018 amounted to £81.6 millicn. There were no contract assate ac at
the first-time appllication of IFRS 15. Contract assets amounted to €23.2 million at the end of the financial year. Of this amount, €98 million
Is attributable to 8 major solar project that was soid in 2018, The cutstanding amount is expected to be received in the second hatf of 2019,

Under former and existing regulations, BayWa acts as an agent in relation to issuing filling station cards and also in certain areas of fruit
trading. Warranties, refund obligations that could arise from the sale of goods with a right of return, contract initiation costs and financing
components that are potentially included as part of the consideration, only play a minor role at the BayWa Group both in terms of the
number of cases and the total volume of such elements and can therefore be considerad immaterial. The impairment model defined in
accordance with IFRS 9 ks also applicable to contract assels formed pursuant to IFRS 15. No such assets have been recognised, also for
reasons of materiality.
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approach of recognising operating lease expenses will result in an mprovement in cash flow from operating activities and a deterioration in
cash flow from financing acthvities,

Compared to the provisions of IAS 17, the new requirements also result in significantly mone comprehensive disclosures in the notes to the
financial statements at both lessees and lessors.

The BayWa Group has initiated a project to assess the effects in ¢etad and to implement the new requirements. An T software solution that
is abie to record contract data is being introduced in relation to this standard.

The BayWa Group has opted for the modified retrospective approach in terms of the transition to IFRS 16. First-time application of the
standard s compulsory for financial years starting on or after 1 January 2019, The BayWa Group did not utilise the option to implement the
standard at an earlier stage together with the simuitaneous application of IFRS 15.

Standards which have been published but not yet adopted by the EU
The following standards and interpretations revised or issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) have not yet been
adopted by the ELl and are only applicable to the BayWa Group from 31 December 2018:

Applicable Impact
Standard from Likely changes on financial reparting
The smendmants to AS 19 maan thal. in future, aey amendmant, curtaliment o
settiernen io a8 dofined benefit plan results 0 the remeaseiemant of the
- 16 145 10 current Senice cost and the net interest for the remaning pariod using revised
E B i AL 203 Echumrisl Emsumptions. Mo materisl impact eapected
mgloyes The: effiect of the asset ceding i 0ot 1o be taken into socount in the calculation
of profit or koss from satthement and is rocorded separatety in othar
cempretaniive intwma,
Various mprovements 0 IFRS o o iomg miner changss and adiustments to fhe 185 12, 1AS 23, FRS 3 and IFRS 11 Mo matarial IMpact expectsd
(2015-2017) ————
The revised Concepiual Framework mcludes new definiions of assels and
- the liabdities & well a8 revised guideines regarding masusrement and
c p " N A2050 derscognition, rconillion and disclosure. RelErencss = exdeling standards o Mo materisl] impect espacted
the Conceplual Framework will aiso be updated. The revised Concaptual
Framework ts not part of the endofsemeant process.
Materiality is an important conoep? in preparing inancist stalements under
Amendrments 10 LAS 1 and FRE. The amendmants clarify the definfiion of “material” ahd also how
ASE DVO2020  rateriatity snoule be appiied. |n sddition, The smentments siso snsure thatthe 10 (avarkal mpact espacted
definition of “material” s consistent throwghout afl standands.
The: it ko IFRS specify the definition of 2 business and help
ncoriokrmg o g D1/01/2070  pompssies 10 judgs whelher 8 ransaction constifutes s usiness of a groupof  No malerial impact expected
Definition of a tusiness et
Aumendments to FRS WLAS
k] The aménamenta clarify that, in he case of Iransactions wilh BN assocksts of B
Bales o contributions of n’a foing wendure, the extent of the gain or laas depends on whether the sold or ho material impact cxpected
assets betwoon an investor contrituted assels constitutes a business as dofined in IFRS 3
and its asociate jaint venture
[FRS 17 supersades tha previous ransitional gtandaed FRS 4 and governs the
IFRS T recogaition of insurance contracts. its scope covers insurance conlracts.
insurance Contracts OVOWRN  ieurance contracts and investment contracts with dscretionary parlicipstion. V0 MAErial impact expecied

featimes

Applying IFRS § Financial instruments with IFRS 4 dated 12 September 2016, which was adopted as part of European law on 3 November
2017 with first-time application from 1 January 2021 as well as IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, which was published by the LASE on 18 May 2017

are not relevant to the BayWa Group.
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Pravicus year's
Sl e W) Caala alvae b cagdila
n% n%* Commaent
CLAAS Sicositayern GrmbH, Taging &m inn, Germany 0.0 on0
CLAAS WOritamber GrbH, Langensd, Germany BO.O 800
EUROGREEN AUSTRIA GmbH, Mondsee, Ausina 000 W00
EURDGREEN CZ 5.r.0., Netin pod jediovou. Trech Repabiic W00 W00
EUROGREEN GmbH, Batzdorf, Germany 00D W00
Evergrain Gesmany GmbH & Co. KG, Hemburg, Germany W0 o0
F.Un & Co. Gesellschaft m.b M. Lannach, Ausiria 000 W0
Garani - Tiemahrung Gosallachal mb.H., Plahlan, fAsina o e
interSaaimsshi GimbH. Hohenicemmss, GRmary G0 oo
Lagertans Technlk-Centar GmibH & Co KG, Komautuerg, Aasstris 519 519
Landhandel Knaup G, Borchen, Genmaiy 510 510
LHD Langhanded Dreblkau import- und Export GmbH. Drebécay, Germany 000 0.0
LTZ Cresmnitr GmbH, Hartmanssdoe, Garmany =00 Lik il
PARGE Park- und Garlentachnik Gessllachall mob M. Aferkias, Ausiria 000 1000
Faiffesen Waren GmbH Nimbergsr Land, Hersbrock, Germmsanmy 520 520
RIVEXA BVBA. Boom. Belgium 000 W0
RWiA Hnateka duo.o,, Zagreb. Croatla 00D W00
FWEA Magyarorsrig WKIL, By, Hungary W0o0 1000
FWA Paiffessen Agro Romania Srl . Ortisoara, Romants W00 W0
RV SLOVRKIA, spol. & r.o. Bratislava, Siovakin 0.0 0o
RAWWA Shoninia 0.0.0., Labrica, Showanda ¥o0.0 W00
RWA Srivga d.o.o., Belgrad, Sertes 000 0D
Shisirirall | ogistics Limited, Glasgom, L ki) W00
Sinclair Logistics Limited, Glasgow, LIK o0 W00
TechndoCanter Grimma GmbH. Mutrschan. Germany o0 mo
Acouesiton of sdaiticnsal
TFC Holland 8.V.. Maasdgk. Netheriands T34 a4 5% of shares on 003,/ 2018
Inenergy H V., LDesterhoul. Nethertands wou o
Tracomex BY. (forrmesy: Thegra Tracomey BV, ), Oostermoul, Natherisnds 000 00D
URAL AGRAR GmbH. Premsidtten, Ausiria 000 W00.0
Wiessea Grain Lid. Templacomibs. UK 000 W00
TEAG Global Group
Daiica Australia Pty Lid, Tullarmasrine, Australla W0 W00
Debica Domestic Pty Lid. Tullamarine, Austraiia BO.O B0
Dafes Limited, Aickland, MNew Zaalsnd oo W00
Dafica {Shanghal) Fruit Traging Company Limited, Shanghal, People’s Republic of
China W00 000
Wilh BU% magenty of voling nghts
Deibca North America, Inc.. Torrance. LISA SO0 50.0 Bnd rights io the returns
ENZAFDODS New Zealand Limited, Suckland, MNew Zealand W00 0.0
ENZAFRLAT Mew Zealand [Continant ) NV, Sint-Trukden. Betgium W00 Woo
ENZAFFUAT New Zealand Infernational Lim#ed, Auckisnd New Zesland WKoo W00
ENZAFRUAT New Zaaland (L) Limdted, Lutan, U 000 W0
ENZAFFIAT Poru 5.4.C. Lima, Pemnu W00 w000
ENZAFRUIT Products ine. Wilmington (Deloware), USA 00 1003
Fruslt Distribudods Limited, Auckisnn New Zealand 000 000
Frustmark Py Lid, Molgrave. Australia 000 000
Fruftmark US4 Inc., Seattle, USA W00 W00
Frutesa Chile Limitada, Santiags de Chile. Chile 0.0 00
Stafuis Protoace Favona Rosd Lmded Auckiand, New Taalsng o000 W00
Status Prodocs Limited, Auckiand, Mew Zoatand W00 000
TG Fruitmark HK Limited. Hong Kong. People’s: Republic of China 00.0 W00
T&G Ghobal Limsted, Auckiand. MNew Jealand 74D [ i)
TEG Insarance Limsled, Auckdand, New Zeslind 000 1000
T&G lapan Lid.. Tokyo, Japan 00.0 W00
TG South East Asia Ltd . Bangiooic, Thakand w000 W00
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Prewious year's
Sl v e Canjlal St & il Capibal
in % In %" Comment
Oiperalional Manapement &3 wel o
majority repressntation
TES Vizzaari Farms Pty Lid, Tullamariees:. Austrails 500 50.0 Im managerrent body
Taipa Water Supply Linited, Kerikeri hNew Zasiand B5.0 650
Turmérs B Gresseers (Fijil Limited, Sova. Republic of Fiji To.0 o0
Turners & Growers Fresh Limited, Aocidand, New Zealand R 1000
Turnars & Growsss New Zealand Limited. Suckdand, Now Zeatand 0.0 1000
Turnare and Grovwsrs Horteuliurs Lirmifsd, Ascldand, New Zasland To0.0 1000
O tivnl nuarsigerrenl
contnol through executive board
Worldwide Frusl Limited, Spalding, UK BO.O B00 ranise
Buiiding Materiats Segment
AFE Franchise Systeme OmbH. Vienmd., Sustrs 0.0 1000
Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmblH, Plattiing, Germany 00,0 100.0
Hayita Hanoels-Systems-Sanvice GmibH, Munich, Gaamsany LE i 1000
Bay'Wa Vorariberg HandeleGmibi, Lauterach, Ausiria 610 51.0
Bolke Handel GmibH, Landsberg {formerty: BayWa Agrar Verwaitungs GmbH. Munich,
Garmany 800 - Indisl eorsolidation on 160772018
Poter Frey GmbH, Wartenborg, Garmany 510 510
Plapparer Projekt GmH, Schrobenhausen, Germany 51.0 = Initial consolidation on 05./04.-2018
Energy Segment
AMUR S.L.U. Barcedona, Spain 1000 1000
deshilts Wraft A8, Km0, Swedei W00 1000
Aubwing BE GmoH & Co. Dwelundrwsnsigsts Biogas K. Aagensiaeg, Garmany 000 100.0
Aufwing Schmack Eisd Biogdr Srolgditatd ¥, Szarvas, Hungary ekl gl K]
AWS Entsorgung GmibH Abfall und Wertstoll Service, Luckaw, Germany 000 ple K]
BayWa Energe Diesnstlsisiungs GroH, Mumich, GSrmany o0 0 10030
BayWa Okoererghe GminH, Munich, Garmany 1000 100.0
Bay'Wa r.e. (Thalland) Co., Ltd,. Bangiok. Thaltand e eted 100.0
Bay'Wa r.e. Asia Pacilic Pie. Lid., Singapore. Republic of Singapore oD 1000
BayWa r.a. Australis Pty Ltd, Melbourme. Agstragla 1000 100.0
BiyWa r.e. Biosnergy GmibH, Regensburg. Garrmany 1000 1000
BayWWa e Clean Energy Sourcing GmbH (formeny; C.E T. Clean Ensrgy
Trading GmbH). Murich, Germany 1000 10300
Hay'Wa roe, Clasm Ensrgy Sor l., Milan, faly 1000 - Itk coraalidation on I7,04° N8
BayWa re. Energy Ventures GmbH (formery. Solarpark Lynt Gmbs). Grafelfing,
Germany 000 100.0
BaWare Espafia 51 U, Barcelona, Soan 1000 1000
BayWa r.e Global Sarvices GmbH, Munech, Germany
(formerly: Solarpark Aston Clinton G, Grifelfing, Germany) gLovln] 000
BayVa re, Green Energy Products Gmbi, BMunich, Germany 100.0 1000
BayWa re malks Azsets GmbH, Grafeifing, Gerrmany 000 1000
Bayia r.e. talla S rl Wian, itaty 1000 1000
Bay\Wa r.e fapan WHL., Tokyo, lapan w00 100
Bayia roe, Nordc AR, Malmd, Swedsn Wo.o 10000
BaWia r & Operalion Services Gmibh, Morsch, Germany 1000 10000
Bay'Wa r.e. Operation Sesvices Sr.L, Mian, italy 000 10000
Bay'WWa 1.8 Polcka Sp. 7 0.0, Wamaa, Polang W00 1000
Bayha roe. Progathi Sl hian, ialy oo 1000
Bay'Wa r.e. enewable energy GmbH, Munich, Germany W0 1000
BayWa r.e. Rotor Service GmbH. Basdahl, Germany W00 100.0
BayWWa r.e. Rolor Senvce Vermagensvenaafungs GmbH, Basnshl Germarny jLEEli 1000
BayiNa re Scanciinedia AR, Malmd, Swaden TE.0 6.0
Bay'Wa r.e. Solar B.V.. Hooronveon. Nethoriamds 0.0 -~ [nitial consolidation on OT/03./2008
BayWa r.e. Solar Enevgy Systems Gmbi, Tibingen. Gerrmany e 1000
BN e Solar Ereegy Systems Internaticnsl Cooparations GmbH, Tobingen,
Germarry L allil 10000
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Pravicus year's
Sl e W) Caala alvae b cagdila
n% n % Commaent
BayWia r.e. Solar Projects LLC, Wimington [Delaware], USA 1000 00,0
Bayiva r e Solar Projects Pry Lid, Meibourme, Ausiralis W00 00D
BanyWa r.e. Solar Pte. Lid., Singapode, Republic of Singapore w000 W00
BayWia r.e. Solar Systoms Co. Lid. Bangkok, Thatand W00 W0
Bayia re Solar Sysiems LLC, Witmangton (Delaware), L9Sa 00D W00
BayWa re Solar Sysiems Py Lid. Adstaide, Aumstradis W0 o0
BayWia r.e. SBolar Syslems 5. r . Wemperhardl, Luermibourg 000 W0
BV 0. Bolar Syalams BA5. Lorment. Frandce o e
Ban'Wa r.2. Solar Systams 5 oe FLL oo TV, Mexico Ty, Mexico G0 - Initiad consolaton on 0032018
BayWia r.2 Solar Systermns Sl Beren, Raly 000 100.0
Bay'Wia r.e. Solardicher il GmbH & Co, HG, Grilelfing. Gormany W00 W0
BayWia ra. USA LLC. Wilmingion {Delawara]. LISA W00 000
Haryas ra Wind Pa. L1d Sngapors. Repuiblc of Singapors 000 Ll
BayWa re. Wing Pty 1id, Richmona (lormerty: Collingaood), Australia 000 100.0
Biomathananlage Wealback G, Grilailing, Gerrmany 000 Y000
BMH Biomethan GmbH, Munich, Germany w00 —-  milial consclidation on 30072018
Daipar HoloCo Py b, Richmond (formerty; Mhill HoloCo Py Lid. Collingwood),
AL EITSEE 000 jorvln]
Daipur Wind Farm Pty Lid. Richmond (formerly: Nnill Wind Farm Pty Lid, Collingawood).
Aisiraisa W00 w000
Diormeier Energie GmbH., Munichy, Germany W00 W00
Energia Rinnovablle Pugliess Sr.i Milan, taly w000 W0
Ensrgy System Services S.ori_ hlan, faly w000 000 Initial consolidation on 000/ 2018
Fargusan HolsC:s Pry Lid, Fichmana (Tormany” Coingwaad), Asstralla LR W0
Ferguaon Wind Farm Pty Lid. Rctmand (formerty. Collngaood), Autiralia D00 W00
Furukrafl AB, Maimd, Swaden W0 oo
GEMNOL Geselischalt mboH. & Co HKG, Vienna, Austria o na
GroeniLgwen BLV., Hoeremmen. Nethorlands 000 = Initial consolidation on 2204,/ 318
Groend sven Inves] B | Hesrsmesen, Malharlands W00 - Initial consolidation on 204, 208
Hugheanden Solar Farm FinCo Pty Ltd, Melboumna, Austradis Woon W
Hughenden Solar Farm HoldCo Pty Ltd. Melbourne, &astralis W00 W20
Hughenden Solar Trust, Richmong, Ausiralia w0oo - Initial consolidation on 21./11/2018
Interiubes GmbH, Wiirrburg, Gesmmamy 000 Wo.n
Eraak Sum Farm PTy Ltd, Melbowrne Austratia L ilid 0.0
Karaagoe Solas Fanm FinCo Pty Lid. Malbourme, Ausiraia W00 v il
Karadoo Solar Farm HoloCo Pty Lid, Meibsurne, Sasiralis 00.0 W0o0.D
Helsey Creck Solor Farm FinGo Py Lid, Metbourne, Australia w000 000
Helsey Croek Solar Farm HoldCo Py Lta, Molbourne, Aastralia w000 w000
Lyngesdsa ¥raft AR, Malmd, Sweden #00.0 5.0
Mg West 5F Mol Pty Lid, MeiDourme, Aursiratis Lo ke ol
Muozart Wind. LLC, Wilmington (Delawans), U548 w000 g it}
OneShore Enengy GmbH. Berlin, Germanmy w000 w000
Crrgesn Hinded™n Bty | 10, Richrmond nemarty: Collingencd) Austratia W0 0 g
Ouryen Soiar Farm Pty L td. Richemond (formerly; Collingaonod)]. Australia p il pirili}
r.& Banensdgia Betriabs GmbH & Co Drejundreaansicsie Biogas KG, Regensburg,
Geatmary 000 W00
r.& Bicansrgie Batriebs GmitH & Co. Vierundzwarzigstes Biogas KG, Heganaburg,
Girmiany 00,0 000
r.& Bigenergie Bolrebs GmbH & Co. Zohnle Bloges KG, Regensturg, Genmamy Lkl W00
r.& Becenesgie Batrbahs GmisH & Co. Zwalie Rlogas KG. Regenaburg, Germany 000 1000
reneco plan consull GmitiH, Monich, Germmany 000 pli i}
Ainnovabill Malfi S 1 1. Trento, Raty 000 - Initiad consolidaton 10..04,/2078
Hionck Fower 5 LU, Haréalona, Span WL WO
Ryfors Vindkrall AR, Mairmnd. Seweden 100.0 W00
58U Power Holdings Pie. Lid. Singapore. Republic of Singapora w000 w000
SEU Power Son. Bhd . Petaling fayva. Malaysia 250 250 W% of voting rights
Schradennbingas GmbH & Co. KG. Grten Garmany' S45 85
Sinnehol Kraft AB, Malmd, Sweden 000 W0
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Provious years
Sl e W) Caala alvae b cagdila
n% n %" Comment
Oully Guenrouet Energies SARL Paris, France 1000 00,0
Regeneratives Land GrdH (forrmerty: BayWa r.e. 706 Progekigesellschadl miH),
Grifeifing. Germany 000 W00
RENERCO GEM 1 GmbH, Grifetfing, Gormany W00 i)
RENERCO GEM I Grbé, Gelifetfing, Garmany 000 v ol
Ruschberg infrastruldur GmbH & Co. KG, Grilfelfing. Gonmany W00 el
Scigrpark Aguarius GmbH & Co. WG Grifetfing. Germany w000 W00
Solarpark Aries GmbH & Co. HG. Grifelfing, Genmany 000 W00
Solerpark Lupus GmbH B Co WG, Grlalfing, Germany 000 W00
Solarpark Vine Farm GmbH, Grifetfing. Germany 0o 0.0
EPM Solarpark Mohlau GmbH & Co. WG, Grilfelfing. Ganmany 00.0 000
Sum Ensrgy Mo 1 G K., Tokyo, kanan 000 wooo
Tessemiesing Eneyy S 1, Rowsiaslo (Fornedly. Tianto], Mty W00 000
Tratorg Wind Farm Limited, Longon, UK w000 - Initiad consolidation on 15/ 11/20N8
Urmaganmasrk Klein Binsdor! GmibH & Co. KG. Grifeifing, Germam 000 0.0
Windfsrm Fratsthorpe GmbH. Grafeifing, Gormarny 000 W00
Winadpark Barschwaller Grbi & Co. KG. Grlifelfing. Germany 00.0 W00
Windpark Finkenbach-Gorsweler GmbH & Co, KG. Grifeifing, Germarny 000 000
Windpark Hetistadt GmbH & Co. HG, Grafelfing, Germany 000 000
Windpark Hoble-Silllum GmbH & Co. HG. Grafalfing, Gesmmansy 00O W0
Windpark Kemionks Gmbk. Grifetfing, Germany W00 W0
‘Windpark Melfi GmbH, Gritelfing, Germanmy 000 W00
Witndpark Plerdsfold GmbH & Co. MG, Grfelling, Ganmary oo w0
Windgark Straslen GmbH & Co. HG. Grifelfing, Germany Lkl w000 Inilial consolidation on 01,01,/ 208
Windpark Liphussr Mark GmibH E Co. KG, Grifelfling., Garmmany 1000 W00
Windsark Wilhetnma hihe GmibH & Co. G, Grifeifing. Ganmay 00 VOO0
BayWia r.e. Wind Group
Armadess Wind, LLC, Wimington (Delsavara ), USA 000 00D
BayWa r.e. Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delawara], USA 850 S50
Chopin Wind, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware], US4 000 W00
Ravsd Wina, LLC, Wilmington {Dedsware}. LSS 000 oo
Schurmann Wind, LLC, Wilrndngton (Delawars), LISA L xaky] o0
Strauss Wind. LLC, San Diego. USA W00 W30
ECOWIND Group
ECOWAND Handels- & Wartungs-GmbH, Kith, Aastris 000 Lo ik}
ECOwind d.o.o.. Zagreb, Croatis w0 w00
Eko-En Polancw 1 5p. T 0.0, Warsaw, Poland 000 000
Eim-En Potanow 2 5. 7 0.0, Warsaw, Poland 000 000
Ekp-En Sibro 5p. 7 0.0, Koszaln, Poland o =0
Park Eofisn Limanu 5.r .. Sibiu. Romania 99.0 2920
Acouisition of addilicnal
Samsomwind Wirsnock GmbH, Thomstal, Austria 00,0 B0 20,0% of shaves on 25/05/2018
SC Pultenea Vende 5.r . Sib, Romanis =3 .3
Vietroslsktrana Orjak d,0.0. Tagreb. Croalia 000 W00
Windpark B3rofen GmbH. KD, Ausstria 1000 Ll
Winopars Farstiogal GmibH. Kb, Austrs W00 000
Windpar Heesherg GrmibH, Kilb, Rausstria W00 000
‘Windpark Hraubatheck Gmbi. Wb, Austria 1000 W00
Tmwrastion & Digilelisation Sepmmmil
FarmFacts GmbH, Plarridrchen, Garmany 000 000
FarmiFacts Holdeng GmibH, Munech, Germany W00 - Initial consolsdstom on 237172018
VISTA Geowsssenschaftiiche Ferneraundung G, Munsch,
Garmnasy 510 510
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Prvious year's
Sl b Cafatal S e i capital
in % in %" Comment
Other Activities Segment (including financisl participations)
Bautachnik Cesalischal mn .. Vienna, Ausieis 1000 1000
Bayia Agrar Betedigungs GmbH, Manich, Germany Yoo 10000
Bay'a Haustectnil GmbH, Kisching (formerty: Karl Thels GmbH. Munich], Gormany 100.0 1600
BayW'a Pensanaverwaitung GrmbH, Mursch, Garmary jLe i 10000
DRWE -Bateiligungegeadinchaft mibH, Monsch, Germany 843 G4.3
Frucom Fruitimport GmibH, Hamburg, Genmany jliali] 1000
Imvnabilibmoarmistung Geseleshafl m oA, Trinn, Auilria 100.9 10400
isnnis Beteilpungagesailnchalt mibH, Mursch. Garmany 1oL 1000
Rmffeiten-Lagerman invesiitionsholding Genbk, Vienna, Austris 100.0 10000
Ri-Solution Data GmibH, Vienna, Austria 000 100.0
RiI-Sojution GmbH Gessaflschall e Aetsd-informalionseys 2ms,
Services und Ldsungen mH, Munkch, Gerrmany 100D 10000
RUG Raiffeisen Umweligesolischaft mb M. Vienna, Ausiria TR0 TH0
RWA immabilien G, Visnna, Awsirls 1000 a Imitisl contolidalion on OLADA/2008
RWA ntarnational Holding GmbH. Vienns Austris 1000 1000
FWA Inpest Gl Vienna. Austria 100.0 100.0
Untersifitrungseinnichiung der BayWa Akdienpesellschall in MOnchen GmibM, Munich,
Garmany 100.0 1000
WaalthCap Portfolis Finanziarungs-GmibH & Co. MG, Grinwaid, Germany' 1000 1000
Cross-segment subsidiaries
“LINSER LAGERHALIS™ WARENHANDELSGESELL SCHAFT mob M. Miagenfurt, Austris
{for short: UNSER LAGERHAUS) {Seoments Agricullure. Energy. Bauilding Materials) 511 511
Raiffeisen-Lagertauss GmbH, Bruck an der Leftha, Austria (Segments: Agriculture,
Energy, Building kiaterinls) B39 828
RWA Rasffessen Ware Austria Aktlengesetiscnaft, Vienna. Sustria (for short: RWA AG)
{Segments: Agricuiture. Energy. Bullding Materials; Other Actities ) 500 5000 Majority of woting righits
* Thepr o of the: group of ” manies doet nol incluse the 42 companies decorsoiated in 2018

Additions due to acquisitions in the financial year 2018

Addition: GroenLeven Group

BayWa AG acguired 70% of shares in BayWa r.e. Solar BV, Heerenvesn, Metherlands, which was established in the financial year 2018,
through BayWa r.e. GmbH in order to expand ils business activities in the fields of renewable energies. In turp, BayWa r.e. Solar BV,
acquired 100% of shares in GrognLeven, a project developer for solar plants with 2 project pipeline of over 2 gigawstts (GW), as partof a
share deal effective as at 23 April 2018. The principal place of business of the parent company of the GroenLeven Group, Trinity Holding BV,
and all of its subsidiaries is Heerenveen, Netherfands. BayWa r.e. GrmbH. has had a controlting influence over Trinity Holding BV, and its
subsidiaries GroenLeven BV, GroenlLeven Invest B V., Zonneparken Nederland B.V., and companies belonging to the GroeenlLeven Group,
since 23 April 2018, the date on which the purchase price was paid for the scguired shares. The initial consolidation of the company
therefore took place on this date within the scope of full consolidation.

Thia preliminary cost af the shares in Bay\Wa r.e. Solar BV came 1o €153 8 million and includes the contractually agread purchase price
component of €26.4 million. which will be disbursed in 2019, The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acguisition of the shares
amount to €0.8 million. In the financial year 2018, these costs are included in the income statement under other operating expenses.

The net assets acquired at fair value in connection with the purchase of Trinity Holding B.V. and its subsidiaries include, on the basis of the
preliminary purchase price allocation, intangible assets of €22.9 million. the majority of which are attributable to the GroenLeven brand, and
inventories in the form of project rights amounting to €126.4 million. Goodwill arising at the Group due to the 70% stake in BayWa r.e. Solar
B.V. amounts 1o €55.7 million.

The preliminary goodwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separabie intangible assets such as employes expertise and
anticipated synergy effects Goodwill is not tax deductible. The gross amount of the recehables amounted o €12 0 million as at the time of
acqulsition; the amount is considered recoverable in full

No final purchase price allocation was available at the time of writing due to tha size of the transaction and the complexity of the acquired
group of companies. For this reason, the allocation of the goodwill of €£55.7 million to the Groenl even cash-generating unit has not yet been

84 BayWa AG Consolidsted Financial Staternents 2018



Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0



Consolidated Financial Statements - Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

Disposals due to consolidation in the financial year 2018

On 1 October 2018, EUROGREEN GmbH, Betzdorf, Germany, sold 100% of its shares in EURDGREEN Schweiz AG, Zuchwil, Switzeriand

The effect of this transaction on the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Consideration received

i € miitiion

Conslderation receied in the farm of cash snd cash equivalents for the sold shanes 05

Assets and liabilities derecognised owing to control relinquished

i miliion

Non-current assets

intangible assets 14

Propairty, plasl and eguiprment

Financial assots -

Defarred ta secats -
14

Current assets

Imventodies o

Recehabies and other assels 03

Cash and cash eguhalents 0.2
20

in € million

Non-currant labilities

Hon-Currant provesions -

Finnncial Gabilimes -

Trads payables and other Habilflisg -

Delerned tax liabdities a1
04

Currant Labitities

Caxrrant proviskons -

Financial tabitithes

Tradhe payables and cther HabilRies s
0.4

Met assets on the disposal date 8
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Gains/losses from the disposal of Group companies

nts — Notes to the Consolioated Financisl Statements

in o rrellaon
Corsideration recaimed for the sold shares 0.5
MNet assets relinquished -'L8
Dispos resull -1
Profit and loss from disposals is included in the income statement under other operating expenses.
Incoming net cash and cash equivalents from the disposal of Group companies
in € rrsilion
Purchase price sattled throogh cash and cash egquivalents [+8-1
Less cash s cash equivalents paid oul in connecthon sth e dispoal 02
0.3

Other disposals due to consolidation in the financial year 2018
The following companies were sold in the fields of renewable energies in the financial year 20718:

Sodd share i Date of
Sold ooy Parent company capital n % disposal
Berthiteryd Solar Profgct Limited, London, UK Eav'a r.e. Solar Projects Grbid, Munich, Germany 000 2802/, 208
Bodwesn Solar Project Limited, Lonadon, Lk Bany'Na re Solar Projects Gk, Manich, Ganmay 000 B0/ 7NB
Ebnal Lodge Sotar Project Limited, London, UK Bay'Na r.e. Solar Projects Gmbkl, Mamich, Germany oo D& 04 "HAB
Humpar il Solar Projact Limdted. London, LK Bay'Na r.2. Solar Projacts GmibH, Munich, Ganmany 100.0 ‘2506, 1018
Sanvihuiion Solar Progect Limited, London, UK Bay'Na r.& Solar Projects Grmbk, Munich, Germany 100.0 25506/ 018
BEsbormow Solar Project Limited. London, UK Bay'Wa r.e. Solar Projects Grabk, Munich, Germamy OO0 3R 208
C.PES Les Lacs Medocains du Bourg d'Hourlin SARL, Paris, France Bay'Na 1.2 Solar Projects Gribi, Manich, Germany W00 nAz2/2me
CPES Les Lacs Medocaing du Gartiou SARL, Parts. France Bay'Na re Soler Projects GmbH. Munich, Garmany 100.0 TAR/208
C.P.E S Les Lacs Medocains de la Redouna SARL. Paris. France BavNa r.o. Solar Projects GmbiH, Munich, Gormamy 100.0 12,2008
Tierceiime Energies SAS, Pars. France Bay'a e Assel Holding GrnibH, Grifelfing. Gommany 000 R I8
Wathagar 2 Limited, London, UK Bay'lis re UK Limited, Lonaon, UK 1000 18S12/2008
Biogas Mescen Lid., London, LS Biemathananiage Welbeck GrmibiH. Grafelling, Germany W00 | 252008
Zonrepark Oranjepoort B0 Hesrenvean, Methariangs Lonrepark BV, Hoerarween, Netherlands 1000 20,12/2008
Whiralkpes i Sien GinmbH & Co. WG, G 3atflling, Gan iy Blay'te e Wind G, Marscil, Gesidisny 1000 T2 08
Windpark Spechanwald GmbH & Co. KG. Leshach, Germmay BayAis r.g Wind GmibH, Musich, Germany 1000 2T/ INE
Freea Mountsin Systems 5.0 L Barcedona, Spain Bay'\Na ra Solar Projects GrabH. Munich, Garnmany 100D 2812/ N8
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The affect of the loss of control resulting from these sales on the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Consideration received

in: € million

Conelgeration received in the form of cash and cash equivalents for the sold shares 415

Assets and liabilities derecognised owing to control relinguished

Im € million

Non-currant assets

Intangible assets

Froparty. piant and sguipmant

Financial assets 29
Defarred tax asdets &8
T3
Currant assets
Imvnnlorios 2816
Receivabies and olfer sasels W\
(Cash and cash egusalants 32
309
iin € million
Non-current liabiities
Non-ouErent prostsions 18
Firancial kiabilites B3
Trade payabies and ciher llabillies oo
Defermed tax latdlies 18
BR.a
Current Habilfthes
Carrant provisns 31
Financial Gabilihes =76
Trade payables and other liabilities 10
216
Nel assals on the disposal date =83
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Gains/losses from the disposal of Group companies

nts — Notes to the Consolioated Financisl Statements

i o rrsliony

Corsideration recaimed for the sold shares A5

MNet assets relinquished -8.3

Disposa resull 50.B
therect stiributable to minority sharsholters o7
Ihereol. sttributabls to sharefolders ol (he paren comasny BOA

In the case of project companies in the Renewable Energies business unil, disposals are disclosed in the income statement under revenues

and changes in inventories, while tax components are disclosed under tax expenses, as the disposal of these companies following the

complation of the corresponding asseat is the primary component of operating activities.

Incoming net cash and cash eguivalents from the disposal of Group companies

in € roslilicen

Purchass price seltled through cash and cach equivalents 415
L&as cam Al CHSH SQuivalEnTE BEed oul in connechn with e gispoas] =32
i
Material non-controlling shares
Compamas in which BayWa AG either directly or indirectly holds less than 100% of the capital and voting rights are also included in
BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements
The summary of financial information for Group companies in which non-controlling shares are held is as follows:
TEG Global Lirnites, RWA AG,
Auckiand, New Fasland vienna, Austriz

3122008 NA2520NT 312028 IR0
Share in e clpilal and vobhing raghis haid by Hbenuﬁ--:ntﬂrd.l:mq EhsrEs 6.0 0T B0 00 50.00%
i o ey
Share in he annusl resull afributshie 1o non-controding chares -08 1.6 3.9 B.1
Aggregaied non-controlling shanes 270 2EA 1608 1TLE
Divicherats distributed to non-contrglling shares 23 1.2 21 21
Firancisl infosrmation (prior o consolidation )
Current sseets 54 ne 4420 355
Mon-cwrent assels 1854 1 2442 2626
Currant lisbiities 0.1 o946 3063 254.4
Non-cusrent abilltes o0 950 58.3 B0
Revempes - 0.0 - 1,047 5 1.187.0
Met resull for the yodr -2 LA 'a ] A
Other esmings -03 -0.3 733 310
Tatal sarnings -26 5.8 a0 a7
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(B.2.) Joint ventures pursuant to IFRS 11in conjunction with 1AS 28

The following 11 (2017: 10) joint ventures over which the BayWa Group exerts joint control together with one or more extemal third parties on
the basis of a contractusl agreement are recognised under the equity method.

Presious year &

Share in capital shars in capital
n% "% Correnant

Agriculture Segrment
Baltands Careates y AbOnos, 5.L.. Baltands. Spain 50.0 50.0
Baitic Terminal Sp. r oo, Giynka, Poland 50.0 50O
BHEW Holdings (PTy) Lia, Lynrmaood Manor, South Africa 50O 5000
BHEW Lamifed, Madenhead, LK BO.O 500
Growers Direct Limited, Wakefield, Uk Bo.O 500
Hafen Vierow - Gesefischall mit beschr@nicer Haftung, Briinzow., Germany ] 500
Tranghispania Agraria. 51, Torguemada, Spain 283 8.3
VIELA Export GenibiH, Viarow. Garmsny 50.0 500
Wiawalks General Partner Limitsd, Nelson, New Zealand BO.O BO.G
Energy Segment
act renawable GmibH, Munich, Garmany BO.O - Initial consolidation on 14906/ 2018
Soddeulsche Gecthermis-Projekle Verssitungspesellschaft mbiH | L. Grifetling,
Garmany 500 500

The shares of these companies have been recognised at cost, taking account of changes in the net assats of the affiliated companias since
the purchase of the shares.
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nts — Notes to the Consolioated Financisl Statements

Hafen Vierow - Geselischall mit
beschwiinkter Haftung, Brinsow. Germary

VIELA Export GmbH., Vierow, Germany

N2 HNE nA2.2007 312008 3seoT
Shareholing 50,00% 50, DorE 50U00% 50.00%
‘Wating rights 50.00% 50.00% 50,00% 50.00%
in € rslifion
Dividends received from joint ventures - - - -
Current assety 1.2 LA 1.5 1
Nof-current asspis 128 86 e 73
Current Batslines 04 04 1.3 1.6
Non-carrent Gabithies L% a6 4.5 -4l
Casih aned caah equibvalents 0.6 ay (113 1.2
Current financial llalilties - - - -
MNon-current financlal |kabdities 54 23 34 41
Réaraped 23 22 44 4.8
Amortiation -0 -0.3 -08 -7
Interest epenses =03 Qi =-0.2 =02
Interest come o0 0.0 Q .0
Inconme Lo expense -0 -0 -0.2 -0.2
Nt resuit for the vear from continued cparations o2 o2 as o5
Other earmings 0.0 0.0 - -
Total marnings 0.2 02 0.5 05
Losses mot realised for the reporting period - - - -
Aggregsiad lovses not resiised - - -
Transition
Joint wantund's not assals 689 6.8 a1 T
Shareholing and voling rghts 50.00% 50.00r% 50.00% 50.00%
GOOCWE 30 30 78 i.B
Other adiustments - o1 - -
Bk valuse B3 83 18 a6

Hafen Vierow - Gasallschaft mit beschrankier Haflung is responsible for managing and opersting the port of Vierow and the construction of
transhipment facillties as well as the shipment and warehousing of goods of all kinds. VIELA Expart GrnbH imports and exports agricultural

goods and products.
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BHEW Heldings (Pty) Lid. Lynmvood Manor. South Africa

I 22008 2200
Sharehaolding 50.00% 50 00%
Voting rights 50.00% 50 00%
in € million
Dividends receivad from joint ventures - -
Current assets 578 595
Non-caaTent sty P ] 33
Current |labilites 350 g
Non-cwrrent bl o7 04
Cash and cash eguialents 83 W3
Camrant financisl ishaities - -
Non-current finsncisl iisbdities = =
Resafiues B2 B3G6
Amartisation 03 0.2
intesest pxpensas =14 o8
Interast income L oo
Income Lix sypens =13 - 0T
Net result for the year from continued operations -18 15
Other earmings o0 o0
Total sarnings =18 15
Losses not reslksed for the neporting period -
Aggregated lotses nol resfised -
Transition
Jpint veniure's net assets 3_3 411
Shareholding snd wating rights S0.00% 50.00%
oWl =
Othor adjustments = -
Baok valus W2 0.6

Die BHBW Holdings (Pty) Ltd. is responsible for trading and selling agricultural equipment and forklift trucks.
The above financial information relates to values used as a basis for the RS financial statements of the respactive joint ventures

Summary of financial information about the joint ventures included under the equity method which are, in and of themselves, not material

in € million 312708 JL2SNT
‘Book value as al the Dalance sheal date a1 %9
BayWa Group's shars in tha net resull for the yaar from continued opsstions - 06 04
BayWan Group's Share in sarmings Irom discontinusd operithons afier L -

BayWa Group's shane in other samings -1 =
BayWia Group's shase in total earnings 07 04

Losses not realimen for the reportng persod - -

Aggrogatod losses not reatisod
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(B.3.) Associates pursuant to I1AS 28

The foliowing 17 (2017: 27) associates over which the Bay\Wa Group either has a proportion of voting rights of at least 20% and a maximum of
50%. or over whose business management or supernvisory functions the BayWa Group exerts s significant influence. and which are not
jointiy held companies or companies of secondary importance, are recognised under the eguity method.

Previous yaar's
Share in capital share in capitad
n % in % Commant
Agriculture Segment
Allen Bt Properlies Limiled, Weilngton, New Zesandg 333 33.3
Grandvesw Broderage LLC, Saaitle. LSS a4 94
Intedlipent Frull Vision Limited, Spalding. LW 24.0 240
MoSagri B V., Breda, Netherlands 5.0 250
Significant economic ties and
Mystery Creel Asparags Limsted. Hamilton, beew Jeaiand .o AL R rapresantad i managemant body
POP Woriawioe Limited, Spalding, UK 240 240
The Feest Fmm Limiled., Vwest Mslling. LI 0.0 2000
Energy Segment
Aufwing BB GmbH & Co. Zwanrigets Biogas KG, Regeramurg, Garmany 1000 100.0 50% share in voling rights
EAV Ensrpetechnischa Anlsgen Vermallungs Gk, Stallurt, GErmany 43.0 490
Heizkrafhwerios-Pool Vensaitungs-GmibH, Munich, Germmany 333 333
Busilaireg Materials Segrent
PURE AfScatianen SMbH & Ca KG. Heienibung. GAfmeiy 250 2h0
Other Activities Segment (inciuding financlal participations)
ARG Sulohanteisgesaliscnall mH. Horh am Neckar, Gesmany aa.0 43.0
ALUSTRIA NIECE GmbH, Mihartshern, Ausiria 50.0 50.0
eofeip - Bedlogischar Pllansenschuts -NGtringsprodukiions-.
Handetc- und Baratungs GmbH. Venna. Ausiria 4.8 a8
BAB Holding Gmii, Munich, Gemmany a53 453
Deutsche Raiffelsen - Warenzentraie GmibH, Frankfurt am Main, Garmany 8 3re
LWh Ausdria GenbH, Hollabrunn, Ausiria 26.0 250

The shares of these companies have been recognised at cost. taking account of changes in the net assets of tha affiliated companies since
the purchase of the shares.

The following companies were no longer ncluded in the consolidated financial statements as associates recognised according to the aquity
methad as at 31 December 2018:

Pravious year's

Share in capitsl shara in capital
i % n% Comimiant

Energy Segmant

Bismethananiage Barty Gmbil Barby, Germany - 251 Sale on 3008/2008
Bametnananiage Staftfurt GmbiH, Mannheim, Gesmany B 251 Sale on 30°0070NB
C.PES Les Lacs Medocains du TourBlon SARL, &vignon. France - 430 ‘Sais on 30 08/20M8
Mokay Shipping Limited, Auckdana, New Zealand - 250 Sale on 30.°04/20M8
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Summary of financial information about the material companies included under the equity method:

BRA Holding G, ALUSTRIA JICE GmbH, Allnarisbarg
Munich, Gemmamy Buistria

22008 IRy JTS2008 30.moamT
Shareholding 45 6% 45 6% 40 9o A0 o0
oting rights A5.20% 45 26% 43 95'% 43 59%
in € million
Dividends recessed from assoclates kA | 2.0 o8 i0
Currant assets 1.2 11 X073 3
Non-cafrent Assets 2348 2348 BEE 872
Casrrant liabiites 12 11 244 w52
Ron-current labdities - - a5 a8
Revenues - - 2383 a3
Nat result for the year from continued cperstions Ay 4.4 57 A0
Other earmings - - =17 -11
Total sarnings a7 a4 B0 29
LG5S NOL relEen for e Feparting perod - -
Aggregated iosses not reatised - - - ~
Transiticn
Associnte’s net saste D349 2340 453 386
Sharehalding ara woting rights A5.20% 45 26% £5 5% 4395
Goodwill - - 24 =24
Other adjustmerds =Tr3 -17.3 = -
Baok value B2O Bo.0 A58 432

BRB Holding GmbH holds equity holdings in companies in the cooperative group and conducts sl other business senving to further thess
activities, AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH produces frult julce concentrates, beverage compounds and aromas as well as fruit wines and fresh juices

for the food and beverage processing industry.

Nue to the compamy’s husiness activities, the financial year of ALISTRIA LICF GrabH ends on 78 Febniary. For this reason, the reporting
periods, which are used as the basis for the inclusion of the financial statements of AUSTRIA JUICE GmbDH in the consolidated financial
slalenents of BayWa AG, srud o 30 Noveribser, sl Deeelone duviabes fooon De pa el conpsan™s repor ting dele. Dilferiy reporting
periods have no impact on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group.
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AHG- Aulohandeispesailschiaf mokH. Grandview Brokerage LLC,

Horts am Meckar, Garmany Seattha. S8

INI2IXNE 222007 NM2,28 NS0T
Sharehoiding Pl Y 45 00 39.39% 30.09%
Voting rights 45.00% 49.00% 3% 35% 30,39%
in € rmillion
Dividends recoived from sssociates 16 16 02 -
Curren! assets 105.0 1008 T4 672
Nan-Cufren] asaels 405 422 82 03
Current Gabslllies M0 Ly 659 o
Non-current liabililies w2 1088 78
Revendsss 4558 4397 BLLE 4053
MNef resudl for the yaar from conbnued oparabons 41 34 25 -1.3
Other edrmings - - -
Total aarnings 41 34 25 -1.3
Lomses not realised for the reporting period - - - -
Aggregaied losses nol realised - - - -
Transition
Associate’'s nel assols @3 w3 as 7.8
Shareholding and voling rights 45 0% 453 00% 39.39% 30.39%
Goodwill o o ’\3 153
O afjustmenls i L] - (LB - 02 =13
Baok value 99 78 ns 170

AHG- Autohandelsgesellschaft mbH trades new and used vehicies and offers a comprehensive range of mobility services. Grandview
Brokerage LLC |5 an investment company.

The above financial information relates to values usad as 4 basis for the IFRS financial statements of the associated company.

Summarny of financial information about the associates included undear the equity method which are, in and of themsalves, not material:

in € million I a0 i g ki
Bipok value 35 &t the Dalance sheel date LN 126
ElanyWWa Growsp's srsare in the net result for the yess from continusd oparations 10 0

BaviVa Group's share In earmings from discontinged operations afer L -

BayiWa Group's share in other eamings - =
BayWa Group’s share in fotal samings 10 o
Losses not reslised for the reporting period - -
Aggregated losses not realised - -
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Based on market data, the impairment test for cash-generating unit BayWa Agrarhandel Group used a discount factor of 5.9% aswell az a
constant growth rate, derived from the industry average and historical values, of 2.0%. A 0.5% increase in the discount factor would likely
result in the book value exceeding the fair value in usa of the cash-gensarating unit by approximately €5.3 million. & 0.5% decrease in the
discount factor would, in turmn, likety result in the book value exceeding the fair value in use of the cash-genarating unit by approximatety
€4.2 million.

Based on market data, the imgairment test for cash-genarating unit BayWa r.e. Solar Systems Sl used a discouwnt factor of 5.9% as well as
a constant growth rate, derived from the industry average and historical values of 2.0%. A 0.5% increase in the discount factor would liketly
result in the book value excaseding the fair value in use of the cash-generating unit by approsimatety €1.0 miilion. A 0.5% decrease in the
discount factor would, in turn. likety result in the book value exceeding the fair value in use of the cash-generating unit by approximately

€1,0 miilion.

Basad on market data, the impairment test for cash-generating unit Landhandel Knaup GmbH used a discount factor of 5.0% aswell az a
constant growth rate, derived from the industry average and historical valves, of 2.0%. A 0.5% increase in the discount factor would Gikety
result in the book value only exceeding the fair value in use of the cash-generating unit to a marginal extent. A 0.5% decrease in the growth
rate would not result in the book value exceeding the fair value in use of the cash-generating unit.

The following is a breakdown of the additions to intangible assets:

in € milllion 2018 2007
Additions from oevelopments withan the company 68 0o
Additions Frofm SSnarEle Somulsilicn 358 pi= Bl
Additions fram business sembinations Wia =Wma

14a4.9 aT.6

In the financisl year 2018, research and development expenses of €2.9 million (2017: €0.3 million} were recognised under other cperating
expenses, The majority of reseanch and development activities in the BayWa Group are attributed to FarmFacts GmbH, Plarrkicchen,
Germany, EURDGREEN GmbH, Betzdorf, Germany. and T&G Global Limited, Auckland, New Zeatand
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Non-current assets comprise assets worth €208.1 million (2017 €211.0 million) that qualify as finance leases and which are assignabie to the
Group as beneficial owner owing to the content of the reiated lease agreaments. Of this amount, €200.9 million (2017; €203.0 million) redates
to land and buiidings, €1.0 million (2077: €0.7 miltion} to technical facilities and machinery, €6.2 million {2017 €7.3 mitlion) to office fixtures
and fittings. In individual cases, purchase options, classified as finance leases, were agreed at the and of the term for lease agreamants. A
decision is made on a case-by-case basis as to whether to exercise the option to purchase at the end of the respective term.

Leases of land and buildings resuit almost exclusively from a BayWa AG sale and [ease back transaction in the financial year 2013 fora
portfolio of 80 items of real estate. Due to the terms of the uniform lease agreements for the real estate that BayWa AG has leased aver
since this time, these agreements are to be classified as finance leases pursuant to the classification criteria of 1AS 17, The lease
agreaments nclude a fived terms of 10 vears initially. with the lessor having two lease extension options of 10 and then 5 years. In the event
that the lessor exercises both of the lease extension oplions, BayWa AG will than have the option to extend the leass term by a further
Syears. There is no option to purchase the real estate at the end of the lease term. The accounting profit resulting from the transaction is
included ae deferrad Income undar other Liahilities and is released through profit or loss over the term of the lease

The overall future lease instalments under the existing lease agreements totalled as follows:

in € million na 2m7

Sum total of future minimum lease payments.

e within one year Fod ] =4
Dnse Babwearn one and fhvd el s BO2 T34
Due afier more hen five yaas EE8 1=as

229 2T

Interest portion included in future minimum lesse payments

Dol Withan one yadr ns ns
Due batweean one and five years 408 211
D aftar more than five years 648 a3

ma 1259

Presant value of future minimum lesse payments

Duse iaithin one year na ag
D babween ofe a6 fve yews 204 22
Due after more than five yasrs 25 1256

AT 1658
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Development of consolidated non-current assets for 2018

Mote (C1-C.3.and C5.)

in i million Acquisition. production costs
Currency Désposals doe
ranslation  Additions doe 10 o Reclasaifics-
/0208 differences consoldadion Additions  Dispozals conanlidation fon IR 2008
Imtangilibe asants
indurtrisl propesty I'ig‘ﬂ‘_'; similar righis
and assets 2882 1 05 416 28 28 TE 845
Goodwill 282 1.0 B8 o - -36 at 1288
Prepaymeants on soooun 14:} = - 1.8 14 - - T8 4.4
4361 1.1 L 43.5 =832 =G =@ TN
Praperty, plant and equipment
Land, simitar rights and bulidings.
including bulldings on
ieazanold Land 14725 -39 16 303 . i - 09 14649
Technical faclities and machinery Bira =21 0B 23.3 Fa.T 02 - ¥ - AT ]
Other facilities. fvtures and
offica eouiprmesnt 2250 o2 19 438 -7 05 a3 3506
Prepaymantis and sssats undar consincion B6.1 oz 1.6 583 83 - -237 |3F
Mon-curtant beelogeral Baealy NG o2 - LB -16 - 111 a3
2.862.5 -6.5 43 158.5 -157.0 -0.7 =22 2.858.8
Participating interests recognized at aguity 2146 -2.0 - na -7 -23 oy 4.8
Dther financial sssets
‘Shareholdings o @TEhed companies 8.4 - o2 5.6 Q.1 3T 1.2 ez
Loans (0 affiliied comaanies a3 35 - = - iE
Farticipations in oliher companics N - 0.2 ne i3 = 1.2 a1
Loans to gssociated companios 426 - - ol .4 - - 3z4
MNen-currenl markeishils sacurilies SET - - o -0 - ar 1288
Other loans " a7 - - 0.3 =2 - 1.0 38
163.6 - Q.o ne -13.0 3.7 B0.3 2568.2
Invesiment propety
LLand 5 - - - a1 - a1 34
Builgings B7.0 = = 03 = -1y 549
s - - - -03 - -8 B9.4
Congolidated non-current assots 37782 =74 WwEe 235.0 - 8.7 -55 [ 35908

1 O thes oifer oars, 2.2 milllion were reclassifed from non-curment assets o currend pocets o af 1 Saaary 2018 An & result. the opening figures for tha financesl year 2018 are cffersnt from the

figures reported as 38 31 December 2017
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Depraciation amortisation Bionnk: walanes
Currency Agdtons Cesposals due
tranalation due 15 Curront 1] Reclassifics-

/02098 diferences conmolidation Ve Dezpoasis consolidation Write-upe ion 3IURA00NA  311000ME 3120007
L a0 0.1 29 18 28 - 27 20 SEE M5
2332 - - - - 22 - a0 M wia nan
-4 5 - - - 0.2 ar Qs 38 72

- 5A =30 = =329 1.8 4.8 oz o3 - 2337 3380 230.7

- BT 9 14 -05 -351 228 - o -B3 - 8377 By B854.6
605.3 1.5 .0 421 523 oz 7o 28 584.5 3429 Jr.o
224 3 o -Da 3 Mo 04 -0 - 3F35.0 naT 0o.T
-0.4 - - - - - - 4.7 4.3 850 [N

a7 (R - 10 oT - -0 -8.0 W 5.8

- 1.453.6 3.2 -4 =S 88T o7 (A =11 - 14589 1.399.9 TA0E.
- - - - - - - - - 746 4.6

138 - - L2 - 3 - Q.2 W ma LS B

0.3 = 0.3 38 02

31 - - - =01 - = 4 28 5.3 w35

= = - = == 2 Jz4 H218

B3R - - -0 - - - MAT -300 W8a BB

- = = = - - = 3.8 5.8

669 - - -6 -0.2 -3 o -M3.5 -51.8 45 232.6
33 - - - - - - 0.A a0 304 na3

- 513 - 09 0.3 1.8 - 47.2 7A a7

- BB - - -9 0.3 - - 0.0 - 1.2 B2 40.9

- L5508 oA 25 =145 588 21 T4 =103.7 =1,795.8 21953 FA I
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Development of consolidated non-current assets for 2017

Mote (C1-C.3.and C5.)

in i million Acquinition. oeoduction costs
Currency Disposals due
translation  Additions dos to o Reclassfica
01/00/2010 aifferences consolidsfion Addiions  DEposais corsniidation Bon  ILDSNONT
Imtangilibe asants
Industrial prope:ty rights, similar rights
and assats 4.4 A ama nr 43 0g 120 8.2
Goodwill 27T 24 20 0.5 oo 20 - 1352
Prepaymeants on soooun w5 -0.3 T0 iR -12.4 na
389.6 =45 raa 9.3 4.3 9 =04 a38.1
Praperty, plant and equipment
Land, similar rights and bulidings.
including bulldings on
ieazanold Land 14475 =178 |5 ng 7T o7 104 14725
Technical faciifses and machinery 2659 .0 2 i oA m2z 2.8 8.3
Othes facilities. fdtures and
oiffice Brjunpmesnd puli s 18 53 A0 & T8 479 18 3A7965.0
Prepaymanis and sssats undar consinecion 504 1.8 0o B07 30 oo a0.7 6561
Mon-curtant beelogeral Baealy m2 1.8 - oo - - 432 ne
28079 =312 0 16502 531 159 =13 2.862.5
Participating interests recognized at aguity ns52 - T3 183 36 65 o = | a6
Dther financial azsets
‘Sharehoidings o TREIed COMpanies 273 - 4.3 4.6 TA oo al 8.4
Laant (o affilaled comaanies 0.3 - 0,0 02 &1 02
Participations in ofher companics wg -0.0 wa =01 i3 - 1.8 3.7
Loans to associated companios 355 - 0.0 a0 346 28.2 - oF 426
Non-current markesishls securities 52 -0.0 - - 0.3 - - 50
Other lo@ns 23 oo 06 39 21 = oo 58
a4 =01 23 432 TaT 0.0 26 185.7
Investment property
Land 2T - - 3 - - 04 345
Builgings 893 0.0 0.5 -19 &6r.0
030 = - 13 05 - -23 s
Congolidated non-current assots 33,5802 -a.7 80.0 2432 1372 8 -285 37804
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Depreciation./ amaortisation Book values
Currency Sdditions Desposals dun
tranalation s 1oy Curresd o Reclassifics-
oL/ 2T  differences onnenlidation vemr  Déspouain eor=olidation \Wirite-ups tion FAX0T R0 31N202018
wis 28 11 298 28 o5 - 1] Wi.T 10E 9.0
a8 a0 - 18 oo 2.0 - - 23 Taon o4
- o0 435 - 45 T2 WE
nr.o 33 1.1 anT 6 2.5 - o8 ot 230.7 2126
- 54970 34 19 - 353 25 0.1 04 anre B3 G BEO4
5861 a7 2.2 ad.4 131 20 - 28 6053 Jr20 399.8
6.9 0.2 6.6 W4 BT ar 01 224 3 W0T BE1
= 0ud [+ - o4 0.0 - - - o4 657 50.3
-532 06 12 = - - 57T 158 1.1
14052 38 =BT Wee 41.3 .9 = 13 14536 14089 14027
- - - - - - - - = FHLE 2162
13.4 - - a2 .1 - - 0.2 13.8 L X 138
G0 - 0.0 - 02 03
230 - - 16 0.2 - 483 2.8 -T98 w3 1309
- - - - - - - - - 426 35.5
0 -0 - -0 o1 - 0B - o8 58 B3
o - - - - - - - ax 58 3.3
15.6 -0 - LS o.d - 500 27 - 669 2326 1891
34 - - - - - - a1 a3 Ja 303
- 583 16 0.5 149 Bra a7 na
B4 - - 18 1 K7 - - 20 &06 409 41.8
1.828.0 nr 0.8 “aa a4aT 54 501 73 16827 21297 2,081
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(C.4.) Biological assets

The unharvested fruits of bearer plants of TG Global Limited and its subsidiaries in New Zealand are recognised in biological assets.
Biological assets are also messured at fair velue depending on their location and the condition of the respective plants, less estimated
selling costs. Gains or losses from the change in the fair value of biological assets are recognised in the income statement. Selling costs
include all costs required (o sl the assets.

The fair values of biclogical assets developed as follows:

xna Citrun Other

i amililiym Bz Tovnudoesy Tousily Grugesy (1710 Teslal
Biological assets

Bictogical assets on 0101 na 15 13 (1 11] 15 W
apitalinad oot wo 11 AT 1% 256 ova
Change in s valos less selling costs a6 24 o3 - <p.2 6.1
Dispoeais due o harvest -18.3 -386 52 11 -3.5 ~X7
Currency ransiation differances -0.2 o0 on o0 -0.2 -0.4
Blological sssets on 31712 139 14 11 0.0 o1 16.5
2007 Cltrus Cnar

in € miilion Apples  Tomatoes fruits Grepes fruits Totat
Biological assets

Bistogecal assets on 010 s oF L3 oo 13 1\A
Capifaligsd cois 7 12 62 - 22 nT
Chanpe in fair valus less solling costs o5 21 -0.4 - o 23
CHEDOSIE OLAS 10 Fliasa] ~T.4 -24 -G8 oo ] -TE
Currancy transiation differencas «12 -0 oo - =2 15
Bivlogical assets on 31,712 ns L5 13 0.0 1.5 5.1

The fair values of the biological assets of the BayWa Group, which comprise the main categories of apples, blusberries, citrus fruits, kiwis
and tomatoes, are calculated annually on the basis of discounted cash Rows.

Costs are based on current average costs and are in ine with standard industry costs. The underlying coots vary depending on the location,
the nature of cultivation and variety of the bearer plants. A sultable discount rate is determined to allow the fair value of future cash flows to
be calculated. The market value of the biological assets before or during the harvest period is based on estimated harvest volumes and
market prices, less harvesting and cultivation costs. Changes in the assumptions and estimates used to determine the market value may
have a significant impact on the camying value of the bictogical assets and the reported result of the valuation.

The following key assumptions and considerations were taken into account when determining the fair value of the Groups biological assets:

* Predictions for the following year are based on inflation-adjusied forecast cash flows, Include estimates of the future revenues and take
into account the location and variety of the biological assets,

= Forecast cash fiows from sates in gifferant currencies are not hedged and are translated at average exchange rates on the basts of data
provided by financial institutions and in consideration of forecast sales in the Group's functional currency.

*  Risk-adpusted discount rates take into account risks associated with the harvest, such as natural disasters, diseases in plants, or other
factors that could negatively affect quality, yields, or prices.

= Al marerial changes in the current year and the following year from harvest managemeant.

The finance team keeps a close eye on the main categories of biological assets throughout the year and |s also responsible for measuring
biological assets for the purposes of external financial reporting. In addition, the measurement process is also evaluated twice a year by the
Chief Financial Officer of the Mew Zealand subsidiary, his or her controlier, the chief financial officers of the business divisions and the
finance team with regard to financial reporting reguiremeants,
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The following table shows the owned and leased land available Tor the cultivation of the various types of biclogical asssats:

In hectanes 28 0T
Biolopical assets

Applos o 756
Biuoberrics n mn
Citrus fruits (lesnons, mandaring, oranges) 133 153
Grapas 4 &8
Wbl frusits 46 &6
Tomaloes a8 28
Othot biclogical assets 1 1

The following table shows the production volume of the various types of biclogical assets on own and leased land available for cultivation:

e )
208 0m Lsnifts
Biclogical assets
Applas 1610435 LEN0.2T2 ea
Biisatelfies 50,838 58996 o
Gitnaz fruits (lomons, mandoring, oronges) 3,976, 307 3.875.968 EQ
Grapes 99,000 = o
i frisis BA2,¥38 340,712 Class | orates
Tomatoes 11LEED NS 12265000 kg
Dther iclogical assely 20,833 3z2.8mM kg
(C.5.) Investment property

The *Imvestment property” item comprises 77 (2017 87) pieces of land and buildings under iease and/ or not essential to the operations of
the Group. Allocation is made if the property is leased by third parties. if it Is land or greenfield sites not built on and not expressly intended
for development or use, and in the case of properties used for a number of purpeses, If use by the Group is of minor significance. Properties
in this category are mainly warehouses, market bulldings. garden centres. farm buildings {bams. etc.), sllos, farmiand and other
undeveloped land as well as, to @ minor extent, office and residential buildings.

in accordance with the option under IAS 40, these properties are recognised exclusively at amortised cost and not at fair value and
depreciated over their perioads of useful life as indicated under Note C.2. The book value on the reporting date came to €38.2 million (2077:
£40.9 miltion). In the financial year, depreciation of buildings cama to €0.9 million (2077 €1.6 million). The expense in the same amount has
been included under depraciation and amortisation in the income statement. No impairment losses were recognised in the reporting year. In
the reporting year, buildings with a book value of €1.0 million (2017 €0.0 million) were reclassified from investment property to property.
plant and equipment and non-current assets held for sale. In addition, land with a book value of €1.1 million (2077 €0.3 million) recognised in
investment property was reciassified to property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held for sale.

The fair value of these properties was set at €100.6 million (2017; €105.5 million). Fair value is not usuaily calculated by an expert. Fair value
at the end of the reparting period is generally determined on the basis of discounted cash flow calculations (level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy). The value of the land s calculated using current, official standard [and values, Location-related advantages and disadvantages
are suitably taken into account. In the case of buildings let. the Income value of the buildings was caloulated by taking actual annual rental
income generated. less standard management expenses and the residual iseful life of the bullding A comparison of fair value against the
book value of the individual propertiss showed that there were no impairment requiremants in the reporting year. 2 resull, no impairment
losses were recognised on land and buildings — as was als0 the case in the previous year.
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{C.8.) Other receivables and other assets

If thay constitute financial instruments and therefore fall under the scope of IFRS 9, receivables and other assets are 1o be allocated to the
“amartised cost™ category and recognised accordingly, Receivables from taxes do not fall under the scope of IFRS 8 and are recognised
pursuant to LAS 12. Other non-financial assets contained in other assets also do not fall under the scope of IFRS 9 and are generally
recognised at the nominal amount. Receivables which are non- or low-interest-bearing with terms of more than one year have been
discounted.

The table below shows a breakdown of “Other receivables and other asseis™

in € milllion 208 200

Non-current receivables (with a residual term of more than one year)

Trodo recesabiss 86 ar
Recedvabiss from other baed 0.0 aa
Other receivables. moluding deforred ncome x4 2.0
29.0 347

Currant recoivables (with a residual term of up to one year)
Trada receiables 1.086.0 251
Recevabies from affilisted companies. k] 8.3
Recehabies from companies in which a participating interest is held 476 e
Receivabies from other [aoes Al 570
Other receivables. including defarmed income ATHT 8T8
1,706.0 141773

The current values of items recognised at amortised cost go not diverge materially from the book values disclosed cue 1o their current
rature,

Recaivables due from affiliated companies and sharehoidings relate to both trade recevaties and current financings.

Other assets comprise first and foremost supplier credits not yet settied and other receivables items as well as collateral that is required to
be posted wathin the scope of the trading aclivities. In addition, payments on account for imventories amounting to €81.0 million (2077
€67.2 million} and contract assets of €23.2 million are included.

Under IFRS 9, nsk provisions for expected credit losses are to be formed for risks based in particular on the credit rating of the respective
contractual party in the case of all financial instruments clacsified a< debt instruments that are not measyurad at fair value through profit or
toss. This expected credit loss model replaces the impairmant model under LAS 39, which may no longer be used for financial instruments.

Under the general model, risk provisions for expected cradit losses resulting from a default event within the naxt 12 months are to be
recognised at addition for all financial instruments classified as debt instrumeants (stage 1). If the risk of default increases significantly over
time (such as paymaents baing over 30 days past due}, the expected credit loss pariod is to be extended to cover the remaining term of the
financial instrument so that the risk provisions reflect expectations regarding defaults on payment for the remaining term (stage 2). if there
is objective evidence of Impairment, such as insolvency on the part of the dabtor, a correspanding impalmmaeant k= to be recognized (stage 3).

Besides the general model to calculate risk provisions. IFRS 9 also provides a simplified method for trade receivables and contract asssts.
Under this method, risk provisions for expected credit losses are to be determined at sddition for the remaining term (stage 2). The
impairment to be recognised in stage 3 in the case of objective evidence of said impairment also applies to the same extent under the
simplified method. Either the simpiified approach ang the general model can be chosen in the case of lease recenables.

Extensive analysis ai the end of the financial year 2017 showed that risk provisions for stage 1 and stage 2 expectad credil losses at the
BayWa Group were of minor importance in relation to almost all financial assets at the point of initial application of IFRS 9. A review
conducted at the end of the financial year 2018 confirmed this assesement. As a result, no rick provisions for stage 1.or stage 2 expected
losses were formed for reasons of materiality in the case of non-current trade receivables as weill as financial assets included In other non-
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current assets, which fall under the scope of the general model. In addition, risk prowvisions also play a minor role, both individually and taken
as awhole, in the simplified approach applied 1o current receivables from affiliated companies and Group companies and financial assets
included in other current assets — as in the case of contract assets and lease receivables —, meaning that no separate stage 2 provisions
were recognisad here sither. Stage 3 risk provisions have been and continua to ba formed if thare is any objective avidence of impairmant in
relation to the aforementioned items.

The fodiowing table shows the gross book values of other receivabiles and other assets for each stage of risk provisions for expected credit
losses

Tre el withenit SEikge 3 edsmtimants af tha and of the
reporting period s overtue in the following periods

Gross valus

Total gross slage 3  Neither overdue Fewer than Betwean 31and  Babtwean 6Y and 91 days
in € million value 2018 adjusted ot impalred Cverdus 30 asys G thiys 90 days and aver
Receivabies and
alfar tats 178389 B3 1.390.3 3474 2651 36 10 408

The overdue assets shown in the table concern current trade receivables. Risk provisions for stage 2 expected credit losses were formed on
these gross recelvables values. The gross book values of the stage 3 adjusted receivables include, trade receivables. receivables from
affilizted companies and other financial recaivables.

Trhe foliowing table shows the cradit risks included in the receivables and othar assets in the previous year.

Theres!: without specific valus sfustments gt the and of the
Receivabies reporing period and owendue in the following pericds
Spociic valug naither
Grossvalue  adjusiments on overdue nor Crverdug Fewer than  Babween 31and  Betwesn 61and o) days
in € erailaon 2007 receankes impaired recehables 30 dayn B days 90 days and over
R sndited 1ATE4 39 11617 300.8 0.4 AT 135 332

Since the beginning of the financial year 2018, separate risk provisions for stage 2 expected credil iosses have been calcuiated and
recognised for current trade receivables within the scope of an impairment matrix split into the periods by which the receivables are overdue
pursuant to the simplified approach under IFRS 8. The primary influsncing factors with regard to the value of the risk provisions are the
parametars probability of default on the basis of historical defaults, complementad by an assessment of future development of the
probability of default on the parl of the management, and the underilying receivable amount. Risk provisions for stage 2 expected cradit
losses developed as follows in the financial year 2018:

in € rrslllion 208
As at 0/ N/ 20M8 56
AllgCaton a8
Reteaze -07
Write-offe A
Chranges doa to-changes in the group of consolidated companies 0.0
Currency translation differsnces 0.0
Az at 228 BT
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The following tables show risk provisions for stage 2 expected credit losses split into periods by which the item iz overdue as well as the
underlying probabilities of default in the financial year 2018:

Stage 2 risk proviskons for expected crodit losses

Betwesn 31 and 60 Batwesn 51 ol 50
m £ million Mot overdos Creerdue Lot than 30 days iy LY Of daye and cnei
o /012018 [F.] 48 Q1 04 03 40
IR0 aa 43 L 04 o4 34

Probabiites of oafaull
n'% Mol overdis Crverous Less ihan 30 days  Betweon 31 and 60 deys  Batwesn 51 and 90 days 51 days and over
015012018 0% -11% - 0% - 47 .0% 0% - 23 5% 0% - 251% 0% - 65.9%
SN2/ 2008 0% -11% - 0% - 25.5% 0% - 25.0% 0% — 60.% 0% - B1E%

In addition, IFRS 2 requires at least two scenarios o be obsarved when calculating risk provisions for stage 2 expected lossas, including the
possibility of defauit and of non-default. We meet this requirement by adjusting the probabilities of default based on historical default rates
by a particular percentage. We have set this rate at 60%.

Risk provisions for stage 3 expected credit losses on other receivables and other assets developed as follows in the financial year 2018.

L milllion 208
Az at 0170172018 N4
ffocation TE
Reteasa -42
White-alfa -19
Change dus to changes in ihe group of conscltated comipanies o3
Currancy transiation differences oo
As at 311272008 22

The BayWa Group's customer structure is strongly diversified, both regionally and in terms of the specific segments. As part of rizk
management, minimum requirements for craditworthiness and, bayond this, individual credst limits in respect of individual customers have
been established for all customers of the BayWa Group. The receivables portfolio of the BayWa Group is largely made up of numerous small
receivables. Credit limits of more than €1 million are only accorded to a small number of customers with particutariy good credit standing.
The continuat analysis of the receivables portfolio and special monitering of customers with high credit limits enable the early identification
and evaluation of concentration risks (risk clusters). As at 31 Decemnber 2018, the credit risk positions of 18 debtors (2017 34) were more
than €1 miilion respectivety. The Group does not anticipate any material default risk in respect of these customers

In order to enhance its financing structure, the Group has secured trade recetvables by way of asset-backed securitization (ABS measure).
The total volume from the ABS measure amounted to €3140.000 million. Utilisation will be sdjusted in line with the variable and seasonal
circumstances The trade recefvables secured as at the balance sheal date by way of an ABS measurement totalled €154, 9 million (2017:
€128.9 million).
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Inventories break down as follows:

in € milllion 2018 201
Raw materbis, corsumables and suppiies 332 3446
Unfinlihed poods.sanioes Ba4Bn ATE2
Finished goods. services and marchandise 20314 100

2.909.5 zi3zad

Inthe case of lower net realisabie value, write-downs are generally carried out in the form of specific value adjustments. Only in exceptional
cases was a fiat rate calculation applied. Impairment recognised in profit or loss for the reporting year decreased year on year, from
€£105.2 million in 2017 to €92.5 million in the reporting year,

The book vaiue of the inventories reported at fair value less selling costs amounted to €524.1 million at the end of the reporting pericd (2017:
€£439.4 million). The fair value of inventories is derived from prices guoted for comparable inventaries in active markets st the end of the
reporting period. €25.8 million of the inventories disclosed on the reporting date served as collateral for liabilities (2077 €7.7 miltion).

In the reporting year, no borrowing costs (2017; €0.6 million) were capitalised as part of the cost of unfinished goods. The calculation of
inventories is camied out through a (brought forward)} end-of-period inventory or through continuous inventory.,

Performance obligations resulting from conftracts with BayWa customers performed over a period of time are particularly attributable to the
Agricultural Equipment business unit (newly constructed animal eguipment), the Building Materials business unit (e.g. tumikey houss
construction) a5 well as in the Renewabile Energies business unit (e.g. construction of wind and solar parks). Pursuant 1o IFRS 15, revenus
recognition gver time In accordance with the percentage of completion is mandatory for these kinds of projects ang similar projects, with
percantage of completion daefined according to costs incumed [cost-to-cost method). Percentage of completion ks calculated on the basis of
contract costs incurred for performed work compared to expected total contract costs. Changes to contractual work. benefits and
performance bonuses are inciuded to the extent that the amount can be reasonably estimated and their receipt is considerad likely.

If the outcome of a contracts with customers and the performance obligations agreed in such contracts cannot be reliably estimated,
revenue is only recognised to the extent of the contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss shall immediately be recognised as an expense.

Thie BayWa Group recognises amounts received before construction work is parformed in the consalidated balance sheet as contract
liabitities. All invoiced amounts that have not yet been paid by customers are presented in the balance sheet as part of trade receivables,
other receivables or contract assets

Incurred costs and realised profit shares, less losses incurred for current construction cantracts, amounted to €256 T million as at the
reporting date {2017; €140.1 milion). The BayWa Group’s sales revenues include revenue from construction contracts recognised over time
of €209.8 million (2017; €74.71 million).

Contract liabilities resulting from payments received on performance obligations from current contracts with customers amounted to
€81.8 miilian in the current financial year (as at 1 January: €59.8 miltion).

The “Other receivables and other aseets” item Includes recelvables from contracts with customers of €97.3 million {2017 £85.6 million) and

contract assets, recognised for the first time in the financial year 2018, of €23.2 million, Mo provisions for impending losses from onerous
contract had to be recognised, sither in the financial year or in the previous year,
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or final salary based commitments granted in the form of old-age, invalidity, widow/widower or orphan’s pensions. The Group bears the
actuarial risks for these prior commitments; these risks include longevity and interest rate risks.

The Group’s Austrian companias also grant benefit plane: the amount paid out also depends on the employees’ wages or salary. Thesa
benefit plans are also granted in the form of old-age. imvalidity, widow./widower or orphan’s pensions. The Group also bears the actuarial
rigks for these commitments; these risks include longevity and interest rate risks,

Inaddition, the Austrian Group companies have statutory obligations to issue severance payments after the termination of an employment
contract. These cbligations are defined benefit plans and, as such, aiso fall within the scope of 1AS 19, The Group aiso bears Interest rate
fizks in these cases.

The provisions for pensions and severance pay have been formed according to the projected unit credit method in accordance with 1AS 19,
Pursuant to this method, not only the pengion and pension rights at the and of the reporting persod, but also future incraaces in pensions and
salaries are accounted for applying a cautious assessment of the relevant variables. This calculation is derived from actuarial appraisals and
based on a biometric calculation.

The amount of the pension obligations {defined benefit obligation) has been calculated using actuarial methods where estimates are
indispensable Along with assumpbions of life expectancy, the following pramises, which have been established for the companies in
Gearmany and Austria, play a role. in the case of Group companies which are not located in Germany and Austria, benefit commitments only
enist in exceptional cases,

n% NAL2MA st
Discount factor 180 145
Salary trend LOC - 3,00 L0 - 300
Pension tremnd 100 - 2.50 Log-2.50

The amount of severance pay obligations {defined benefit obligation} has also been calculated using actuarial methods based on estimates.
The following assumptions were applied as a standard for all Austrian Group companies. The non-Austrian Group companies do not have
any sevarance pay obligations.

in% 22008 220
DigCount Facton 130 1%
‘Satary trend 250-3.50 230-350

The saiary trend reflects anticipated increases in salaries which, depending on inflation and the lengih of sandca 1o the company, among
other factors, are estimated on an annual basis.

For the German companies, assumptions on life expectancy were based on the mortality tables of Prof, Dr, Klaus Heubeck {actuarial tables
2018 G}, “"AVO 2008-P - Rechnungsgrundiagen fir die Pensionsversicherung — Pagler & Pagler™ {computational framework for post-
employment benefit insurance) in the version intended for employees is used for the Austrian companies,

Increases and decreases in the present value of defined benefit obligations can give rise to actuarial gains or losses, the cause of which can
also be divergences between actual and estimated parameters of calculation. The resulting actuarisl gains and losses are recognisad in
equity.

Actuarial gains of €£1.9 milllon (2077: €12.9 million) were recorded directly in equity in the reporting year, As at the end of the reporting
perind. actuarial losses recognised directly in equity before daferred taxes amounted to €298 6 million (2017: £300.6 million).
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Total expenses from BayWa Group's benefit commitments amounted to €17.8 million (2017 £

nts — Notes to the Consolioated Financisl Statements

17.9 million} and comprise the following:

in  mmillion Ima 00T
Current genice cost -59 -6.d
+ ahare of inbenes] -na -4
= gum totsl recognisad through profit or loss =118 -17.8

Total expenses from the Austrian Group companies’ severance pay obligations amounted to €1.6 million (2077: €1.8 million) and comprise

the following:

in € rrllion 2B 207
Current senvice cost 11 14
+ share of interest 05 0.4
= gum total recognised through profit or loss -1.8 - 1.8

The expensas arising from the accrued Interest on rights acquired in the past are disclosed under the financial result. Rights accrued in the

respactive RRANGIal year ans inclutad Undar parsonnel axpansss

During the reporting period, the net present vaiue of defined benefit obligations (DBO) and therefore the value of pension cbligations

reported at Group level have changed as follows:

in € sl 2018 207
DB0 = at 010N e65.4 630.0
& Criangee in ihe groun of consoldated companss - -
- S 1ol through proft oF bots e 7.9
+/= Changes in actuarial gains -] Aosses (+) 1.3 144
- Pension payments during the reporiing period -29.7 28.6
kf-  ABSUMDIION Of SOUQatonS -0 -05
= D8O as at 3112 651.2 G654

The actuarial gains catculated for the reporting year comprise actuarial gains from adjustments based on empirical experience of £3.6 mil-
lion (2077: actuarial [osses of €1.7 million), actuarial gains from the change in financial assumptions of €3.7 million (2077 €15.0 million) as
wedll as actuarial losses from the change in demographic assumplions of €6.0 million (2077; actuarial gains of €0.2 miilion)
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During the reporting period, the net present value of defined beneflit obligaticns (DBO) and therefore the value of provisions for severance
pay reported at Group level have changed as follows:

n € mitlion 208 200
DBO az at 01701 374 342
+ Changes in tha group of consolidated companies 01
* Sum total theough prolll or loss 1.6 .8
+/= Changes in achuarial gains (=) losses (+] 08 o8
Sl I S TR i The repoiang Do -2 6 iB
+/~  Assurmption of obligations 14 25
- DBO a2 5 31712 374 3ara

The actuanial gams calculated for the reporting year comprise actuarial gains from adjustments based on emprical experiencea of €01 mil-
lion (2017: €0.1 million), actuarial gains from the change in demographic assumptions of €01 million (2017; €0.0 million) as well a5 achuarial
gains from the change in financial assumptions of €0.4 million (2017; €0.7 millicn).

Defined pension obligations developed a5 follows:

in € mitlion

il o] &na
25 6553
2016 6900
2007 g854
28 6512

The actuaral gains (-}/1lossas (+) from adjustrnents with regard 1o pension obligations based on empirical experience are as follows

In € million

x4 02
205 o7
2008 24
s 7
xna -8
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Saverance pay obligations developed as follows:

in € million

4 323
gL 27
208 242
2007 ar4
s ara

The actuarial gains (=)/losses (+) from adjustments with regard to severance pay obligations based on empincal experience are as follows:

in o rrslllion

04 - 0.6
2015 Uk
2016 02
T -0
xng 15

In the financial year 2018, we expect that a probable amount of €17.5 million will be recognised through profit or loss for defined benefit
pltans and €1.6 million for severance pay obligations.

Sensitivity analyses

The material measurement parameters for pension obligation and severance pay provisions are the discount factor as well as the salary
trend, and for pension obligations also include the pension trend and the remaining life expectancy, all of which may be subject 1o a certain
degree of flectuation over time. The following sensitivity analyses for pension and severance pay obligations show the effects on the
obligations resulting from changes (o material actuarial assumplions. In each case, one material factor was changed with the others
remaming constant. In reality, however, it is rather unlikely that these factors would not correlate

Sensitivity analysiz for the DEO from pension obligations

Change in Relationship

DErmTEar in If the paramneter increases. I the perameler decreases, Detvean measuremant

% OF yEErs the DBO chanpes by the DBED changes by plrarter and DBD

The higher the discouni rate,

Discount rate t LTS - 5. BE% 15 he= lowet ihe DBOD
Tha higher he calary incraase

Salary Incresse = 0.50% 0BE% - 0.80% the higher the DBOD
This fiigher e pension incramse,

Panskon ncraaca = 0.50% 5.66% - 5. To% the: higher the DBO
Remaining e sxpectancy This highesr e lifs sspactancy,
acconding to mortality tables £ Tyoar A4.20% - 4.15% the higher the DBO
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Sensitivity analysis from the DBO from severance pay obligations

Change in Rsdlationiship

paramutér in if the parameter increases.  If 1he parameder decreasas, between messrement

T OF VTS the DBD changes by e DO changes by parametor and DB

The highar the discount rate,

Discount rate 0. 75% B249% 6.58% the lower the DEO
The righer the salary incresse,

Salary increase £ 0.50% [4T% 4,70% e higher the DIBO

The weighted duration of pension obligations is 16 years {2017: 15 years). The weighted duration of severance pay obligations Is 9 years
(2017: 9 years).

The expectad undiscountad paymeants from pension and severance pay obligations in subseguent years are as follows:

b € mililon Susrn ot 2019 DOR0-2023 WS- D008 » 2028
Panslon obligations w26 30.0 120.3 Wiy 6745
Severahoe pay obligations 453 20 0.0 139 |4

(C.15.) Other provisions

Other provisions are formed when there is a present legal or factual obligation Towards a third party resulting from an event in the past which
is likely to be called upon-and when the amount of the provision can be reliably estimated. Provisions are recognisad in the amount of the
anticipated ubilisation. Provisions which were not drawn upon in the following year are recognised at the discounted settiement amount at
the end of the reporting period. Discounting is based on markeat rates.

Other provisions are majnly attributable to;

in £ million 31272008 2200

Non-current provisions (with a majority of more than cne year)

Dbligations from personnel and employes pensfits a8 669
Other provisions 0 210
52.8 ara

Current provisions (with a maturity of up to one year)

Dbligations from personngl and employes Denelils 5.8 B0
Othed picisacas Wre ns.4
1885 a4

Provisions for obligations arising from personnel and employee benefits consist mainly of provisions for anniversany expenses, vacation
backlogs and flexitime credits as well as for age-related part-time service.” Other provisions mainly comprise provisions for obligations from
dismantling operations, for outstanding invoices and guaranies obligations as well as for impending losses from uncompleted transactions.
In addition, there are a number of discemible risks and uncertain obligations. They mainly retate to costs for inhenited contamination, follow-
up costs and litigation risks.

1 Naobe: in the prevaous year, P - LT ar d e obigalions from personmel and employes benefits and explained in the sacts P provisicrm. bn the
FRAr DOV8, thaa o WOTE 113 [provision. The Pressous-yaar fgures n ‘Talei Defelen Wty
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0 £ mimon b M E?ul;ll-lcrﬁt ' lrﬁ[:fr.:: As il
208 002008 Mincation  Feclastification " Camsumption Fladegne i 31/12/9008
digcounding diferences

MNon-current provishons

Oibligations from personnel

and empioyea banefits 300 &7 05 -48 =02 - 88

Oithes D onaakons 7.0 32 22 04 LB =20 o 230
508 78 19 OB -87 -22 (18] 528

Currant provisions

Obligations from porsonnel

and efmployea banedils B1.5 BALT 4 = T o o -01 859

Other pFOVIESONS: 154 553 25 - - B9 wa o1 jlred
187.8 1640 =21 - = 1468 -24.4 =02 1886

in € st ha ok orests tramiation faal

T v 1 & P i £ £

T A0 20T Allocation Reclassdficatson dl el Consumption Peieane Aiffaranicas by P v P

Naon-current provisions

Onligations from parsonne

and empéoyes benefits 289 58 2.1 a5 a1 L] - 30.0

Other pronEsans 238 aF [ L3 ST 06 - 06 N0
528 a5 0.5 18 =104 18 08 509

Current provisions

Onthatioes. fromm peraonned

BN ermpioyes bangfils 685 65.1 o - 4830 - 37 - 06 E1L5

Other provisions LA 5.0 D4 o 607 Ta 20 T4
™3 Lo oS - - 109.6 -8 -25 1678

Ban Tanes

(C.16.) Financial liabilities

Financial liabillthes include all intarest-bearing obligations of the BayWa Group affective on the reporting date. Thesa liabilites

break down as follows:

Residual tarm of

in  Trilign Residual term of Rosiclusd term of mee

208 up o one s ong to flve years ‘than five years Total

Financiad abiities

Due o banics LB 5558 2873 24880

Commentasl paper 6.0 - - a0

Dorrmant equily holding 14 - - 14

2.232.2 5858 287.3 ansea
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Resichsl terrm of
L gilllion Pressitisal tEnyn of Poessah sl Lesinn ol e
T up 15 Gne yoar one io five years than five yoars Tokad

Financzal Gabilithes

Dwe 1o Danks .Ma0 o83.2 w2 20035
Commarcial paper a6 - - Jas
Dormant equty Roddeng T4 - - 14

14389 693.2 ma 13233

The BayWa Group finances itself through credit lines and short-term loans for which no collateral is furnished. In individual cases, long-term
bank loans are used. In the financial year 2018, BayWa AG placed various bonded loans n a nominal amount of €203.0 million. BayWa AG
placed other bonded loans in 2074 and 2015. The bonded loans serve to diversify the Group's financing and are reported under abilities due
to banks.

Mormnal amount of loan

na in € miilian Maturity bnderast
Bonded inan 13-month variable T5.0 NARE 209 T-month Euribor plus 0.40%
Bonded lgan 3-year variable 5.5 1807 7203 E-month Eurithor plus 0.70%
Banded loan 5-year fed .5 19072023 L%
Bonded loan 5-year varabie 25 19/07/2023 S-month Eurlbor ples 0.85%
Bonded ioan 7-year fisnd a0 /07 /2025 153%
Bonded loan 7-yesr variable M5 2L/07/2005 E-monih Euribor plus 1.00%
Bonded lnan S-year flued 45.0 210023 136%
Bondisd oan T-yedr Tuid a0 12/ 12,2025 161%
Bonded loan 7-year variable a0 120020 2025 E~mionth Euribor plus 0.55%
Bonded loan W0-yeer foed 3.0 121242028 290%
Morminad amount of oan
20165 in € milllan Mdaturity ntenes]
Bonded loan S-year fived 6.0 o8/ M/2020 OO
Baondad loan 5-year variable .0 09172020 B-month Euribor phes O T5%
Bonded |oan &-yaar fhisd 28.0 0911730 150%
Bonded loan G-year varishle N5 08117202 &-month Euribor ples 1. ¥0%
Bonded Inan 7-year feed 335 08N/2022 {0y
Banded losn T-pest varkable MME 0912022 G-manlh Euribesr plos 115%
Bandad |oan W0-yes feed 456.5 081172025 237%

Mormanal amount of oan

204 in € mlllion Maturity Interest
Bandod loan 5-year fed 100.5 O8/30./2019 1.34%
Bonded loan 5-year uariabis 53.0 06/ #0209 G-mionih Euribor plus 0 B5%
Baonded loan T-yesr foed m5 D6/ 10,0 18
Bonded loan 7-year vanable 520 06.10./20 E-moanth Euribor pius 1.50M%
Bonded Ioan 10-year foed £0.0 0610,/ 2024 263%
Bonded joan 10-yaar varishis 8.0 0650 2024 G-month Euribor plus 145%
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Liabllities due to affiliated companies and companies in which a participating Interest is held comprise not anly trade payables but also
liabilities arsing from financing

Residusl term of

m § million Fesagual tarm of Resadual term of TR

2na D 10 ona yoer one o five years tnan five years Totsl

Trade pisfables BE19 B8 02 BETS

Liabilithes dus to 3Miiated companies 16 an 0.0 16

e : I

Linbilithes to cormganies in which & parficipating interest ia held 517 00 00 517

Payments recabed on onders 9.8 0.0 0.0 T8
1.018.7 BB 0.2 10227

Resihiad term of

In € milllion Ressidual Yorm of Residual term of e

T i 1 e e ane 1o five yaars Erumn foods eare Totsl

Trade payables 558 29 03 a8

Liabllitles due 1o affiiated companies 104 - - W04

Liabilities 1o companies. in which a participating interest is hold 495 _ . 485

Paymants recobmed on oroers 88,2 - - B2
04,0 2.9 03 e |

(C.19.) Income tax liabilities

Income tax listilities according to residual terms break down as follows:

Resichsal term of

in € milllion Resioual termoof  Reskeus term of more

xma up 1o ong yaar one 1o fhve yomrs than fiee years Total

Income Lax ahies 124 03 aa LrE ]
124 0.3 @l 128

Fosiichaad tedvm of

in € million Residual lerm ol Regitusl term of ot e

bev s up 1o ona yoar one 1o five yoars than five yoars Totad

Income tax ibities 8.0 o1 - 281
28.0 oA - b8

130 BayWa AG Consolidsted Financial Staternents 2018



Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0



Consolidated Financial Statements - Noles to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

{C.21.) Other liabilities

The table below shows a breakdown of other liabllites:

Reskdasl term of

in i€ milion Residual tarm of Fesual torm of more

208 uD to ong yoar one 1o five yesrs than frve years Total

Sockal security 5.5 0.4 - 59

Allowances receied a1 0.8 23 32

Liabllitias from other tases a8 - - 8.8

O liabdities ncluding accruats 284.7 289 532 3668
389.2 304 558 A48

Petichual term of

in € milllion Residual larmofl  Residual teem of e

xm7 up 1o ona year one to five yoars Ethan five years Total

Social securily 5.0 o7 - 57

AlowaNCes recend a1 a5 18 213

Liabliities from other taxes 580 - - 580

Dither liabiities nclafing sccrusts 20348 286 B80.B I3
25T.0 2.7 B23 .

The fair values of the items disclosed do not diverge materially from the book values disclosed

In the case of public subventions. these are amounts granted by public-sector authorities in connection with new inwestments. These
subventions are released over the probable useful life of the respective asset with the concurrent effect on income. An amount of
€£0.4 million (20717 €0.1 million) was released in the financial year and recognised under ather oparating income.

(C.22.) Deferred tax liabilities

Tax liabilities are deferred in acoordance with the temporary concept defined under 1AS 12 using the valid or official and known tax rates as at
the reporting date. Further explanations on deferred tax can be found under Note D.8. “income Taxes™
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in € rréllion 28 207
Bifis and nodes payable 02 03
tharant to sffillated compansss - -
thareof: in associates - -
Guarariess 9a.7 510
erasaal 15 SISO CoMBankel
therecl: o associales o477 14004
Warrantes 180.0 100.9
thereot: to sffilialed comparies 65.2 33
thereod: to associates s3a B2
Crilateral for Babilithes of third parises ne T4

trerecl. 1o affiliated companiss

thereal to atsocioles

BayWa AG is currently invoived in antitrust investigative proceedings relating 1o crop prolection trading. Supported by the assessment of
our legal advisors and a legal appraizal, we do not believe that BayWa AG will be issued with any financial penatties. The BayWa AG Board of
Managemant therefore regards this as'a contingent liabillty for which no separate risk provision is to be recognised.

For practical reasons, BayWa dispenses with the disclosures specified in IAS 37.86 angd 1AS 37.89.

(C.24.) Other financial obligations

Along with cbligations from rental and leasing agreements (Note C.2.) disclosed as operating leases. there are the following financial

obligations:
in € erllion oms o
Other franecis obligations
Froem BuySaci obligations B2 156
frem amounis guaranteed for inferests in cooperalive companios @4 %0

There are contractual obligations (purchase commitments) of €143 million for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (real estate,
vehicles) (2017; €10.1 million) and of €890.3 million for the purchase of inventories (2077: €340.8 million).
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(C.25.) Financial instruments

Accounting policies and valuation methods

Under LAS 32, & financial instrument is an agreement which gives rise simultaneously to a finencial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another. Initial recognition is carried out at fair value; for subsaguent measurements, the financial instruments are
allocated to the measurament categories defined under IFRS 9 and treated accordingly. Financial assets at the BayWa Group particularly
include trade receivables, financial investments and positive falr values from currency and currency and interest rate hedoes. In addition, the
positive fair value of commeodity futures classified as financial assats within the meaning of IFRS 9 would only be recognised for those
scheduled for trading and not those scheduled to be utilised by the Group. Financial lisbilities regularly constitute a right of repayment in
funds or another financial assat. At the Bay\Wa Group, these are especially Eabilities due to banks and trade payables as well a5 currency and
iflarest Fate Radges WIth negalive 1aiF valuss. The Regative TEIF value of Somodity Tutures classifiad a2 financial Babilites wWithin the
meaning of IFRS 9 continue to only be recognised for those scheduled for trading and not these scheduled to be utilised by the Group.

According to IFRS 9, financial azsats relate to the following categories:

= Amortized cost (AC); if 3 company sims to hold a financial asset to coliect the contractusl cash flows that are solely payments of
principai and interest an the principal amount outstanding at a specified date, this financial asset is 10 be measured at amoriised cost
Loans to affilisted companies, loans to Group companies and other loans fall into this category. This category also includes trade
receivables. receivables from affilisted and Group Companies and other assets. These mainly have short residual terms at the BayWa
Group.

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH): If 2 company aims to hold or seil a financial asset and 3t the same time collect
tha contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding at a specified date, this
financial agset is 10 be maasurad at fair value through other comprehensive income. This category also includes all equity instrurnsnts for
wiich the fair value OCI option has bean exarcised.

= Fair valua through profit or loss (FYTPL): A financial asset that is nol measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other compra-
hensive income is to be measured at fair value through profit or loss. Securities and non-consclidated shares in affiliated companies and
Group companies fall Info this category in particular, Measurement s based on the market or stock market vatue. Gains and losses from
subsequent measurements are recorded through profit or loss. In addition, this category only includes the positive fair values of those
commadity futures scheduled for trading. The book value is sometimes the best estimate of the fair value, particularly in the case of
shares in affiliated companies and Group companies, and i therefore a reasonable approsimation of ik

The BayWa Group continues to have tha option to recognise subseguent changes in the fair values of financial imvestments in aquity
instruments, which are usually recognised at fair value through profit or loss. in other comprehensive income. The BayWa Group exercises
this option in particular in retation to the securities of Raiffeisen Bank intermational AG.

Financial assets are reported in the balance sheet on the settlement date.

The financial Eabilities cover the following classes:

« Financial iabiities measured at amortised cost (FLAC): These financial lisbilities measured at residual book valus are measurad at
amortised cost after thelr initial recognition, They mainly have short residusl terms. The book value is thus a reasonable approximation of
fair value for current financial liabilities. Gains and losses are recorded directly in the consolidated result.

* Financial Babilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (FLTPLY: Derivative financial instruments which are not included in an
effective hedging strategy under IFRS 8 and whose market value from subseguent measurements has resulted in a negative attnbutabie
fair vatue are to be disclosed under this category. Market changes are recorded in the consolidated result through profit or [oss.
Measurement is made at fair value. In acdition, this category only includes the negative fair values of those commedity futures scheduled
for trading. Tha measurement of commuodity futures is based on the market or stock market value for comparable transactions at the end
of the reporting period.

Derivative financial instruments are used at the BayWa Group in particular to hedge the inlerest rate and currency risks arising from
operating activities, Interest rate caps, interest rate swaps and futures as well a5 commodity futures are the main instruments used.
Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value upon their initial recognition and at the end of each subseguent reporting period.
Thie fair value comresponds (o the positive or negative market value.

The BayWa Group conducts its business mainly in the euro zone. However, business transactions in foreign currencies are also concluded
via consolidated Group companies. The majority of the business activities of the New Zealand companies consolidated are denominated in
New Zealand dollars as well as in US dgollars, eurcs and pound sterling. The business fransactons of the agricultural trade companies are
predominantly denominated in euros and US dollars as wall as in pound sterting, Polish zioty, Hungarian forint, Romanian leu;, Russian ruble
and Ukrainian hrywnia, The business activities of the consolidated US companies and companies in the UK currency area pertain almost
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Submequeti MeEturement
according to IFRS 9 categories’

Bk value Mot a
i o milillon s a3 FYTOCH financial Fair value
32208 JL22ONE aC FVTPL FYTOC opban mstrument IS8
Non-current financial assets
they Tenane ksl ety a5 ant By - BRT - an
Other receivailes and assels
Tracho recehables as 8.8 - - - - ag
Cihe receivablis and asoels
Dhed assely 204 81 - = - 15.3 04
Current financisl szsets
Securilies 12 - 12 - = - 1.9
Financtal assats a6 - N56 - - - n56
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments.
for cash flow hedge acommiing (assats) B0 - 6.0 - - - &0
Other recebables and assets
Trada recehvabies and receables from
mlor-group business relationships 11532 1532 - - - - 1532
Other recenabies and assets
Oither aesals 5528 3329 - - - 2.0 5528
Non-current financial fabilities
Financial labiistes 8531 B8 - - - - B3
Trade payables and labdities from inter -groun
teusiness relationships aa 61 - - - - 81
Financial liabilities 52 = 52 - = = 52
Derivalives desorated 51 hadging instroments
for cash Now hedge accownling (Liabiifies ) [+ 1) ’ - : e . o0
Other |labdites 857 5 - - - Tz BST
Current financial Gabilities
Financial kabilites 27023 22323 - - - - 27323
Trada payables snd lshiities from inter-group
Duitinsas relatarig LOWET 9371 = = . 785 16T
Financtal Habiities =E = 1816 - - - B8
Darivatives desigrated 58 hedging insirumsnts
for cash flow hedge sccounting (Eabilities) gl AS = A5 _ = == = _A5
Other llablities = A pr 1] - - - 828 39
IFRS 8 cotegories
Financial assets attributed to the AC category 15398
Financial assets attributed to the FVTPL categony et ]
Financéal assats stiributed to he FVTOCH cetegony =
Firancial assets stiributed (o the
FVTOC! option sstegary BS7
Darivetives designatad &6 hadging instrumenis for
cath Mow hedge aceounting (assata) (A1)
Financial labittkes attributed to the AC calegony 43095
Financial iabitities stiributad 1o the FYTPL cstegony 1858
Derhaliees gesignatied as hedging instrumsnts
for cash flow hoedge acomnting (liabilithes) 45

1 Meassuremant categones tor fnancial sssets and financial Habilites purmeant to IFRS 8
At amortised cont
PVTOCE 5t Fair valus ERough OTHer Sormprefmntig incorme
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Subsegquent MEssUrament

pcoording to LAS 39 calegories
Fiir vaibueer Fanl walue Mot &

in f mmallion 4539 Book valun Amariised thaough mrough firusncial Fair valun
L2001 category' 3122007 cost o] profit or loss Instrument 311120007
Non-current financlal assets
QOther financial ascels s ®|an 88.0 a1 - L-ER ]
Uther francial assols LaM Mk adh - - - Ak
Other recahrables and sssets
Trace receivables LaR a7 B.7 - - - 8.7
Other recabyables and assats
Qther asgets LaR M0 4.2 - - 18 8.0
Current financial asaets
Secysities FAHIT 19 - = 18 = 19
Financial sesls FAHTT 1EBE0 = 1350 1350
Derivatives cesignated as hodging nstruments
for cash fiow hedge eccounting (assets) Hadging a7 - - ar - 4.7
Qther recehvabies avd olhar sssets
Trede receivables and recetabies from intes-
Froull Dusnass relationshigs LaR a2 b 25 - - - 8725
Other receivables and olhor assets
Other sLisls Laf Lory. aéE1s - - &9 444 8
Mon-cisrmant financial Hahilities
Firancad labilities FLAC f=-o K B84.4 = - = 8344
Trace pavables and llabiities froem inter-group
Ibupmiress relationships FLA&AC a1l 3 - - a1
Firarncad aabilities FLHIT 38 - 38 38
Dereaiives desipnal od ac hadging metrumantc
for cash flow hesdon accounting (liabilities) Hegging 0.0 - - Q.0 - 0.0
Other Eablities FLAC 21 34 - - Tar na1
Currant financial liabitities
Firancsd iabilifies FLAC 14388 1.438.9 - - - 14389
Trace payabies and llablites from eter -Gioup
bursiness redationships FLAC SR B Bi57 - - a2 9038
Financaal lishilities FLHIT LT - - oLy - 1y
Devristhees Gesignalid B Nedging nstrurmants
for cash fiow hedge acoounting (iabilities) Hedpging 23 3 2a
Other Eabsities FLAaC 2670 1\ra - - 82 2670
Aggregated by |AS 39 calegory/IFRE 7 class
Ansels avalablo for sale a5 | 68.0 i1 - - 1841
Loans and recehvables LaR 1,500 5 14158 = = BAT 1,500.5
Flrsa aiaal assets Mnald for Tradiesg FAHIT \ara 1370 1370
Derhratives designated 8s hedging mstruments
for cash ficw Fredhge accounting Latssts) Heaging 47 - 47 AT
Financial Uabilities measured al amortisod cosl FLAC 8085 3.278.4 - - fo 18 3,600.5
Firancasl Bablities held for rackng FLHIT THE - nae6 4.6
Derpsatives Desipnated A5 Nadgang mnstruments
Tor cash fow hadge accounting (abilities) Hedging 23 - - 23 - 23
1 FapT: Eaancial astet heltd for trading (far valus thicogh profl o ioss)

APS: sradabde Tor pale (fair valoe Swrough otfer comgrabsnsaee mcorme]

L bl Bl flelointviBlilid | Tried 20310

FLAIT: financial lksbiiily hei for trading [fair value 1hnouegh profi of 1ossh

FLAC firancial linbity 1 amartinsd ool
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The tables balow show the financial assets and labliities measured at fair value assigned to the three lavels of the fair value hierarchy: In the

financial year 2018, they are presented pursuant to IFRS 9, whereas for the previous year they are presented according to LAS 39

Hierarchical assignment of the financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value in the financial year 2018

in € rrsiilion, Lwed 1 Lewel 2 Leval 3 Tolst
Financial assets measured at faér value through profit or loss.

Dharrvatiee financizl instruments and commodity firtures. incisdng derivatves

designated as hedging instruments for cash Now hedge acoounting 411 B80S 2216

Shareholdings in affilialed companies - A - 174

Sacuries and Investments 253 382 - 635
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehansive income

Seurities (0C1 option) 854 Bh4
Sum totsl of financisl assets =18 2362 - 388.0
Financial lisbHities measured st fair value through other comprehensive Income

Derreatrée financial Instruments and commoaity futures. incliding derbvatives

designated bs hedging instrements for cash low hedge sccounting 385 152.9 W3
Sum totasl of financial lHabilities 3B 5 1529 - 1913
Hierarchical assignment of the financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value in the financial year 2017
in € erlllion Lerved 1 Loved 2 Level 3 Totad
Financial sssets maasured at fair value

Dervative financial instruments and commodity fulures. inclding derfatives

designated as hedging instruments for cash low hedge acoounting 304 a3 - 1387

Securities FAHTT 19 - - 18

Financial assais AIS neN - - M6
Sum total of financinl assets MBS 10e3 257.8
Financial listilities measured at fair valus

Dorivative financlal Instruments and commedity futures. inciuding dervathnes

designated 58 hedging instruments for cash Now hedge sccounling s B - NEg
Sum total of financial liabilithes 338 B2 - Mneg
The increasa in level 2 derneative financial instruments and commodity futures was due to the year-0n-year rse in commadity fulures.
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Met gains and losses
The following table shows net gains/losses from financial instruments (F1) and in other result reported in the income statement.

£ million Sharenclosrs’ ety and
Hng fszats’ laballies’
FVTOCH
Categony A FVTPL FYTOCH option AC FYTPRL Fi  NotasFl Total

1. et gainloss bn the financial resutt

Equity valuathon of participating interests - - - - - - - 83 a3
Incama from panmicpating interedts 29 2.3 . 45 . A5
Expenses from participating Interests - 20 - - - - 2 - 20
Result from dsposais - oo - Lo | - - o1 =03 02
Result of participating intorests - 02 - 24 - - 28 =03 23
Incama from obher financial assels 1.0 33 - - 43 43
Result from dspotsls -0 x - 0.0 a0
Result of other financial assets Lo iz - - - - 4.3 - 4.3
Interest income nr - - - - nr - ny
interest incames from

Tt il LS PTaiies of vty - E

Sum totad of interest incomea ny - - = - - nr = ny
interest expandes - - e 644 14.3 TG
Interest porlion in ersonnal provisons - - - - - - 128 -128
Inteseat enpernses from

fair values measunsment - - - - - - - - -
Sum total of interest exponses - - - - - 544 - -64aa =271 -84
net intarest ny - - - -B44 - -527 -27 -TRT
Sum totad net gain/loss 7 5 = 24 - Gaa - -45.8 -18.1 -639
Financlal resutt -63.9

2 Nat gain/loss in the operating result

Incama fom derrative Binancial instrnements

And commodity futures = M8 = = = = 248 = =
incorme from the recsipt of wrilten-off

recalvables.reieass of receivables value

adjusiments 1.6 - - - - 16

Exponces from derivative financial

Instruments and commidity futures - - - - - 78 e - -
WVEiue adjustrments. wribe-gowns

of recehables 8.8 - - - - - - 8.9 - -
Sum total net genloss -73 248 - - 178 -4 - -

3. et gain,oss in eguity

Change in the fair value from e marked

whluation of securilies - - - - 233 - - -233 - -
Reclassifications from othar comprehansie

Income {0 revenue reserves (IFRS 8

tranaficn / Sapoesl of Hinancial assets

magsured scoonding to the PV option) - - - -08 - ‘ 08 * X
Het gainsioss frem hedgng Insimaments wilh

& claar hedging relationship - - s -840 - a0 = X
Cuttency irandlstion - - - -332

Sum total net gain/loss - - - .283 = = ey

Total net gainloss 5.4 8.4 = ~238 544 179 -T2

T Moazurement cafegones or hnancial ssaels and hrancial habihibes puorssnd o IFRS 5
AC: al amorimsed cost
FWTOCE at fair valos Eneough ol s comprefantie incoms
FYTPL: 3t fair vatuss Sheougn profi or ioes
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The following table shows an analysis of the maturity dates of undiscounted financial liabllities by IFRS T class as well as the discounted nat
cash flows of derfvative financial instruments with negative and positive fair values of the BayWa Group.

Residusl term of

€ milllion Fesanusl B of Pieadct aid e of LeL= L}

a8 D 1o ona yeer one 1o five years than five years Total

Financaal Kabilithes measwred al amort=ed oost d4458 B16.2 2885 434595

Financial Eabiifies massunad at fair valisn through profit o loss 181.6 a8 0.4 1858

Derivalives desigrated as hedging instruments for cash Mow hedge accounting 45 = = 45
36320 H20.0 IEBE 45308

skl trrmn nf

in € mililon Resigual torm of  Resioual term of more

T ap o ona yaar one o fhve yaars. than five yoars Totsl

Financial fabiltes messared 8l amorsed cost (FLAC) 2.448.5 nas ne4 d3ma4

Financial Rabilithes held for trading (FLHIT) g1 [ an - s

Derhvatives desigrated as hedping instrurments for cash flow hedge accounting 2.3 a0 - 23
2,561.5 74 64 33053

The foliowing schedule of maturities shows the distnbution of the forecast cash flows of the contractually agreed interest and redemption
payments in the IFRS T class "Liabilittes measured at amortised cost™ as at 31 December 2018 The year-on-year increase was primarily the
result of the increase in financing requirements in the fields of renewable energies.

in € mitlion Sum total up 1o 08 /2018 7=12720% 2020 - 2022 = 2023
Share of interest 6.4 T.5 ne G654 ne
Redamption porion 4,H8.5 2.6518 5999 G609 4 m;as
Surm Lotal o, 448 0 2 6E8.3 1.5 6748 3003

The following schedule of maturitics shows the distnibution of the forccast cash flows of the contractually agrecd intercst and redemption
payments in the IFRS 7 class “Liabilities measured at amortised cost™ as at 31 December 2017,

ini £ millon Sum total up lo 062018 71272008 08 - 2002 » 222
Bhare of interest 6.9 &5 a4 454 66
Redarmplion porion 33784 1.e1.7 E36.8 Tas ne4
Sum Lotal 3,4656.3 1,918.3 BE5.2 7EE9 230

Information on derivative financial instruments

IFRS 8 = 7.2. 7 includes an option 1o continue to recognise hedge accounting pursuant to the reguliations of 1AS 39 instead of the regulations
defined in Section & IFRS 9 at the point of first-time application. BayWa exercises this option and will likely only apply IFRS 9 to hedge
accounting from the financial year 2019, Derivative financial instruments used within the scope of cash flow hedge accounting are recog-
nised at fair value. In addition, the fair value of commodity futures classified as financial assets and financial liabilities within the meaning of
|FRS 9 would only be recognizsed for those scheduled for trading and not those scheduled to be utilised by the Group. The fair values are
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The BayWa Group s exposed to commodity price risks due to its operating activities in the grain recording and markeling business. In onder
to mitigate these commaodity price risks, the BayWa Groups risk management system continuously calculates the various open commodity
positions. Using this Information, trading areas at the BayWa Group concluge physical commeodity futures within the approved limits
(maximum long and short position in matric tonnes [MT], maximum valua at risk), Commodity futures are only concluded with partners with
aexcellent credit ratings. The following table provides an overview of the resulling grain contracts, which are recognised as financial
instruments pursuant to IFRS 9

i matric tonnes g g W, o] 1P X i
Long positions

Graifs ooem B3 T2
OHlaaad /o gse Fressl A1 46
Other L 17
Short positions

GrainScorm =102 BS
Oilsead /cdseed meal =51 55
Dt ~2.3 -21

The gran contracts concluded on the OTC market contain credit risks with regard to default on the part of the business partner. The
concentration of thesa credit risks is imited due to the broad and heterogenaous portfolio of trading partners. The largest credit risk
exposures in absolute terms are subject to regular reviews. All trading partners with whom fulures have been concluded within the scope of
grain trading continue o have good credit ratings.

The fair values of the grain contracts recognised as financial assets constitute the greatest possible default risk, without including the value
of received coilateral or other risk-mitigating agreements

Rises and declines in the prices of all relevant commedity prices by a margin of 10% would have affected the annusl result as at
21 Decemnber 2018 in the manner displayed in the following table. The caloulation includes all grain contracts valid as at the reparting date.

Oelsead &
Grain/com odsed men Other
I € millian I8 JLM2NE NSELSANE
Priga fida [+ Wre)
Effect on income -28.2 308 =75
Equity affect - 5.2 18 -
Price deciine (-1%0%)
Effact of income 282 326 I5
Equity effect 22 16 -
Oilsend.’
(Grain/ com oitseed moal Other
I € million IS0 ST 220
Price risa (+ 70%)
Effect on incoms Ha - 280 54
Equity effect -28B -08
Price deciine (-30r%)
Effect on income L] 26.0 54
Equity affect 28 E-] -
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Cash flow hedges

The BayWa Group uses derivative financial instruments in the form of grain futures with physical fulfilment to hedge payment flows from
future grain purchases and sales made by BayWa within the scope of its grain recording, warehcusing and marketing business. These
hedges ara recognised as all-in-one cash flow hedges as defined in LAS 39 IG F.2.5, in other words the expected, highly likety spot
purchases and sales are designated as the underlying transactions and the financial ficating-to-fixed swaps designated as hedges. Derivative
financial instruments used within the scope of cash flow hedge accounting are recognised at fair value. The net measurement result of these
derpvative financial instruments is broken down into an effective porticn and ineffective portion. The effective portion s part of the net
measurement result which constitutes an effective hedge against cash flow risk and is recognised in a separate equity item (cash flow hedge
reserves) without effect on income and in consideration of deferred taxes until the physical fulfilment of the underlying transaction. The
inaffective portion, on the other hand, is recognised through profit or loss in the incoma statement. The general recognition rules for the
transactions underpinning the hadged cash flows do not change. After the end of hadge, the amounts recorded in the reserves are
transferred to financial assets and financial Habilities if net income relating to the undertying transaction is recognised through profit or loss
or the materialization of the underlying transaction is no longer anticipated. The following table shows the developmant of cazh flow hedge
reserves due to remessurement.

in € rrsilion ANAL8
Opening portfolio s ot 01701 14
Aflpcation 8.6
Hedezze =74
Traneher 15 Hnancial agsels 7 fnencis] Esbilities =31
Closing portfolio #s a1 3172 =05
i o rrslllion, 3220
Opening portfolio as &1 00700 0.0
Aflocasgan 7a
Rideas 68
Tranaher to financisl sssets / fnancal kabilfles 06
Closang portfolio as at 3112 14

In the financial year 2018, an amount of €3.1 million (2017; €0.6 million) was transferred from other comprehensive income to financial
assets and financial labilites.

The fair value of grain contracts is calculated as the present value of the expecled cash fiows from these contracts. Expected cash flows are
caloulated using forward price curves for liguid grain futures adjusted by mark-ups for different delivery locations./guality, The fair valua of
listed grain futures is determined by the respactive settlement prices an the market

The lack of congruence between the basic trensaction parameters could be a potential source of hedge ineffectiveness. Howewer, BayWa
uses all-in-one hedges where all parameters match; in other words the hedged transaction and the underlying transaction refer to the same
delivery location, the same delivery volume and the same delivery date. As a consequence, changes in the fair values of hedged transactions
and the underlying transactions must always cancel each other out provided it can be assumed that the transaction is highly likely to be
physically settied. This meaans that no hedge ineffectivensss can arise. Generally spesking, ineffectiveness can arise through credit risks,
although these are not taken into account due to reasons of materi ality.

If open risk positions arise within the scope of grain trading activities and the resulting physical flow, these risk positions are hedged through
physical and financial hedge transactions by the companies that use hadge accounting within the (imit system that is in place.

The individual hedges are held until the the maturity of the underlying transaction. New grain contracts are designated at contract inception.
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(D.3.) Cost of materials
in o rmilllion 2018 a0
Expenses for raw matarials. comnsumables and supples. and for goods sourced =14, 758.7 H.0177.4
Eipentes it SarACaE oulsouroed -418.9 - 368 5
-15,175.7 - 14,384.3
[D.‘L} Personnel expenses
in i mallion 208 2007
Wages snd salanes = 8240 ~ 756
Shara-tased pameant - 15 1.5
Expentss lof DEASIONE, SUSEoT and SeVslince pay - 20T 25
therecl curment saricE oot T.0 7.8
Social insurance conlributions 134.4 136.6
- 9806 - 836.2
After calculsting the provisions for pension and severancs pay acconding to 145 19, expenses for pension and severance pay total
€£79.4 mitlion (2077 €19.7 million), Of this amount, a portion amounting to €7.0 million {2077; €7.8 million) has been disclosed under
personnel expenses and a portion totalling €12.4 miltion (2017: €11.9 millicn) under interest expenses
NuUrTibes 2018 3017
Employees
Annucs sverage (Saction 267 para 5 Garman Commercisl Code [HGE]) 18,100 17.650
As ot 3112 .Eed r.az3
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{D.5.) Other operating expenses

in £ mitlion xms 27
Wehiclhe Nest B4E To5
Mainlenmncs -S58 -B546
Agveriising 512 a5.2
Energy 304 3z
Rent -G6B -565
EXpANSES fod ATHS Rafe S rRally -Fh8 -y
information expenses ua M
Comimission mi 155
[T -220 -208
Cost of legal and professional advice. ot fees - 74 4938
Amartisation value adjustments of receables wo 58
ITcosts =04 68
Travel eapansas = 2.0 - 188
Oiffice supplies -1 -105
Other tax m1 21
Agdministrative espenses =88 36
Trasning and contimuous professional oevelopmant -BE B3
Decommessioning and disposal -B8 %]
Curroncy-induced losses -5 W0
Losses from assat disposais 131 63
Other expenses - B84 T3

- 5900 e -Tihl

Other expenses comprise mainly genaral selling and other costs, such as those incurred by securing against operating risks.

{D.B.) Income from participating interests recognised at equity and other income from shareholdings

in € million i 2097
Income from participating interests recognized o equity 2.0 5
income./experses from affiElaled companies -1.4 15
income ./ experses rom the disposal of afflialed companes ul o2
Orther income from holdinge and similar moome 0.4 51
Wiite-dovwns of fnancial aE0als and olher Sxpendel 23 14
Other Income from shareholdings 68 ara

158 2589

Income frem participating interests recognised at equity increased by €8.5 milllon year on year. This was due in particular to the rise in
income from AHG- Autohandelsgesslischalt mbH and AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH, By contrast, other income from shareholdings was down
€30.6 miliion on the high previous-year figure. In the financial year 2017, the sale of shares in Raiffeizen Bank International AG, Vienna,
Austrla, and the sale of BayWa Hochhaus GmbH & Co. KG contributed to the unusually high income from participating interests and similar
income. Dividend income is generally reconded as and when a claim {o payout arises,
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(D.7.) Interest income and expenses

in o rmilllion 2008 207
Interes and simitar Income 120 75

thereal: from alfillalad companess oT o9
Interest from fair value measurement - m
Interast income 120 T8
Interest and semilar axpences -84y - 523

therect o alfilinted companess =3 =03
Interest from Tair value measurement - -0
Interest portion of finance teasing =143 e
Interesl poation of the allocation to pension provisions and cther personnel provison: -8 - 122
Interest epenses =918 =TES
Nat interest -T9.8 - 689
(D.8.) Income tax

Income tax breaks down as Tollows:

in € mlion 2018 20
Actual tames =OTF 258
Defernad tawes -10.0 -84

-3 -351

Actual tax income and expenses comprise the corporate and trade tax of the companies in Germany and comparable taxes on foreign
COMmpanies.

Deferred taxes are formed for all temporary differences between the tax-related assigned value and IFRS values as well as the consolidation
maasures. Equity includes deferred tax assats of €68.1 million (2017: €56.5 milllon) that were offset against the reserve for actuarial gains
angd fossens fron provisions for pensions s severance poy, Moreoves | delerred [y daebilities of €95 million (2017: €19.2 million) wer e oTsal
against the assessment reserve in equity without effect on income. Deferred taxes of €1.5 million are attributable to the hybrid bond issued
by BayWa AG; these are also recognized in eguity. Deferred tax assets include tax-reducing claims which arize from the expectad utilisation
of loss carryforwards in the years ahead, the realisation of which is assured with sufficient probability. These came to €70.5 million {2017,
€65.5 million) and targely concerned the parent company. As part of corporate planning, a time horizon of five vears {maximum) has bean
assumed here, Deferred tax was not formed on loss carryforwards inan amount of €53.8 million (2017; £39.8 million), as their usability is
not anticipated within the specified period. Loss canmyforwards of individual Group companies can be partly carried forwarnd within a limited
period of time. No tax assets which are eligible as carmyforwards are likely to expire. The deferred tax income from the origination and/or
reversal of temporary differences amounts to €4.9 million (2017; €3.2 million),

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates which apply or are anticipated given the current legal situation in the individiual
countries at the time when taxes are levied. The tax rate of BayWWa AG in the reporting year was 29.13% (2017 29.13%).
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Deferred tax asseis and liabilites are allocated to the indhadual batance sheet items as shown in the table below:

Deferred ta asssls Defarmad tax liabdites

in € milion 2a 2007 208 27
intangible asseats snd property, plant and Squipment a1 B2 o ara
Financial assets a0 e 348 a54
Current assets a8 mn4 351 L
Dther assets 82 5.3 45 oo
Tax loss carmyforwasds 124.3 1053 - -
Provesions T 4.6 2.0 FA
Liabifithes 181 B7 Ly 05
Oitfey |laDdities 26.5 %8 ws 5.0
Velue adjustrments Seferad tax assets -538 ~-§2.2 - -
Balance ~43.3 e - 433 k]
Conaolidation 193 BA o5 MB

252.6 2345 a7 1805

The actual tax expenses are €10.7 million higher than the amount that would have been incurred if the German corporate tax rate had been
applied under the currently prevaiing law, plus the solidarnity surcharge and the trade tax burden on the consolidated earnings before tax
The tax rate of 22.13% calculated for actusl tax is based on the uniform corporate tax rate of 15.00%., plus the solidarity surcharge of 5.50%
and the average effective trade tax burden of 13.31%. Deferred tax liabitities were not recognised for subsidiaries and associates as the
cofmpany can control the tming of reversals and because it is therefore probable that the temporary difference wall not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax liabilitees were not formed for temporary differences in an amount of €20.6 million (2077 €16.5 million)

from subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

The table below shows the transition from the computed ta expenses in accordance with the corporate tax rate to the inCome tax expenses

actually reported:

m € million e 2w
Congolidated result bafore incomea tax 92.8 1024
Computalional tax expenses based on 3 t rale of 28.13% 270 258
Difference apaingt foncign T ralcs ar 10
Tax not relabng to the pariod -4.3 38
Permanant difsrence changes -46 10
Tax @ffact dis 1o nin-tix deduclible sxpenses -T11 -Ta
Trada tax Jedusctons and additions 33 41
Final consolidation sffect -14 a8
Tak-aiempl rooms 532 B4
Changes in the wabes sdpriment of dalerres ta aesats -4 -138
Tax offect from egulty resulls 24 23
Effects from chanpes in lax rates =01 03
Othed Ay affecis -35 oB
Income tax reported =377 =351
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B Agri
in € mitlion Supoly & Trade figri Trade & Giobad  Agricudlural
31272008 (BAST) Service Produce: Equipmant Agriculture
Revenyes gensrated thiowegh business with thind parlies 5.286.8 32088 BT S 1.832.4 .59
Inira-Dusingss whil Segrmen Tenvenoes 5783 3364 528 35.6 L004g.2
Inler-Dusiness el Eegman| revandes - &i.d - 1.5 064
Total revenues 58037 amoze 8508 1.659.5 121266
Earmings before interest. tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 358 340 A6 48.3 158.5
Deprociation. amortisation 45 289 4 - N7 - 585
Earmings befors interest and tax {EBIT) na 52 w2 36.6 i
Financial reslt - 7.8 M an 8.5 338
thereal: net interest -1 1521 33 -85 -36.8
thisreal: equilty resull 0.8 o3 -04 04 -03
Earnings before tax (EBT] 24.0 -89 e 73 B3
Incoma tax
et result for the year
Assols 14554 L5130 as.a 7068 4.590.8
thereod: particpating inerests recognsad st equity 243 2 734 216 na
tharasl: pon-cusrent sssets held for saie - 01 - LR
imentories 5255 T65.2 208 4240 17353
trend: non-cumment sssets hedd for ssie - - - - -
Liabllities 2.4 13617 WAy B0EL1 36066.9
thesrend: liahiliies from non-current st heid or spls - - - - -
imvestments in intangible assets, property. plant and equipment and Ivestmant
property (inclusing company boguisitiona) a9 307 3RS 119 B7.3
Employes annusl sverags A38 A543 2768 3679 W8
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Renswable Innovation & Othaer
Energy Ervgies Energy  Building Materiais Digitalisation Activities” Transition Group
24383 15305 396885 1LBWS W0y = . W.625T
M8 1366 385 351 11 56.4 = 14755 -
a8 59 T4 o.F .1 .S = 13009 —
26887 16596 43584 16533 ne ao =1,608.5 18.625.7
326 ‘5.8 128.4 472 -HL3 8.7 0z 353
- 81 233 - 324 - 181 -20 -181 -13.8 - 1429
235 25 S50 na -123 2.3 -13.2 e
8 L =203 -2.0 A 0.8 - = B0
-18 \|o - B -85 -1 =128 - -7a8
-0F -0T -0 - g o | a0
nT 515 782 22 =124 -d1L.B -13.8 826
LT
54.9
no3 dsm7 420 .4 480 A.608.2 65517 15118
- 28 26 o - W03 - 2146
- - a1 - a1 a4
518 8337 &858 ma 2 23 3088 2.5900.5
288 A3 34819 a5 na T80 -4,387.0 61224
132 nss a7 M7 a9 439 . 20975
958 La28 ‘2.4807 4am 3 e - 18004
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BaWn Agri Bay'n
in € mitlion Supply & Trade Agricultural Calobal Agricuttural
S 200T [BAST) Sales Produce Equipment  Agriculture
Revenyes gensrated thiowegh business with thind parlies @78 2.E128 Bl5S & 14003 MWLE38.5
Inlra-butingss il Segmant Tenvenoes 4045 252 oo 287 6863
Inter-busingss wnit’ segmant MeENues BT 6.3 - i - k]
Total revenues 6.277.0 3.3 BOSS 14307 MEed6
Earmings before interest. tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 10.5 53.4 457 324 WMLT
Deprociation. amortisation ~a5 218 w2 LA - 586
Earmings befors interest and tax {EBIT) 1.0 5.7 0.4 -] B2
Firancial reslt 125 =122 -4 9.0 =381
thereal: net interest -B.4 =131 -5.3 -TB - 3d.4
thisreal: equilty resull -1 oT 03 o3
Earnings before tax (EBT] -1.4 12.8 241 123 477
Incoma tax
et result for the year
Asnols LEE0 13223 S5 7232 AT77.0
therend: participating interests recognised st equity TG 10 2950 129 LT
theracd: pon-cusrent sssats held for sale - - -
imentories 4805 B60.2 454 3823 15483
twrend: non-cusment asaets hedd for sabe - - - - -
Liabilities 12604 TR0 25559 G504 28877
theerend: liahilities from non-current st heid for spls - - - - -
investments in intangible assels, property, plant and equipment and
investrment property [maluding Company Soquisiiann) b, s 497 45 2 127 383
Empioyes annusl Sverags 563 3495 2925 3629 10E3

158

BayWa AG Consolidsted Financial Staternents 2018



Consolidated Financial Statems
Docket No. EMP-109 Sub 0

nts — Notes to the Consolioated Financisl Statements

Renswable Innovation & Othaer

Energy Ervgies Energy  Building Materiais Digitalisation Activities” Transition Group
29R1 L3BET 35847 LB0E 1 89 bli K= 18,0661
230 625 855 ] 08 536 - 1.061.6 -
55 18 74 18 @1 5.7 1378 -
14566 14311 38877 16443 T T3 =1,199.4 6,055.1
s 9319 1213 45.8 -a7 T5.5 -57.2 3184
2.0 na - 363 - 5T 21 - 207 -12.8 -T2
18.5 B66.6 B850 300 - 108 54.85 - 70,0 M3
w2 4 -9.0 = o 1328 254 - 28.0
-0 158 =60 -09 - Db -80 =16 - B85
-39 -39 -0 61 25
183 50T 62.0 n - 108 468 -TLB 1024
-351
67.2
9.0 20080 3187 B&i 72 s 54021 6.488.0
- 23 23 o2 - a5 - 2146
12 12 - - 125 137
451 4515 5008 L] 19 11 113.5 kv g
arza 2886 25810 S138 wa 22921 - 35198 50525
7] L1 221 207 a4 29 230.4
pori: ] L 2078 4183 58 58T - .550
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We received the following addittonal information regarding these developments pursuant to Section 27a para. 1 of the German Securities

Trading Act (WpHG).

1) Objectives of the acquisition:

a) The acquisition of BayWa Aktiengesellschaft voling rights sarves to implament stratagic goals;

b} RWA Management, Service und Beteiligungen GmbH plans to obtain additional voling rights by means of acquisition or otherwise
within the next twelve months, but not to a significant extent. and mainly to prevent dilution of its existing voting rights;

c} RWA Management, Service und Beleiligungen GmbH currently does not intend to exercisa any further-reaching influence on the
appointment of members of the issuer’s administration, management and supervisory bodies;

d) RWA Management, Service und Betgiligungen GmbH currently does not plan to implement any materiai changes to the company’s
capital structure, particularty in view of the ratio betwean equity and debt capital as well as dividend policies.

2} Origin of tunds used for the acquisition: Insofar as the acquisition of the voting rights occurmed within the scope of the marger of RWA
Verbundservice GmbH, the former wholly-owned subsidiary of the reporting entity, with Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, neither debt nor
equity capital was used for the acquisition of BayWa Aktiengeselischaft voting rights. Any further small acquisitions concluded since the
merger were paid with company funds.

RWA Management. Senvice und Betsiligungen GmbH. Vienna, Austria. informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the
German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), its share in the voting rights of BayWa AG, Munich. Germany, came to 25.12% (8,533,673 voting
rights) on 15 July 2008 and that these voling rights are apportionable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar invest GmbH (direct holder of the voting
rights) pursuant to Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

We received the following additional information regarding these developrnants pursuant to Saction 272 para. 1 of the Garman Securities

Trading Act (WpHG):

1} Objectives of the acquisition:

a) The acquisition of Bay\Wa Aktiengesellschaft voting rights sarves to implement strategic goals;

b) RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Handel und Vermdgensverwaltung eGen plans 1o obtain additional voting rights by means of
acquisition or otherwisc within the next twelve months, but not to a significant cxtent and mainky to prevent dilution of its cxisting
volting rights;

c) RWA Reiffeisen Ware Austria Handel und Vermagensverwaltung eGen currently does not intend to exercise any further-reaching
influence on the appointment of mambers of the issuer’s administration, management and supervisory bodies;

di RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Handel und Vermdgensverwattung eGen currently does not plan to implement any material changes to
the company’s capital structure, particutarly in view of the ratio between eguity and debt capital as well as dividend policies.

2} Origin of funds used for the acquisition: Insofar as the acquisition of the valing rights occurmed within the scope of the merger of RWA
Verbundservice GmbH, the former wholly-ownead subsidiary of the reporting entity, with Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, neither debt nor
equity capital was used for the acquisition of BayWa AG voting rights. Any further small acquisitions concluded since the merger wena
paid with company funds.

Correction of a voting rights notification from 16 July 2009

RWA Management. Service und Beteiligungen GmbH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1of the
German Sccuritics Trading Act (WpHG)., the sharc of woling rights appartioncd to it in BayWa &G, Munich, Germany, had cxcceded the
thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 2512% (B.533.673 voling rights) on
15 July 2005, The share of voting rights of 25.12% (8.533.673 voting rights) is apportionable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant
to Section 22 para. 2 of the Garman Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Carraction of a voling rights natification from 16 July 2009:

RWA Raiffeizen Ware Austria Handel und Vermogensverwaltung eGen, Vienna, Auetria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section
21 para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the share of vating rights apportionad to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Gerrnany, had
exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25.12% (8,.533.673
voting rights) on 15 July 2009. The share of voting rights of 25.12% (8,533,673 voting rights) is apportionable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar invest
GmbH pursuant to Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Correction of a voting rights naotification from 16 July 2009

Raiffeisen-Holding Niederssterreich-Wien registrierte Genossenschaft mit beschrinkter Haftung. Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May
2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the share of voting rights apportioned to it in
BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voling
rights came to 25129 (8,533 673 voling rights) on 15 July 2009, This share in voling rights of 25.12% (8,533 673 voling rights) is
apportionabie o it via the chain LAREDC' Beteiligungs GmbH, LEIPMIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs Aktiengecellschaft.
Raiffeisan Agrar Holding GmbH, Raiffetsen Agrar Imest GmbH, the direct holder of BayWa AG voting rights pursuant to Section 22 para 1
eentence 1item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
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Correction of a voting rights notification from 18 July 2008:

'LAREDOr Betelligungs GmbH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the share of voling rights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had excesded the thresholds of 15%, 20%
and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25.12% (8,533,673 voting rights) on 15 July 2009. This share
in voting rights of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting rights) is apportionable to ‘LAREDO" Betelligungs GmbH via the chain LEIPNIK-
LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs Aktiengesellschaft, Raiffeisen Agrar Holding GmibH, Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmibH, the direct holder
of Bay\Wa AG voting rights pursuant (o Section 22 para. 1 santence 1itam ] of the Garman Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Carrection of a voting rights notification from 16 July 2008:

LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21
para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the share of voting rights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had
exceaded the thresholds of 15%. 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came fo 25.12% (8,533,673
voting rights) on 15 July 2009. This share in voting rights of 25.12% (B.533 673 voting rights) is apportionable to it via the chain Raiffeisen
Agrar Holding GmibH, Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH {the latier being the direct holder of BayWa AG voling rights} pursuant to Section 22 para.
1sentence 1item 1 and via Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant to Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Caorrection of a voting rights notification from 16 July 2008:

Raiffeisen Agrar Holding GrmibH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that. pursuant to Section 21 para. 1of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the share of voting rights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had excesded the thresholds of 15%, 20%
and 25% on 15 July 2002 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25.12% (8,533,673 voling rights) on 15 July 2009. This share
in voting rights of 25.12% {B_533,673 voting rights) is apportionable to it via Raiffeizen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant to Section 22 para. 1
sentence 1itemn 1'and Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

Correction of a voting nights notification from 15 July 2009:

Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that. pursuant o Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities
Trading Act (WpHG), the share of voting rights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had exceeded the threshoids of 15%, 20%
and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25.12% (8.533,673 voting rights) on 15 July 2009,

Raiffeisen-Holding Miederasterreich-Wien registrierte Genossenschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 12 January
2016, in the form of a notification of voting rights pursuant to Section 41 para. 4f of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that the
share of voting rights apportioned 1o it in BayWa AG, Munich, Garmany. amounted to 25.10% (34,783,980 voting rights) on 26 November
2015 The company's share had amounted 1o 25.172% on the date of the last notification.

(E.5.) Related party disclosures

Under IAS 24, ralated parties are defined as companies and individuzls where one of the parties has the possibility of cantrolling the other or
of exerting a significant influence on the financial and business policies of the other.

A significant influence within the meaning of 1AS 24 is constituted by participation in the financial and operating policies of the company, but
not the control of these policies. Significant influence may be exercised in several ways usually by representation on the management board
or on the management and. or supenyisory bodies, but also by participation, for instance, in the policy-making process through material
Intra-Group transactions, by interchange of managerial personnel of by dependence on technical information. Significant influence may be
pgained by share ownership, stalute or contractual agreement. With share ownership, significant influence is presumed in accordance with
the definition under |AS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Vientures [2011]) if a shareholder owns 20% or more of the voting rights.
either directly or indirectly, unlass this supposition can ba clearly refuted. Significant influsnce can be desmad irrafulable if the policy of the
company can be influenced, for instance, by the comesponding appointment of the members to the supervisory bodies.

In redation to the sharehcider group of BayWa AG, the hotdings of Bayerische Raiffeisen-Beteiligungs-AG, Beilngries, Germnany, as well as
Raiffetsen Agrar Invest AG, Vienna, Austria, [formerly. Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austria) mean that they can exert significant
influence on BayWa AG. These companies are, therefore, to be classified as related parties. In addition to dividend payments of BayWa AG
to Bayerische Raiffeisen-Beteiligungs-AG of €110 million {2017 €10.4 million) and to Raiffeizen Agrar Invest AG of €7.9 million {2017
€74 million). no business transactions wers camed out in the financial year 2018 within the meaning of IAS 24 which need to be reported
here.
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Tranzactions with related parties are shown in the table below:

Bayerizche Ralalsan-
in € million The Bosrd of Batedicpange-AG end Non-conaclidsiad Non-consslidsted
=na The Supervisory Boand Management Raiffeisen Agrar imvest AG companiss > 5% companies » 20 5 50%
Racenabias - - - B w2
Liabilities - - - 23 wa
Intedest incoms o0 00 E or LA
Intesest mpanses. - - - o3 =00
Rovenuns e A5

Bayeraers Raflleizen-
T millian Tree Baosra of Beteiigungs-AG uhd Hon-ponsolidated Naon-cormohasten
v The Suporvisory Boand Managomaenl Raiffeisen Agrar invest AG companios ~ 50% companies » 20% 5 50%
Racenablas - - - 8.3 68
Lisbllitjes e -1}
interest income - - o1 Q0
Interest expentes - - - o0 Qo
Revanues - - - 5.8 820

The transactions conducted with related parties predominantly pertain to the sale of goods. Members of the Board of Management or of the
Supervisory Board of BayWa AG are members in supenisory boards or board members of other companies with which BayWa AG maintaing
business refations in the course of normal business

(E.6.) Fees of the Group auditor

The following fees paid to the Group auditor Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesselischaft were recognised as expenses at BayWa AG

and its subsidiaries:

L million 8 200

For sudite perfommed 1.4 1

For other consullancy SONices o &

For tax consullancy senvices -

For other sandces o oa
148 14

Other consultancy services concern audits required by law alongside the audit of the financial statements. In the financial year 2018, these

audits centred on the German Renewabie Energy Sources Act (EEG) and 1he consolidated non-financial statement

Other services primarily concern supporting services in the organisation of workshops and projects.
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= BayWa r.e Green Energy Products GmbH, Munich, Germany

+ HayWa r.e. italia Assets GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany

+ BayWa r.e. Operation Services GmbH, Munich, Germany

+ BayWar.e renewable energy GmbH, Munich, Garmany

+ BayWa r.e. Rotor Service GmibH, Basdahl, Germany

« BayWar.e Rotor Service Vermogensvenwaltungs GmibH, Basdahl, Germany

+ BayWa r.e. Solar Energy Systems GmbH, Tubingen, Germany

« BayWa r.e Solar Projects GmbH, Munich, Germany

=  BayWa r.e. Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany

= Diermneter Enargie GmbH, Munich. Germany

» EUROGREEN GmbH, Betzdorf, Germany

+ FarmFacts GmbH, Pfarrkirchen, Germany

= Frucom Fruitimport GmbH, Hamburg, Germany

+ [nterlubes GmbH, Wirzburg. Germany

= Jannis Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Munich, Germany

+ OneShore Energy GmbH, Berlin, Germany

= renerco plan consult GmbH. Munich, Germany

*  RI-Solution GmbH Gesalischaft fir Retail-Informationssysteme, Sarvices und Lisungen mbH, Munich, Germany
« TESSOL Wrafistoffe, Mineraldie und Tankaniagen Gessllschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Stuttoart, Germany
=  Wingenfeld Energie GmbH, Hinfeld, Garmany

In accordance with Section 284b of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the following companies, as subsidiaries included in the
congolidated financial statements of BayWa AG, do not apply the reguiations governing disclosura (Sections 325 et sag. of the German
Commercial Code [HGE]):

+  Aufwind BB GmbH & Co. fwciundrwanzigste Biogas HG, Regensburg, Gormany

= BayWa Obst GmbH & Co. KG, Munich, Germanmy

= BayWar e Solardécher Il GmbH B Co, KG, Grafelfing. Germany

=  CLAAS Main-Donau GmbH & Co. KG, Gollhofen, Germany

= CLAAS Nordostbayern GmbH & Co. KG, Altenstadt. Germany

= Doarenhagen Windenergieaniagen GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

+ Evergrain Germany GmbH & Co. KG, Hamburg, Germany

* r.e Bigenergie Betriebs GmbH & Co. Dreiundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany
= & Bicenargie Betriebs GmbH & Co. Vierundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany
= e Bioenergie Betriebs GmbH & Co. Zehnte Biogas KG. Regensburg, Germany

* r.e Bioenergie Betriebs GmbH & Co. Zwélfte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany

+ Ruschberg Infrastruktur GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

+ Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co. KG. Groden, Germany

+ Solarpark Aquarius GmbH & Co. KG, Grifclfing, Gormany

= Solarpark Aries GmbH & Co. KG. Grafelfing, Germany

+ Solarpark Lupus GmbH & Co. KG. Grafelfing, Germany

*  SPM Solarpark Mahlau GrbH & Co. KG, Grafeifing, Germany

«  Umspannwerk Klein Binsdorf GmbH & Co, KG. Grafelfing, Germany

= WealthCap Portfolio Finanzierungs-GmbH & Co. KG. Grinwald, Germany

= Windpark Berschweiler GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

« Windpark Finkenbach-Gersweiler GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

+  Windpark Hettstadt GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing. Germany

= Windpark Hotle-Sillium GmbH & Co. KG, Grifeifing. Germany

+  Windpark Pferdsfeld GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

=  Windpark Straelen GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany

= Windpark Uphuser Mark GmbH & Co, KG, Grifelfing, Germany

= Windpark Withelmshohe GmbH & Co. KG, Grafelfing, Germany
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Share in capital
Marme 2na principal place of Business ino
BayWisr.e Asset Managemant GmibH, Grifelfing. Gamany 000
BanyWia r.& Acstralia Pty Lid, Maibouma, Australia 100
Bay\ar & Bloenergy GmibH. Regensiwrg, Garmmany 10000
BayWisr. e Cl=an Energy Sourcing GmibH (formerly: CE.T Ciean Energy Trading GmisH], Munich, Garmamy 1000
BayWar.e Clean Energy Soril. NStan, Raly 100.0
BaryNa & Enesr gy Venlures GmbH (formerly: Solarpark Lynt GmibiH), Grifeifing, Garmany 1000
BayWar = Espatia 5.1 U, Barcedons, Spaln oo
BayWar.e. France SAS, Paris. France 1000
BayWar.e Global Sérvices GmbH. Grifelfing (formerty: Solarpark Aston Clinton GrmibH, Munich), Germmany 1000
By r.e. Green Ensrgy Prodiects GmbH, Munich, Garmany 1000
BayWa r.& Hallas MEPE, Alhens, Graans 1000
BayWa r.e italia Asscts GmbH, Grafelfing, Germarmy 1000
BayWa r.e. alia S.r.l., Milan, Raty 1000
BaryWa e Eapan KK, Tokye, fanan 100.0
BayWa r & MNond: AB, Malmd. Seeosn 1000
BayiWa r.e. Operation Services GrmibH, Munich, Gerrmany 1000
BayWa r.e. Operation Sarvices Limiled, London, UK 1000
BayWiar.e. Oparation Services Sl Milan, Haly 1000
BayWar.& Polska 5p. 7 0.0, Warsaw, Poland 10000
BanyWWar e Propetti 5.5, Milan, ftaiy 1000
BayWa r.e. renewabla energy GambH, Munach, Genmamy 10,0
BayWar.e. Rotor Service GmiH, Basdahl, Germany 1000
BayWa r & Rolor Sandice Vermdosnoveraaitungs Gmbkl Basdsh], Germany 100D
Bunia r & Scandinavia AB, Malmd, Seaden Ta.0
BayWar.e Solar B.V.. Heeremvesn, Nethertands o0
Baywar.e. Solar Energy Systems GmibH, Tlbingen. Garmany 10000
BanyWia r.& Selsr Energy Systems intarnationsl Cooperations GmbH, Tibngen, Garmany 1000
BayWa e Solsr Projects GrmbH, Munich, Gerrmany 1000’
BayWa r.e. Solar Projects LLC. Wikmington (Detaware]. LS8 100.0
BayWa r.e. Solar Projacts Pty Lid. Malbourna. Australia 100.0
BayWis re Solsr Pie, Lid., Singspore, Republhs of Singspoos 1000
BayWar.e Solar Sysloms Co. Lid . Bangkok, Thailand LT
BayWWar.e. Solar Syitems LLC. Waminglon {Detaware), LIS 100.0
BayWWa r.e. Solar Syatlems Pty Lid, Adsiside, Austraiia 1000
BayWa e Solsr Syutems 5 de FLL o= C.V,, Meion City, Mesion 1oL
BayWa r.e. Solar Syslems 5.4 r L. Wemperhardl, Lusemboorg 1000
BayWa r.e. Solar Systormns Sl Boren, Raly 1000
Ryl s & Salar Sysiams SAS | armnnt. Franes W N
Bay\Wa r.o. Solardicher Il GmbH & Co. KG, Grifelfing. Germany 100.0
BayWa r.& UK Limited, London, UK 1000
BayWar e LUSA LLC, Witmingion {Detaware), LUISA 1000
BayWar.e Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWar.e. Wind Ple. Lid. Singapore. Republic of Singapore 1000
Bay\ea r.e. Wing Py 14, Richmond (formery; Collingaood), Australia 1000
BanyWWia r.a Wind Verwalbungs Gmisd, Grifsifing, Garmany 10000
BayWa roe Wind, LLC, Witmington {Deimsarc), USA S50
BayWNa & Windpark Artena GrbH. Grfelfing, Garmany 100
BayWiia roe Windpark Grina GmibH, Grafelfing, Germaey 1000
BayWar.e. Windpark San Lupo GmibH, Geilfelfing. Germany 10000
BayWWar.e. Zambia Lid.. Lusskcs, Fambia 1000
BayWNa Rus LLC, Moscow, Russss 1000
BayWs Likraire LLC, Kiev, Ukrans 1000
BayWWa Vorariberg HandeisGmbi, Lauterach, Austria 1.0
Becon Project Management & Consaftancy Lid.. Stirling. LU 1000
BGA Ben Gatredde Austria GrsH, Visnne, Ausiiis 1000
BeaCoea B Y., Dostarhout. Nathariands 1000
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Share in capital
Nama anhd principal place of business n%
Biomathanantage Waibeck GmbH, Grifelfing. Garmany W0aa
Bishopthorpe (Holdngs) Limdled, London, w000
BMH Blomethan G, Munech, Garmany 1000
Biike Hande GmibH. Landsbeng {formerty: BaiNs Agrar Vensaitungs GmbH, Munich), Gaomany a00
Breathe Energia in Movimento S.r.l. Rovereto (formerty. Trenta), Raly 0.0
Burkes Agenciss Limited, Giasgow, Lk 1000
BYY Solar 216 GHL. Tolkyo, lapah 100.0
Cafutra B.Y.. Rotterdam, Netherlands whoo
Cafatra Feed Service BV, Rolferdam, Netheriands oo
Cefatrn Hungary K, Budapesl, Hungary 100.0
Cafatra ibérica 51U Pozuelo de Alerodn. Spain 100.0
Cefolra Limited. Glasgow, LK 00D
Cofotra Polsia Sp. 2 0.0, Gaynla, Poland 000
Cefetra S.pA ., Roms. Italy 100.0
Cafatra Shipperg B. Y., Rottardam, Netheriands 000
Cnopin Wind, LLC. Wilminglon {Delasars), LISA 1000
CLAAS Main-Donau GmibH & Co, KG. Goltholen, Garmany a0
CLAAS Nordosttayemn GmibH & Co. WG, Atenstadt, Germany 0.0
CLAAS Shdosthayern GmDH. Toging am inn, Garmany 200
CLAAS Wirllemistrg GrmbH, Langenau, Germmarny B0
Daipur HoloCo Py Ltd. Richmond {formerty: Nhill HoldGo Py L. Collngwond), Austraiia o
Daipur Wind Farm Pty Lid. Richmond {formeersty Bnill Wind Farm Pty Lid, Collingwood), Sastradis oo
Detica (Shanghal) Frsil Teading Company Limiled, Shanghai. People’s Republlc of Chens 100.0
Defics Avestrafis Py L8, Tullarmarines, Mastralia 1000
Dofich Domestic Py Lid, Tullamarine. Australa 00
Dipfica Lirmited, Aasckiard, Mew Zealand 1000
Dsfica MNorth Arereca. inc., Torranes, LSS 500
Diermmesfar Energas G, Munkch, Garmany' 1000
DiErenhagen Windenergicanlapen GmbH & Co. KG, Grifolling. Germany Wi
DRWE - Beteiligungspesellschaft mbH. Munich. Germany 843
ECOwind d.o.o., Zegreh, Croalia 1000
ECOWIND Handeds- & Warlungs-Gmb#i, K, Sustria W00
Eko-En Polanow 1 50, 2 0.0, Warsaw, Poland oo
Eko-En Polanow 2 Sp. 7 6.0, Warsaw, Poland 1000
Eko-En Skitnd Sp. 7 00, Koszadin, Potand 0
Energla Rinnovabile Pugliess 5.1, Milan, Raty 000
Energy System Sendoes Sl Milan, Raly W00.0
FRFAFTNTS M Taalaned | imiad, foesdsnn Mew 7raland nnn
ENZAFRUIT New Zeaiand (Continent) NV, Sint- Truiden. Bolgium 000
ENZAFRUIT MNew fastand (LK) Limitsd, Luton, UK 100.0
ENZAFRUIT Naww Fealand Infarnatonal Lmited, Auckiand, New Zastand 1000
EMZAFAUIT Peru SAC, Lima, Penu w000
ENZAFRUIT Products inc., Wilmington [Detaware), LISA w000
Eol d"Aunis SAS Parie Frante 1000
Eolca San Lupo Sl Tranlo, ialy w000
EUROGREEMN AUSTRLA GmibH, Mondses Austria wnoa
EUROGREEM CZ sr.o.. Sitetin pod letiovon, Cech Rapublic 1000
EURDGREEM GribiH, Betrdor!, Germarny W00
Evergrain Germamy GmibH & Co. KG. Hambarg, Germiany wao
F. Url & Co. Gesefischaft mob H.. Lannach, Sustria oo
FarmF acis GmibH, Plamkirchen, Garmany 100.0
FarmF acts Holding GraibH, Munich. Gesrrmany 1000
Forpuson HoldCo Py Lid, Richmond {formerty: Collingwood). Australia W
Ferpuson Wind Farm Ply Lid, Richmond (formesy: Collingwood]. Sustralia W00
Frucom Frstemport GmbH, Himburg, Germay 1000
Fruit Distritators Limdled, Auckland, New Jeatsng W00
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Fruitrmari Pty Lid, Mulprove, Ausstralia 1000
Fruitrnark LISA ine.. Saatile. USA 1000
Frulesa Cnile Limilsda, Santiago oe Chila, Chile 10000
Furukrat AR, Malmd, Sweden 1004
FWW Kamionka Sp. 7 0o, Kamionic, Poland 100.0
Garant - Tiernahiung Gessllzchalft m b H., Pochlam, Auvstria 1000
GEMNOL Gessllachalt m.b.H & Co HG. Vienna Austria o
GH. UH Solar. Osalka, lapan 900
Groenleven B.V.. Heeremween, Netherlands 1000
Groanl &ven reesl BV, Hagrermeesn, Nelheriands 1000
Hughendsn Solar Farm FinCo Poy Lid, Malbourne, Bustrais 1000
Hughenden Solar Farm HoldCo Py Lid, Malbourne, Australia 1000
Hughenden Solar Trust. Richmond, Austraila 100.0
ImmobiEmermiatung Gessiischaf m oo, Traun, Austra 1000
Inkeriuies GmibH, Wiirzburg, Germany 1000
Inter Saatrchl GmbH, Hofenkcarmmer, Germany 1000
IFaak S Farm Pty Lid, Melbourne, Australia 100.0
lannis Beteligungsgeseilschaft mbH. Munich, Garmamy 1000
Karada Solar Farm FinCo Pry Ltd. Meinouma, Australia 10000
Karado: Solar Farr HoldCo Py Lid. Meibowrne, Acsiraiia 1000
Ketsey Creek Solav Farm FinCo Pty Lid, Melbourne, Augtraiia 120.0
Kelsey Cresk Solar Farm HoldCo Pty Lid, Melbourmne. Auctralia 100.0
Lagernsus Techngk-Canler GrnbH & Co KG. Kernsuburg. Austris B1LE
Landhandsl Knaup GrmbH, Borchen Gerrmacny 510
Le Grand Champ Energles SARL. Paris, France 1000
Les Landes Energes SAHL. Paris. France 10000
LHED Lsrsinande] Drabhio import- und Expor Gmik. Drebbce, Garmany 1000
LTZ Chermedty G, Hartmannsaor!, Germaity 200
Lyngsisa iraft AB. Malmd. Sweden 100.0
Mid Wertt 5F Not Py Lid. Meibourne. Australia 1000
Mozart Wind, LLC. Wilmington (Delsvara], USA 1000
OneShore Energy Gmbé. Berlin, Germany 1000
Cuyen HoloCao Pty Lid, Richmond (formerty: Collingwood), Australia 100.0
Chuyen Sodar Farm Pty Lid, Bschrmond (farmerly: Collingwood), Australia 100
Parc Eoben du Chemin du Roy SARL, Parks, France 1000
Parco Solsre Smeraldo 5.r.L. Bagen, Raly 100.0
PARGA Park- und Gartentechniic Gesslischalt m.b H. Aderkiaa, Assiria 100.0
Pari Fiian | smari S r | Sinin, Bomana aan
Fargue Ediico La Carracha 5.L. Zarsgora. Spain T4.0
Pargoe Edlico Plana de Jarreta S, Zaragora, Spain 74.0
Peler Frey GmbH, Warnenberg, Garmany B1.0
Plapperer Progekl GmbH, Schwobenhausen, Genmarmy 51.0
Cuiity Guenrous! Enargies SARL. Paris, France 1000
1.¢ Biberergie Belrlels GmbH & Co. Drelundrwanzigate Biogas HG, Regensburg, Sermany 160.0
r.& Biparwrgle Belrists GmbH & Co. Visrendhaanzigals Bioges KG, Regetiburg. Sarmany 10000
r.¢ Bipenargie Belricks GmbH & Co. Zehnta Blogas HG. Regensburg. Germany 1000
r.¢ Biosnergie Belrishs GmbH E Co. Zwbile Biogas KG. Regentburg, Ganmany 1000
Raiffeizen Waren GmibH Nirmberger Land, Hersbruck, Germmany 520
Raiffeisen-Lagerhaus GmbH, Bruck an der Leitha, Austria Ba.9
Raiffeisen-Lagerhaus irvestitionsholding GrmibH, Vienna. Austria 100.0
Ravel Wind, LLC, Wilmingion (Detaware), LUSA 1000
Regensrathves Land GmbH (formerty: BayWa r.e. 206 Projsktgesellschalt mbH). Grfeifing, Germary 1000
REMNERCO GEM 1 GmbH, Grifelfing. Germany 100.0
REMERCD GEM 2 GmbH, Grifelfing, Garmany 1000
rensroo plen consull GmbH, Mamseh, Garmanmy 1000
Rimnosatsl Ml 5.1, Trento, Raty 1000
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Rl-Sctution Cats Gmbi. Vianna, Austrs 000
Ri-Selution GrmbH Gesellschalt fir Ratsl -infarmationssystams. Senices und LOsungan mbH, Munach, Gesmary w000
RIVEKA BVEA, Boom. Beigium 1000
Rock Power 51U Barcelons, Spain W00
RUG Raiffeisen Urnweitgesellschaft mob M. Vienna, Austria TS0
Ruschbérg infrastruldur GmbH & Co. WG, Grisisifing, Genmany 1000
RWA Hrvatsics d oo, Zagred, Croatis 100.0
AWA Immobilien GmibH. Vienna. Ausiria whoo
WA Enternaitionad Holding GmbH. Vienna, Sustria oo
WA Irvvesl Gmibi, Vienna, Austria 100.0
WA Magyirorszag K. lrdny, Hungary 000
RWA Raiffeisen Agro Romanta 5or L. Orfiscara. Romania 000
RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Aktiengeselischafl. Vienna, Austria 5000
WA SLOVARKLA, spal. & .0, Bratiziave, Showakia 100.0
AWA Slovenija d 0.0, Lavrica Slovenia 000
RWA Srbijad oo, Beigrade, Serbia 100.0
Rylors Vindicraft AR Malmd, Sweden L etil
Sambonwing Wirlsnock GmbH, Thomatal Sustria 100u0
5B Power Holdings PTe. Lid., Singapore. Republic of Singapore LLitil
SEU Power 5dn. Bihd., Petaling kya, Maleysia 250
SC Puternea Verge Srl., 58w, Romania (-]
Schradenbicgas GmbH & Co, KG. Griden, Germary a5
Schumann Wind, LLC WAlmingbon [Delswsra), IS 100.0
Shisidhall | ogistics Limfad, Glasgow, UK 000
Sinclair Logistics Limited, (lasgow, U 000
Sifnnabol Kraft A5, Matmd, Swedan 1000
Solsrmark] GmbH. Aars. Swilrenand 100D
Solarpark Aquaries GmibH & Co. WG, Grifeifing, Garmany 1000
Solarpark Aries GmbH & Co. HG. Grifelfing. Germmany Wi
Solarpark Lupus GmbH & Co. KG. Grifelfing. Germany 100.0
Solarpark Vine Farm GmbH, Grafelfing. Gesmany 1000
5PM Solarpark Mdhiau GmbH & Co. KG. GrEfelfing, Germany W00
Status Produce Favona Rosd Limited, Auscidand, Mew Zealand oo
Stsus Produce Limiled. Auckisnd. New Zastand 1000
Storman Energl A8, Malmd, Sweoen 1000
Stratess Wind, LLE. San Diggo, USA W00.0
Sun Energy Mo G, Tolkyo, lagan W00.0
Saan Priwer Shedlia S e i Midan, italy AN
T&G Fruitmark H Limdted. Hong Kong. Peopie’s Repubilic of Ching 000
TRG Globa Lirmiled, Aockiand, New Fesisnd 40
TEG Insurance Lmstad, Auckiand, New Jealsnd 1000
TRG Japan Ltd . Tokpo, kapan w000
TRG South East Asialtd.. Bangkos, Thaitand w000
TRG Virzari Farms Pty Lid, Tullamarine. Acsiralis 500
Talpa Water Supply Limilad, Koriler], Mew Zasland 5.0
TechnikCenter Grimema GmbH, Mutzschen, Gesmany o
Tessannano Enengy Sr.1.. Rovereto (formesty: Trento), Itaky 1000
TESS0A. Kraftstoffe Mineralfie und Tarkaniagen Gese|lschaft mit bescheiinkter Haflung. Stuttgart, Germiany 000
TFC Holland 8 V.. Maasdijk. Notheriands Ta4
Thenargy B.' .. Oosterhoul. Notheriands oo
Timboon West HolaCo Pty Lid, Richmond (lormeay: Collingwood), Acxstralis 100.0
Timboon West Wind Farm Pty Lid. Rschmond (formery: Coltingwood), Austradia 000
Tracomex BV, (formerty: Thepra Tracomes 8.V, ). Doslerhoul. Nethesrtands W
Tralorg Wind Farm Limited, London, Uk W00
Trinity Holding BcY.. Hesranveen, Netheriends 1000
Turners & Growers (Fif) Limited, Suva, Repuabilic of Fijl k]
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Turners & Growers Frash Limtad, Asckiand, New Zaatand 1000
Turnars & Growers New Zaaland Limélad, Auckland, New ZTealand 100
Turners snd Growers Hortioutlsre Lmitad Auckland MNew Zasisnd 10000
Tuscani Energy 5oL, Milan, tay 1000
Urnspanmee i Kisin Binsdor! GmbH & Co. KG, Grifelfing. Germany 00,0
Unterstirengremichiung cer Bayiia Aktiengesalischal i Manchen GmbH, Mursch. Gefmany 100.0
URL AGRAR GmasH, Premstiten. Assiria 1000
VISTA Goowissenschaftiiche Fermeriundung GmibH. Monich, Germany 51.0
Vietrosiekirana Orjak duowo. Zagreb, Croatia 100.0
WY Wikrmne Austria Vertriebegmitsi, Vianna, Ausiria &80
WeallhCas Portfollo Finanssmnunge-GmbH & Co, KG. Grimasid, Garmany 1000
‘Wessex Grain Lid., Templecomie, Uk 1000
‘Winafarm Frafsthonpe GmibH, Grifeiling. Germany 1000
Windpark Birolen Grbd, Kb, Acstris 1000
Windpark Balls GmbH, Grifeifing, Geomany 1000
‘Windpark Barschiweiler GrbH B Co. KG, Grillelfing, Gesmaty 1000
Windpark Finkenbach-Gersweller GmbH & Co, WG, Grifetfing. Garmany 100.0
‘Windpark Furstkogel GmbH. MEb. Acstria 1000
‘Winapark Hetistadt GmbH B Co. HG. Grifelfing. Germany 10000
Windpark Hiesberg GmbH, Kilh, Acsiria 1000
Windgark Holle-Silium GmbH & Co. KG. Gralelling. Germany 10,0
‘Wincpark Hamionka GmibH, Grifesfing. Germany 100.0
Wirdioark Kraubaiheck Grmbi, Wil farstris 100D
Winciparkc Mt Gmbk. Griiletfing. Garmary 1000
‘Windpark Pengsfsid GmbH & Co. MG, Gridfalfing, Germmany 1000
Wincpark Straeten GrmbH & Co. MG, Grifelling, Germany 1200
Windpari Uphuser Mark GmibH & Co. KG, Grifalfing. Gy 1000
Windpark WilhEimahobe GmbiH & Co. KG, Grifelfing. Ganmmany 1000
‘Wingendfeld Energie GmbH. Hindeld, Gormany 100.0
‘Worldwice Frofl Limitod. Soalding. UK 50,0
¥alpood Sotar Farm FinCo Pty Lba. Metbourms, Ausirsils 1000
Yatpood Solar Farm HotdCo Py Lid. Molbourne, Sustralis LT
Yatpool Sum Farm Py Lid, Melboame, Sustralia 100.0
¥awong HotaCo Pty Lid, Richmond (formerty; Collingwood). Austratis 100
Yawong Wind Farm Py Lid, Richmmond (formeny: Collingwood). Australia 100D
Zonnepark BV, Heerenveon, Nethertands 1000
Zonnepark Drenthse BV, Heererveen, Notherlands 1000
Frincapsrk Frimsland RV Hassaroean Metharianis W N
Zonnepark Woldierspoor 8.V Hesrerveen, Netherlands 1000
Zonrepark 0L B.Y., Hearemvesn, Natherlands 875
Zonreparken Naderland B.V.. Hesremeen, Natheriands 1000
1 Profit amd ioss ransder agrovment
Subsidiaries not included in the group of consolidated companies
"Bayifis CS Poleka® Sp. ¢ oo, Grodrsk Mazowseck, Poland 10000
*Danufiert” Handelsgesalischaft mobH. Vienna. Ausiria 0.0
ABATIS Beteiligungegeceiischall mbH, Dussaldor!, Geemany 100
Agrarproculdenhends] Gessibuctafl m b H,, Kiagenfurl, Susiria 10000
Agrimec B.V.. Apcidoom., Netheriands 00,0
Agrimec Parts B.V.. Veghal. Netheriands 100.0
Agro Innovation Lab GmbH. Yienna, Sustria 1000
Agromead Azis Limited, Hong Kong. People’s Republc of China 1000
Agro-Froperty Kit.. Kecskomeat. Hungary 1000
Al Dafra BayWa agriculture LLC. &bo Dhabi, United Arab Emirates 4810
almodovar Solar (formearty: Fres Bresk Syatems S0 LY, Bercsiona, Spain o
Aurora Sciar Projects, LLC, Dower (Delawars), LIS 1000
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BayWa Bau Projekd GrbiH (formesrty: ELG Energie Logiatik Grmbé), Munich, Germany 000
BayWa C5 GmbH, Munich. Garmany 1060
BayWi Fordenmgamanagament GmbH, Munich, Garmany 000"
BayWa Global Froduce GmibH, Mumnich. Germany 10010
BayWa Greenhouse Development G, Mosich, Germany W0
BayWa Dbst Verwallungageaslischall mok, Munich, Garmany 1000
BayWare 145 Projexigesslischaft mbt Grfetfing, Germary 1000
BayWa r.o. Bioerargy Betricbs GmbH. Grifelfing. Germany 000
BayWar.e. Desarrolios Solares 5. de ALL. g C V. Mexco City, Mesioo oo
BayWa r.e. Developrment Land Holdeo, LLC. Los Angales, LSS 100.0
HayWo . Development. LLC, Wilrmington (Detswara), USA 100.0
BayWar.e EPC. LLC. Wilmington [Delaware], USA 000
BayWa r.e. Mesico, LLC, Wimington [Delesare], USA 000
BayWor.e. Projects Espaha 54U, Barcekons Spain 100.0
BayWa r.e Solar Projects Yerwallungs GmioH, Grafeifing, Germany w000
BayWa r.e. Sclar Systems Lid., Machynlistn, UK 0.0
BayWa r.e. Solar Systems 5 L1, Madrid. Span 1000
BayWa r.o. Sclarsysiemer ApS, Svendborg. Denmark o0
Ba'Wa r . Winapark Guasils GmbH. Graletfing. Germany 000
HayWa r.e. Wincpaers Toscanis GmbH, Grifeifing, Germany 000
BayWa re (Malaysial San. Bhd.. Kusla Lumpur, Malaysia 000
BayWa Font GmibH (formearty; AGRO-CAD Softwane GmbH, GroStardau OT Kiginbardau), Munlch, Germany W00.0
BayWa Venbure GmibH. Munich, Germasny 100.0
Bisistein LU Barcslona, Spain 000
Biogasanlage Geislingen GmbH & Co. WG, Grijden, Gorrmany 000
eohap international GmbH. Vienna, Ausing &00
Bipebird Solar LLC, Frankfor {Kenfucicoy). UISA 100D
Botzay Energie SAR1L. Paris, France 1000
Birgorsolaraniage Plaffenhofon GmbH. Grifetfing. Gormany Wi
BW Solar 815 G Tokyo. lapan 100.0
C L G Computandianst fiir Landwirtachaft und Gaserbe GrmbH, Plasridrehan, Garmany' W00
CalCity Solar | LLC. Wilmington {Delawane), LISA 00.0
Cafatra Este 5L, Poduelo de Alarcdn. Spain oo
Cefatra Norta 51U Porusls de Alarcdn, Soain 1000
Cefatra Oeste 5L LU, Porusio de Alarcdn, Soain 1000
Cofetra Sur S LU, Porusto de Alarcdn, Spain 000
CENTRO AGRICOLO FRIULANG SR Féverto, ltaly 850
Cehasinuk Sriar 11 ©, Rabeigh (Narth Caeedina) 1154 nan
Clos heul Energles SARL. Paris. France 100.0
Col des 3 Sosurs SARL. Paris, Franoe 100.0
Dianugrain Lagersi GrmbH, Krems an der Donss, Acsirs 800
Deiano Sotar 1 LLC, Wiiminglon (Delasane). LS4 w000
Ekn Energetika Croatia d.o,o., Rijeka, Croatia w000
Erste Onshore Windical Beteiligungsgessilscnan mbH, Didentesrg, Germany 1000
Eurogresn italis Sl Mikan, italy 51.0
Evergrain Venssitungs GmbH, Hamburg. Gemany 000
FarmFacts Batedigunge GmbH, Plarmdrechen. Garmany 1000
FarmFacts Hungary KL, Kaposvir, Hungary W00
Fontenet Energies SARL. Paris, France wao
Forster G, Munich, Germady W00
Freedom Solar, LLC. Wikmington (Delmvars), USA 100.0
G_Stranzinger Bssrojekt GmibH & Co. KG. Tann, Garmany 600
G. Simnzinger Versaltungs GrmbH. Tann, Germany &0
GENOL Geseflechafl mbH. & Co KG. Vienna, Ausiria o
Gendl Vertrisbesysisms GmbH, Viennd, Susiris 1000
Gourvilletls Erergees SARL. Paris. France W00
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Granoe Lande Enargies SARL . Paris. Franca 1000
Grasshoppdr Solar LLC, Ghan Allen (Virginda), USA 1000
Green Answers GmbH & Co. WP Viahibruch KG. Grifeifing Germany 10000
Green Wind Deutschisnd GmbH. Monich, Garmamy 500
HERA Raiffeisen-immobilien-Lessing Geselltchalt mbH., Vienna, Austria 510
Heuberg S LU, Barcalona, Spen 1000
Hexagons Enargie 7 SAS, Paris. France 510
Hughenden Sotae Pty Lid. Richmond, Austradls 1000
HXMNAF Solar One. LLEC. Raleigh (North Carolina), USA 100.0
IMROSILIARE AGRICOLA RIVOLTO S R.L.. Rivollo. itaty 1000
lacurnss Land HoldCo LLC, Wilmsngton {Dalowmral, UFSA 1000
Jung HoldCo Pty Lid, Richmond [formerty: Collingwood). Australla 1000
Jung Wind Farrm Pty Lid. Richmona (Tormerty: Collingwood). Australia 100.0
VR Energy Pari LLC, Los Angeles, ISR 100.0
KN, 3.4 P da C).. Mexico City. Mexico 1000
KALPIE S AP deC V., Madoo City, Mexdoo 1000
Keranra Energies SARL. Paris. France 100.0
Katzimer Betefligungzgeselischaft mbH, MNeederar Fldming. Germany 1000
Kita-lBarag Coty PV Plant Gk Tokyo. lapan 10000
Kobe Yamada PV Punt GKL. Tolkoyo, lagan 1000
La Couture Energies SARL. Paris. France 10,0
La Redonda Solar S1 {formerty: Star Leaks Systems S0, Barcelona, Spain o0
Lagernsus &-Sarvice GmitH. Vierna, Acstrla 100D
Lagertuus Technik-Center G, Karmeuhurg, Auctris 536
Les EcBennes Citoyennes oe Botsay SAS. Parls, France 1.0
Les Landbers Energies SARL. Paris. France 1200
Le=s Pherres Blanches Energies. Paris, France 1000
Les Platayres Enarples SARL, Pars. France 1000
LESIA a 5. Striknice. Crech Republic 100.0
Londigry Energsirs SARL. Parke. Franca 1000
Lusngs Solar, 51U, Barcslona, Spain 1000
Magyar “&grar-Hazr" KN ikndny, Hongary 1000
Magueda Solar, 5.1.U., Barcelona. Spain 100.0
Matanari 1 Holdngs Pta, Lig, Singapore. Republic of Smgapare 100
MO-Betrists-GmbH, Munich. Germany 200
MNew Uindversedine Systems 51, Barcelona, Spain o0
HOE-Betrisbs-GmibH, Munich, Germany 20,0
Ninsifwen Caertinad Rnlar |16, Ralsigh (Morth Camilins], (R N
Notch Peak Solar, LLC. Wilmington (Deloware), LISA 100.0
Ni=vos Pargues Edlloos LaMosts ALE , Zaragora, Spsn 1000
PATIES Batadligunpsgessilschaft mibH, Dosseldor!, Gerrmany 1000
Plesidy Energies SARL. Paris. France 100.0
PT. Busniraya Suria Abadl. hiarta. indonesia 440
Radiant Burst Systerms SIL., Madrsd Span 1000
Raiffarsen Trgovina d.o.o. Lénart Slovenis 10000
Rithéesn Logistik GmbH, RSthisn, Germany 500
WA Uoragna. Way. Ukraing 1000
5.C Denugrain Romania 50, Orfisoacs, Romania 0.0
Saatruchi Edethod GmbH (formesty: Graninger & Mayr Gessilschall m.b.H. ), Vienna, Swstria 1000
Saatrucht Gisisdor! Gessllschaft m b H.. Glalsdorf. Austria B6.7
Samnt-Ferriol Energees SAS, Pars. France 1000
Salrm Enargies SARL Paris. Francs 1000
Sanid Florian Handolsgeseilschall mbH, Vienna, Austria 100.0
SBP Power Sdan. Bhd.. Petaling Jaya. Malaysia 250
Schradenbenqat Betriebegesslisenafl mbH, Groden, Ganmany 1000
Sa3 Brears Hupe, 5.1, Madrid, Snam 1000
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Slivercham Gestion. 5.1 Barcelona, Spain 000
Solar Sud S.r1. Roverato, Maly w000
Solare Italis S.rl Rowverelo, [Ty 1000
Solarpark Cetus GmbH & Co, Kz, Grifsifing. Germany 1000
Solarpark Homestead GmbH. Grafelfing. Germany W0
Solarpark Hors GmibH, Grilsiling, Germasy 1000
‘Solarpark: Homes 50, 7 oo, Warssw, Poland 100.0
Solarpark Librs GrmbH & Co. KG. Grifelfing. Genmany whoo
Solarpark Lugh GrbH. Griffelfing, Germany oo
Solarpark: Lugh S5 7 000, Warssw, Poland 100.0
Solarnark Mating GrabH. Grifelfing, Garrmansy 100.0
Solarpark Malina 5p. 7 0.0.. Warsaw, Polang w000
Solarpark Mitra GmbH, Geiifelfing. Germany 000
Solarpark Mitra Sp. 7 0.0, Warsaw, Polanag 000
Solarpark Perssus GmibH & Co. WG, Grifeifing, Garmarny 000
Solarpark Sarmas GmbH, Grileifing, Garmany 1000
Solarpark Samas Sp. 7 0.0, Warssn, Poland L etil
Solarpark Sonna GmibH, Grifetfing. Germany o0
Solarpark Sunna 5p. 700, Warsaw, Polana 000
Solarpark Tucanas GmibH & Co. KG, Grifeifling. Gerrmany 000
Solarpark Wega GmbH & Co. KG, Grifetfing. Germany o
SolarSolutions 1/GmbH & Co, WG, Grifsifing Genmamy oo
‘Spring Hilt Wird Farm Pty LLd, Richmond (Rormeny: Collingwood ). Ausiralis 100.0
SPV Solarpark 101 GmbH & Co, MG, Grifeifing. Garmany 000
5P Solarpark W02 GmbH & Co. KG, Grifetfing. Germany 000
5PV Sclarpark 103, GmibH & Co, K Gréfeifing, Ganmany' 1000
SFY Solarpan W04 GmibH & Co. WG, Grifefing, Garmany 100D
PV Solarpark 105 GmibH & Co. KG. Grifeifing, Garmany 1000
SPY Solarpark W08, GmibH & Co. WG, Grifolfing. Germany Wi
5P Solarpark 107 GmbH & Co. KG. Grifetfing. Germany 0.0
SPV Solarpark 0B GmibH & Co. KG, Grifelfing. Garmany 1000
5PV Solarpark 109 GmibH & Co. K, Gridfletfing. Garmany W00
5PV Solarpark THL GmbH & Co. KGL Griifelfing. Germany 0o
Studips Satar 2, LLC. Wilmington {Delawarel, LSS 1000
Studhos Solar 3, LLC, Wikminglon (Delaware], LS8 1000
Studios Sotar 4, LLC, Witmington (Delawarel, USE W00.0
Studios Solar & LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), LS8 W00.0
Sturfins Snlar, 11 C Wimington (Delesees) US4 nnn
S00-Trober GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany 000"
Sunrige Forest G, Tokyo, lagan 100.0
Sunrge Mountam GK. Tokyo, lapan 1000
Sunrisa Ocean G Tokyo, lapan w000
Sunrire Ranbow Gi, Tolyo, lapan w000
Sunrise Valley GK. Tokyo, Japan 1000
Sunshine Bay GmbH & Co. KG, Munich. Ganmamy w000
Sunshine Latin GmbH & Co. KG, Munich, Germany wnoa
Sunshing Moverment GmbH, Munkch, Genmany 1000
Sunshine South GmbH & Co, KG, Grifedfing. Germany W00
Taga Solar, LLC. Wemington {Delmavare), UFSa wao
TFC Maasland BV _. WMassdil. Notherlands oo
Time Ciever Ertertsnmeent 5.0 L. Bxcslons. Spain 100.0
Tout Vant Energsas SARL . Paris, Franoe 1000
Trodias Energles SARL. Poris, France W
Vol di Maing Energies SARL. Paris. France W00
Varennes Energies SARL Paris, France 1000
Varennes Solare T SAS Paris, Franca W00
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Share in capital
Nama anhd principal place of business n%
alien Biair Propertses Limited. Wallington, Meaw Zaaland 333
Aubwing BB GmibH & Co. Zwanzigete Biogas WG Regonsburg. Garmany 000
BIISTRIA LECE GentiH, Alinarisbery, Ausins 500
Baltands Ceresles y Abonos, 5.1 Baltands. Spain 500
Baltic Termirad So. 2 oo, Gadynia, Poland 0.0
BHBEW Holdings (Py) Lia, Lynrmyood Manor, South Alrica 500
BHEYY Limil=o. Masdenibesd, LK 5040
béchalp - blclogischer Pllanzenschutz - Nitmdingsproduktions-, Handeis- und Berstungs GmbH. Yienna, Austris ]
BRE Holding GmibH. Muanich, Germany 453
Deutsche Railfemen-Warenzantrals Gmbi Frankfur am Main, Gasmany 378
EAV E nerpasferiresshe Anlagen Vensaiiungs GmibH, Stalfur, Gesrrmany 430
Grandview Brokerape LLC, Seattls, USA A4
Growers Direct Lmited, Wakofield, U 5000
Halen Vierow - Gesafischafl mit besche@nider Haftung, Brinzoes, Genmany 500
Hedrkraftwerke-Pool Verwallungs-GmibH. Munsch, Germany 333
Intedligent Frult Vision Limited, Spalding. LUK 240
LWM Austria Grbi, Hollabrunn, Austria 250
MoSagri B.Y.. Breda Netherlands 250
Mystory Creek Asparagus Limfted, Hamiiton, Mew Zaaland W5
POP Workdwice Limted, Spalding, UK 2440
PURE Applicationen GmbH & Co, KG. Regensburg, Germany 0
Slodeutsche Geothermia-Projakte Veraaitungsgesellschaft mbd L L. Grifeifing. Garmany' 500
T Fruil Firm Limnsed. West Malling. UK 200
Tranthispania Agraria. 51, Torquemada, Spain 283
VIELA Export GmitsH, Vierow, Germany 5000
Wawals Genoral Partner Limited, Malson. New Jealand 500
Associstes and point ventures of secondary imporance not incioded under the equity method
Afrupro investreents LTD. Tmaneon. South Africa 800
BAgrosen Helding GmbH. Kramsrmibnsher. Ausina 30.0
Agro-Sensce-Grdden GmbH, Groden, Germany 200
BRGE WWS Ot GaR., Markdorf, Genmany 500
B8 L E. Ba- urad Lang- Entwicklungsgeseiischafl Bayern GmibH, Manich, Gesmany 250
BayWa Hochhses Verwaltung GmbH, Griswald, Garmany 500
Brogas Plant Diperstions Limiled, London, LU 430
Bigtach-Enterprises-Linanzvensertungs-Gmbh, Fischamend, Austria 249
Bonus Helsystern fir Verpackungen GmbH & Co MG, Kufstein, Auvsiria 250
Rent s Hnksystan fir Varpackungsn Cmind sdatein, fstris N
BRVG Bayerische Rafleisen- und Volksbanken Verlag GmbH. Munich. Germany 250
Chimag Agrarchemilialisn GmbH. Frankfiort am Main, Germany 300
DANLOIL MinarsiSiisger und Umschisgs-Gessilachalt mb H . Visnna, Ausirin 500
DRWE Marken GmibH, Karsruhe. Germany 328
EBULLUM GmaH & Co. Dbjekl Baunatal WG, Pullach im isartal. Germany 540
HGD Hauws und Garten Deulschiandg Handslooperglion GmbH, Kataruhe, Garmarry 500
ISTROPOL BOLARY 5.4, Hormé Myto, Slovsids 2na
K&mtner Sastha & Gen.. Kisgenfort. Austria 278
HartofMel Centrum Bayern GmbH. Rain am Lech, Garrmany 500
Kerifresh Growers Trust 2017, Kerlkerl, Mew Zealand 310
Land24 Geselischall mit beschriinkter Haftung, Telgle, Germanmy 342
LLT - Lannacher Lager- und Transport GesmbH. Homeuburg, Austria 500
Logelikreaninem Ridthisin GmbH & Co. KG, Grifsifing. Germany 40
Ohat wim Bodenses Varniebapesaslischaft mbH. Friedrichehalen, Garmany 475
00 Lagerhaus Solicaritits GmbH. Traun, Austria 530
PHEA Powes Sdn. Bhd.. Kuala Lumpur, Mataysia 48D
Projaktentaiciiung Windioal Unteraligia GmbH & Co, KG. Bad Wiishoben, Germany 3.3
Profaktentsicidueng Windkraft interaiiglo Varwaitungs GmoH | L. Bed Wirishofen, Gammasy Az
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Responsibilities of the Executive Directors and the Supervisory Board for the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Group Management Report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that comply, in all material respects,
with IFRS as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315e (1) German
Commercial Code (HGB) and that the consolidated financial statements, in compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities. financial position, and financial performance of the Group. In addition, the execulive directors are responsible for such
intarnal control as they have determined necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statemeants that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

If prapaning the consolidatad inancial statamants, the axasutive Sirectore are responsible Tor asssting tha Group's abllity 1o continue as &
going concern, They atso have the responsibility for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem. In addition, they are
responsibie for financizl reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to liquidate the Group or to
cease oparations, or there is no reatistic alternative but to do so.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsibie for the preparation of the group management repart that, as a whoile, provices an
approperiate view of the Group's position and is, in-all material respects, consistent with the consolidated financial statements, complies with
German legal requirements, and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development. in addition, the executive
directors are responsible for such arrangements and measures (systems) as they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a
group management report that is in accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and 1o be able to provide sufficient
appropriate evidence for the assertions in the group management report

The supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statemnents and of the group management report.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements and of the Group
Management Report

Dur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whather fhe consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and whether the group management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the
Group's position and, in all material respects, is consistant with the consolidated financial statements and the knowledge obtained in the
audit, complies with the German legal requirements and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as
to Esue an auditor's report that includes our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Section 317 German
Commercial Code {(HGB) and the EU Audit Regulation and in comgliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial
Staterment Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or crror and arc conaidered matcrial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be cxpected to influcnce the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements and this group management report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

= jdentify and assess the risks of material misstatemnent of the consolidated financial statements and of the group management raport,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence that ks sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, a5 frawd may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
Internal control.

* pbizin an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit of the consolidated financial statements and of arrangements and
measures refevant [o the audit of the group management report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an audit opinion on the effectivensss of these systems.

= gvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the reasonableness of estimates made by the
executive directors and related disclosures.

= conciude on the approgriateness of the executive directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the sudit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a malerial uncertainty exisis, we are required o draw attention in the audiltor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and in the group management report or, if such disclosures ara
inadequate, to modify our respective audit opinions. Our conclushons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Group to ceaze to be able to continue 3% a going concem.
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=  gyvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements present the underlying transactions and events in a mannar that the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Group in compliance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU and with the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 215a (1) Garman
Commercial Code (HGB).

« obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinions.

= evaluate the consistency of the group management report with the consolidated financial statements, its conformity with German Law,
and the view of the Group’s position it provides.

= perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in the group management report. On the
basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate, in particular, the significant assumpltions used by the executive directors asa
basis for the procpective information, and evaluate the propear derivation of the prospective informatlon from thess assumptions. We do
not express a separate audit opinion on the prospective information and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial
unavoidable risk that future events will differ materially from the prespective information.

We commumnicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statemnent that we have complied with the relevant independence requiremsants, and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 1o bear on aur indepandenca, and whera
applicable, the related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and arc therefore the koy audit matters, We describe these mattersin
our auditor's report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure aboul the matter.
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In the period from 19 to 30 June 2018, amendments to the Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AKtG) were resolved by way of a circulation procedure.

At its meeting on'8 August 2018, the Supervisory Board addressed the interim report for the first half of 2018, among other things. The
Board of Management also reported extensively to the Supervisory Board on market developmant in the first half of 2018, the development
of the individual units, as well as on the current nsk situation at the BayWa agricultural group and the project business of BayWar.e.
renewable energy GmbH. Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschafl was also engaged (o oversee and audit the BayWa AG
Sustainability Report 2018 and the regular review of the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer following the preceding meeting of the
Board of Management Committes. Lastly, the Suparvisory Board adopted the resolution cancerning the aporoval of the terms and
conditions for the issuing of employee shares in 2018 within the scope of the 2015 authorised capital.

An increace in share capital and a corrasponding change to the Articles of Association on account of the issuing of employes shares from
the 2015 authorised capital in 2018 was decided by way of a circulation procedure in the period from 25 September to 8 October 2018,

In the meeting on 7 November 2018, the guarterly financisl statemants for the third guarter of 2018 were presented and the business
devetopment, which the Board of Menagement cutlined comprehensively in the individua! business divisions, was intensively discussed
between the Supervisory Board and the Board of Management, as were sirategic issues within the BayWa Group. The Supervisory Board
placed special attention again on the project business of BayWa r.a. renewable enargy GmbH. The Supervisory Board also consulted on the
results of previous meetings hedd by the Audit Committes, the Lending and |nvestment Committee and the Strategy Committes. In addition,
the Supervisory Board approved the extension of the terms of four members of the Cooperative Council. The Supervisory Board also
discussed the annual Deciaration of Conformity to the German Corporate Governance Code.

On 17 December 2018, the Supervisory Board convened at an extraordinary meeting and discussed the developments in an antitrust
authontics” investigation, which has becn ongoing since 2015,

On 18 lanuary 2019, the Supervisory Board met at a conference in Berlin 1o discuss the latest developments concerning IFRS 16, the Act on
the Transposition of the Second Shareholder Rights Directive (ARUG i), the Garman Corporate Governance Code and other relevant
standards. the associated legisiation and case law and issues concemning the Group's sustainability strategy and the progress of the
sustainability report.

In its first regular meeting on 27 March 2019, the Supervisory Board mainly discussed the annual financial statements and the management
repart on BayWa AG and an the Group as at 31 December 2018 as well as the reports of the audits parformed and the annual financial
staternents and the sustainability report. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board consulted on the resuits of previous meetings held by the
Audit Committee, the Lending and Investment Committee. the Strategy Committes and the Board of Management Comimittes.

Committees of the Supervisory Board

The Suparvisory Board has set up a total of six committees and. to the extant parmitted by taw, decision-making powers of the Supervisory
Board were delegated to the committess, These committees prepare additional resolutions for the Supenisory Board and issues to be
discussed by the entire Supervisory Board.

With the exception of the Audit Committes, the office of Chairman in respact of all committees is held by the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board. The Supervisory Board was kept informed at its meetings about the wark of the committess and their resolutions by the respective
chairmen.

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nassel and the Supervisory Board members Wolfgang Altmdller, Kiaus Buchleitner, Gunnar Metz
(until 5 june 2018), Werner Waschbichler, and Michael Kuffner and Wilhelm Obarhofer (both since 5 June 2018) belong to the Audit
Commitiee,

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Wiifgang Altmdller. BayWa AG has therefore adopted the recommendation of the German
Caorporate Governance Code which proposes that the Chairman of the Supervisory Board should not hold the office of Chairman of the
Audit Committes.

The Audit Committea hald two meaalings in the reporting year as schaduled: in March and November. In the presance of the independant

auditor, the Chairman of the Board of Management and the Chief Financial Officer, the committee discussed the separate financial state-
ments and the consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2017, the management report on the company and the Group, as well
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as the audit reports at Its meeating on 27 March 2018, Moreover, the statemnent declaring the independence of the independent auditor
pursuant to Code Item 7.2.1 of the German Corporate Governance Code was obtained. Resolutions on recommendations were drawn up for
the Supervisory Board to approve and adopt the separate financial statements and the consolidated financial statements for 2017 and to
proposa to the Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2018 that Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgeselischaft be elected as the indepandent
auditor for the financial year 2008,

The meeting on 6 Novernber 2078 dealt with the quarterty figures for the third quarter of 2018, the assignment of audit mandates and
establishing the key audit areas in respect of the 2018 annual financial statements, as well as the audit fees and ratification of other non-audit
services by the auditor,

The first scheduted mesting of the Audit Committee for 2019 took place on 28 March. In the presence of the independent auditor, the
Chairman of the Board of Managemsant and the Chief Financial Officer, the committee discussed the separate financial staterments and the
consolidated financial staternents for the financial year 2018, the management repart on the company and the Group, as wall as the auwdit
reports. The meeting also dealt with the upcoming sstection procedure to replace the auditor.

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nissel and Wolfgang Altmilier — and Werner Waschbichler since 5 June 2018 - belong to the Board
of Management Committee Gunnar Metz had also been a member of the committes until 5 June 2018, The Board of Management
Committee metl threa times in the reporting year, on 27 March 2078, B May 2018 and on B August 2018, Al the March meeting, the Board of
Management Committes's discussions focused on recommendations to the Supervisory Board on the Board of Management members’
target agresmmants and the Board of Management mambers’ mandates. The main topic of the Board of Managemeant Commities meeting on
8 May 2018 was Reinhard Wolf's contract extension, while the review of the contract of Prof. Klaus Josef Lutz was the main topic at the
meeting on 8 August 2018,

At the first meeting on 26 March 2019, the Board of Management members’ target agreements and the associated remuneration of the
Board of Management were discusscd, along with the Board of Management members” mandatcs. Furthormaore. the cmployment contracts
of the members of the Boand of Management, Matthias Taft and Andreas Helber, were under review.

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nissel and Supervisory Board members Theo Bergmann (since 5 June 2018), Dr. Johann Lang.
Wilhalm Oberhofer, Joachim Rukowiad, Michael Kuffner, Werner Waschbichier and — until 5 June 2018 - Gunnar Metz betong to the Strategy
Committee. The Strategy Commuttes met twice in the reporting year, on 27 March 2018 and on & November 2018. In both meetings. the
commiltes recenved information about angoing projects and it also prepared the Supervisory Board meeting the next day, meaning the first
meeting of 2012 on 26 March,

Supervisory Board Chalrman Manfred Nissel and Supervisory Board members Renate Glashsuser, Jirgen Hahnemann (from 5 June 2018),
Monika Hohlmeier, Dr. johann Lang, Bernhard Loy (from 5 Jung 2018) and Monigue Surges belong to the Lending and Investment
Committes. Until 5 June 2018, Theo Bergmann and Josel Schraut were also members of this committea. The Lending and Investment
Committee held two meetings in the reporting year. on 27 March 2018 and 6 November 2018. The committee monitored investment
activitics and revicwed lending activitics and credit cxposurcs in linc with the authonsations it has been granted. Beyond this, the committce
dealt with the setflement of the 2077 investment budget, and the investment budgets for 2018 and 2019, In the meeting on 27 March 2018,
the commitiee also deslt with the insurance programme and volume of premiums of BayWa AG. In its meeting on 26 March 2018, the
committes gealt with the settiement of the 2018 investment budget. the imeastment budgets for 2009 and 2020 a5 wall a5 the lending
activities and credit exposures.

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nilesel, Dr. Johann Lang and Wilheim Oberhofer balong to the Nomination Committee. This
composition was confirmed by the constituent meeting of the Supervisory Board on 5 June 2018, The committee is tasked with submitting
recommendstions to shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board for proposals of shareholders for the election of Supervisory
Board members by the Annual General Meeting. The commitiee actioned this task in its own meeting in the reporting period, on 27 March
2018,

Supervisory Board Chalrman Manfred Nissel and the Supervisory Board members Monika Hohimeier, Michael Kuffner (since 5 June 2018)
and Werner Waschbichler belong to the Mediation Committes, set up pursuant to Section 27 para. 3 of the German Codetermination Act
(MitbastG). Until 5 June 2018, Gunnar Metz was also a member of this committes. The Mediation Committee was not convened in the past

financial year.
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Corporate Governance

Recognising the important contribution that corporate governance makes 1o the transparent and responsible management of the company,
the Supervisory Board reguiarty deliberates on related matters. More information on corporate governance can be found in the Statement
on Corporate Governance. Details concerning the amount and structure of remuneration received by the Supervisory Board and the Board
of Management can be found in the Group Management Report.

With regard to the recommendalions of the German Corporate Governance Code in the version dated 7 February 2077, the Supervisory
Board decided on the amendments by way of circulation procedure in the period from 18-30 June 2018. Consequently, the Board of
Management and the Supervisory Board adopted the recommeandations of the German Corporate Governance Code in the version dated
7 Fabruary 2077 if its maating on 7 Novembar 2018, with tha faw sdtaplions a8 amandad in the sforemantionad resalutions.

The Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) is included in the Staterment on
Corporate Governance pursuant to Section 2891 of the German Commercial Code (HGEB). It has also bean posted on the company™s website
at waww. baywa.com under Imvestor Relations.

All 6 members of the Supervisory Board participated in more than at least half of the Supervisory Board meetings held during the reporting
period.

Members of the Board of Management and of the Supervisary Board report any conflicts of interest without delay to the Supervisory Board.
Mo such case was reporiad in the financial year 2018.

Sustainability Report audit

At its mecting on 27 March 2019, the Supcnvisory Board carcfully cxamincd the Sustainability Report 2018 and discusscd it in detail in the
presence of the auditor and the Board of Management, The Sustainability Report and the auditor's report were discussed extensively,

Based on the audit procedures performed and audit evidence obtained, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes them to
believe that BayWa AG"s consolidated non-financial report for the persod from 1 January to 31 December 2018 has not been prepared. in all
material aspects, in accordance with Sections 315b, 315¢ in connection with Sections 288c¢ to 289 of the German Commercial Code (HGB}).

The suditor's apinion refers to the sections referenced in the overview on page 13 of BayWa AG's Sustainability Report 2018 and other
disclosures, The auditor’s opinion does not refer to the other sections and other disclesures in the Sustainability Report and references to
the websites.

Both reports wera made available to all Supervicory Board membars in good time prior to the meeting. The Supervisory Board concurred
with the auditor's audit opinion at the meeting on 27 March 2019 and released the Sustainability Report 2018 for publication.

Audit of the separate financlal statements and the consolldated financlal statements

The separate financial statements of BayWa &G and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year 2018, as well as

the management report on BayWa AG and on the Group, have been sudited by Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, and each
was iesued an unqualifies audit opinion.

At it= meeting on 27 March 2012, the Supervisory Board carefully examined the financial statements of BayWa AG, drawn up by the Board of
Management in accordance with the German Commaercial Code, and the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
IFRS and the additionally applicable standards set out under Section 315e of the German Commercial Code {(HGE), as well as the manage-
ment report on BayWa AG and on the Group for the financial year 2018, and discussed them in detail in the presence of the external auditor
and the Board of Management. The key points of the 2018 asudits as defined by the Audit Committes were also discussed extensively, All
audit reports and documentation pertaining to the financial statements were made available 1o all Supervisory Board meambers in good time.
The Supervisory Board concurred with the findings of the financial statements audit at its meeting on 27 March 2019, The audit reports and
the documentation on the financial statements were previously the subject of in-depth dediberation by the Audit Committes at its mesting on
28 March 2019, The Audit Committee discussed the separate financial stataments and the consolidated financial statements, the manage-
mert report on the company and the Group, the audit reports, as well as the proposal for the appropriation of profit in the presence of the
external auditor at its meeting on 26 March 2019 In accordance with the conclusive findings of the review by tha Suparvisory Board, no
objections were raised against the financial statements. The Supervisory Board therefore ratified the separate financial statements of
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BayWa AG and the consolidated financial statements of the BayWa Group on 27 March 2019, and the financial statements ware theraby
adopled.

During the Supervisory Board maating on 27 March 2019, the external auditor also reported that there were no substantial weaknesses in
the Internal Control Systemn and the risk management system in respect of the accounting process. The Board of Management has thus
taken all the appropriate measures to fulfil its obligations in this regard.

The propasal of the Board of Management on the appropriation of profit available for distribution through paying a dividend of 90 euro cents
per share has been reviewsd and approved by the Supervisory Board.

Changes to the Supervisory Board and to the Board of Management

The terms of the members of the Supervisory Board ended as scheduled with the end of the Annual General Meeting on 5 June 2078, None
of the shareholder representatives stood down and sll of the candidates were re-elected by the Annual General Mesting. These included:
Manfred Nissel. Wollgang Altmilier, Kiaus Buchieitner, Dr. Johann Lang. Monika Hohlmeier, Wilheim Obernofer, Joachim Rukwied ang
Monigue Surges.

Renate Glashauser, Michasl Kuffner, Theo Bergmann, Stefan Kraft and Werner Waschbichler were re-glected as employee representatives.
Gunnar Metz, josef Schraut and Peter Kanig stood down, and Andrea Busch, Jirgen Hahnemann and Bernhard Loy were elected in
accordance with the provisions of the German Codetermination Act, effective as of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 2018. The
Supervisory Board would like to sincerely thank outgoing membars for thedr constructive and RanMmonious cooperation.

Marcus Pollinger was appointed as a further member of tha Board of Managemant on 1 November 2018. Roland Schuler retired from the
Board of Management on 31 December 2018. The Supervisory Board would like to thank Rotand Schuler for his 26 years of service, 15 of
which were on the Board of Management of BayWa AG, and for the faithful and constructive cooperation,

The Supervisory Board thanks the members of the Board of Management, the employees as well as the employee representatives of
BayWa AG and all Group companies for their work.

Munich, 27 March 2019
On behaif of the Supervisory Board

Manfred Nissel
Chairman
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Management and Control Structure of the Company

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board

As a company with its principal place of business in Munich, Germany. BayWa AG is subject to the provisions laid down under German law.
The executive and supervisory bodies consisting of the Board of Managemant and the Supervisory Board form the dual-tier management
and control structure in saccordance with the provisions under German stock corporation law. The Board of Management and the
Supervisory Board work closely together in the [nterest of the company, Thedr joint goal ks to ensure the company’s continued axistence and
slistainad valus.

The Board of Management’s duties and practices

The Board of Management, which is currently composed of five members and had six members in Movember and December 2018, is
independently responsible for running the company. developing the corporate strategy. agreeing the strategy with the Supervisory Board
and ensuring that it is implemented. It is responsible for the company’s annual and multi-year planning as well as for the preparation of the
interim reports and the annual and consolidated financial statements. The Board of Management ensuras that legal provisions, official rules
and regulations as well as the company’s internal guidelines are cbserved, and it works towards the Group’s compliance with them. In
accordance with legal provisions, the Board of Management reports to the Supervisory Board regularly, promptly and comprehans ety on
all relevant issues pertaining to planning; the development of business; the assets, financial position and eamings; the risk situation; risk
management and compliance. The Supervisory Board is directly involved in ali decisions of fundamental importance for the company.
Furthermore, such decisions are subject to approval by the Supervisory Board. The Board of Managemeant ensures that there is open and
transparent communication within the company.

The Beard of Management manages the company’s business under its own responsibility. The principle of joint responsibility applies,
meaning that the members of the Board of Management jointly bear the responsibility for the managing of the company. Each Board
member is assigned certain tasks to be specifically handied under the aliocation of duties plan (Geschaftsverteilungsplan). Certain
decisions, especially those requiring the Supervisory Board's approval or for which the Board of Management is responsible under the taw
or the Articles of Association, sre reserved for the entire Board of Management under the bylaws. Moreover, a resolution must also be
obtained from the entire Board of Management in respect of matters which have been submitted to the Board of Management by the
Chairman or by a Board mamber.

Meetings of the Board of Management take place at least once a month, They are convened by the Chairman of the Board of Management.
The Chairman also sets the agenda and chairs the mestings. The Board of Management is quorate if all members have been invited and at
least half of the Board members, inciuding the Chaimrman, take part in deciding a resolution. The resolutions of the Board of Management are
valid through a simple majority of votes cast. In the event of a tie vote, the Chairman shall have the casting vote. In the event of majority
resolutions against the Chairman of the Board of Management, he shall hawe a right of veto. If this right of veto is cxcrcised, the Supcrvisory
Board Chairman must be notified by the Chairman of the Board of Management without delay. Upon instruction by the Chairman, resolutions
can also be passed outside of meetings by way of voles cast in writing, by telephone or electronically.

The Supervisory Board's duties and practices

The Supervisory Board of BayWa AG appoints the members of the Board of Management and advises and supervises the Board of
Management in it management of the company. The Supervisory Board is made up of 16 members., In accordance with the German
Codatermination Act (MithestG), it is composed in equal parts of rapresantatives of the sharshalders and of the employees, The
Supervisory Board is composed of what it considers a sufficient number of independent members. & member ks considered Independent if
he ar she does not have any commercial or personat retationship to the company, the company’s executive and supervisory bodies,
controlling shareholder or any afiliated companies, which can justify 8 material or long-term conflict of interests.

Last year, the following changes to personnel took place: Andrea Busch, Jirgen Hahnemann and Bermnhard Loy were re-elected as employee
reprasentatives with effect following the Annual General Mesting 2018 Pater Kbnig, Gunnar Metz and Josef Schraut stood down from the
Supervisory Board, The Annual General Meeting in June 2018 confirmead the mandates of all shareholder represantatives for another five
years. For further information on changes to the Suparvisory Boand in the reporting period, please see the Report of the Supervisory Board

& set of bylaws reguiates the tasks of the Supervisory Board; in particular, the internal organisation, the activities of the committees and the
regulations governing approval by the Supervisory Board for decisions of the Board of Management. Meetings of the Supervisory Board take
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